# SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549

## Form S-4

REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933

# KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY

(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its charter)

Missouri

44-0308720

(State of incorporation)

(I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

1201 Walnut

Kansas City, Missouri 64106-2124
(816) 556-2200
(Address, including zip code, and telephone number, including

area code, of Registrant's principal executive offices)

#### Jeanie Sell Latz

Corporate Secretary 1201 Walnut Kansas City, Missouri 64106-2124

(816) 556-2936 http://www.kcpl.com

(Name, address, including zip code, and telephone number, including area code, of agent for service)

Copy to:

Steven R. Loeshelle, Esq. Dewey Ballantine LLP 1301 Avenue of the Americas New York, New York 10019-6092

Approximate date of commencement of proposed sale to the public: As soon as practicable following the effectiveness of this registration statement.

If the securities being registered on this Form are being offered in connection with the formation of a holding company and there is compliance with General Instruction G, check the following box. / /

If this Form is filed to register additional securities for an offering pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act, check the following box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering. / /

If this Form is a post-effective amendment filed pursuant to Rule 462(d) under the Securities Act, check the following box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering. / /

#### CALCULATION OF REGISTRATION FEE

Title of Each Class of Securities to Be Registered	Amount to be Registered	Proposed Maximum Offering Price Per Unit (1)	Proposed Maximum Aggregate Offering Price (1)	Amount of Registration Fee (1)
6.00% Senior Notes due 2007, Series B	\$225,000,000	100%(1)	\$225,000,000	\$20,700

(1) Estimated solely for the purpose of calculating the registration fee in accordance with Rule 457(f)(2). For purposes of this calculation, the Offering Price per Series B Note was assumed to be the stated principal amount of each Series A Note that may be received by the Registrant in the exchange transaction in which the Series B Notes will be offered.\

Registrant hereby amends this Registration Statement on such date or dates as may be necessary to delay its effective date until Registrant shall file a further amendment which specifically states that this Registration Statement shall thereafter become effective in accordance with Section 8(a) of the Securities Act of 1933 or until this Registration Statement shall become effective on such date as the Commission, acting pursuant to said Section 8(a), may determine.

THE INFORMATION IN THIS PROSPECTUS IS NOT COMPLETE AND MAY BE CHANGED. WE MAY NOT SELL THESE SECURITIES UNTIL THE REGISTRATION STATEMENT FILED WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION IS EFFECTIVE. THIS PROSPECTUS IS NOT AN OFFER TO SELL THESE SECURITIES AND IT IS NOT SOLICITING AN OFFER TO BUY THESE SECURITIES IN ANY STATE WHERE THE OFFER OR SALE IS NOT PERMITTED

Subject to Completion Dated May 10, 2002

**PROSPECTUS** 

\$225,000,000

## KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY

OFFER TO EXCHANGE 6.00% SENIOR NOTES DUE 2007, SERIES B REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933 FOR ALL OUTSTANDING 6.00% SENIOR NOTES DUE 2007, SERIES A

THE EXCHANGE OFFER

- \* The exchange offer will expire at 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on \_\_\_\_\_, 2002, unless extended.
- \* The exchange offer is not conditioned upon any minimum aggregate principal amount of old notes being tendered.
- We will exchange all 6.00% Senior Notes due 2007, Series A (the "old notes") that are validly tendered and not validly withdrawn for an equal principal amount of 6.00% Senior Notes due 2007,

- Series B (the "exchange notes") that we have registered under the Securities Act of 1933.
- You may withdraw tenders of old notes at any time prior to the expiration of the exchange offer.
- \* The exchange of old notes for exchange notes in the exchange offer will not be a taxable event for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

#### THE EXCHANGE NOTES

\* The exchange notes will be freely tradeable and will have substantially identical terms to the old notes.

NEITHER THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION NOR ANY STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION HAS APPROVED OR DISAPPROVED OF THE EXCHANGE NOTES OR DETERMINED IF THIS PROSPECTUS IS TRUTHFUL OR COMPLETE. ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS A CRIMINAL OFFENSE.

Each broker-dealer that receives exchange notes for its own account pursuant to the exchange offer must acknowledge that it will deliver a prospectus in connection with any resale of such exchange notes. The letter of transmittal states that by so acknowledging and by delivering a prospectus, a broker-dealer will not be deemed to admit that it is an "underwriter" within the meaning of the Securities Act of 1933. This Prospectus, as it may be amended or supplemented from time to time, may be used by a broker-dealer in connection with resales of exchange notes received in exchange for old notes where such old notes were acquired by such broker-dealer as a result of market-making activities or other trading activities. We have agreed that, for a period of 180 days after the expiration date indicated above, we will make this Prospectus available to any broker-dealer for use in connection with any such resale. See "Plan of Distribution".

The date of this Prospectus is	
2002.	

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

	<u>Page</u>
About This Prospectus	2
Where You Can Find More Information	3
Summary	4
Private Placement	11
Use of Proceeds	11
Pro Forma Financial Information	11
Selected Financial Information	12
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges	13
Kansas City Power & Light Company	14
The Exchange Offer	14
Description of the Notes	25
Registration Rights Agreement	31
Book Entry; Delivery and Form	34
Federal Income Tax Consequences	37
Plan of Distribution	37
Transfer Restrictions on Old Notes	38
Legal Matters	38
Experts	39

## **ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS**

This prospectus is part of a registration statement we have filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or the "Commission". We are submitting this prospectus to holders of our 6.00% Senior Notes, Series A so that they can consider exchanging those notes for our 6.00% Senior Notes, Series B. You should rely only on the information contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus. We have not authorized anyone to provide you with additional or different information. If anyone provides you with additional or different information, you should not rely on it. We are not making an offer to exchange and issue the 6.00% Senior Notes, Series B in any jurisdiction where the offer or exchange is not permitted. We have incorporated important business and financial information in this document that is not included in or delivered with this document, as described in "Where You Can Find More Information" below. You should assume that the information contained in this prospectus is accurate only as of the date on the front cover of this prospectus and that any information we have incorporated by reference is accurate only as of the date of the document incorporated by reference.

References in this prospectus to the terms "we", "us" or other similar terms mean Kansas City Power & Light Company, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise. We are also referred to in this prospectus as "KCP&L" and "the Company". We refer to Great Plains Energy Incorporated as "Great Plains Energy". Unless the context clearly indicates otherwise, we refer to our 6.00% Senior Notes due 2007, Series A as the "old notes", and to our 6.00% Senior Notes due 2007, Series B as the "exchange notes". We collectively refer to the old notes and the exchange notes as the "notes".

#### WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We file annual, quarterly and current reports, and proxy statements and other information with the Commission through the Commission's Electronic Data Gathering, Analysis and Retrieval system and these filings are publicly available through the Commission's website (http://www.sec.gov). You may read and copy such material at the public reference facilities maintained by the Commission at Judiciary Plaza, 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20549. You may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference

Room by calling the Commission at 1-800-SEC-0330. You may also obtain copies of such material at prescribed rates from the Public Reference Section of the Commission, 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20549.

The Commission allows us to "incorporate by reference" into this prospectus the information we file with them. This means that we can disclose important business and financial information to you by referring you to the documents containing the information. The information we incorporate by reference is considered to be included in and an important part of this prospectus and should be read with the same care. Information that we file later with the Commission that is incorporated by reference into this prospectus will automatically update and supercede this information. We are incorporating by reference into this prospectus the following documents that we have filed with the Commission and any subsequent filings we make with the Commission under Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 until the offering of the exchange notes is completed:

- Our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001 and the amendment dated March 6, 2002 thereto filed on Form 10-K/A, which we refer to herein in the aggregate as the "2001 Form 10-K"
- \* Our Report on Form 8-K/A dated February 8, 2002
- Our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the guarter ended March 31, 2002

This prospectus is part of a registration statement we have filed with the Commission relating to the exchange notes. As permitted by the Commission's rules, this prospectus does not contain all of the information included in the registration statement and the accompanying exhibits and schedules we file with the Commission. You should read the registration statement and the exhibits and schedules for more information about us and the exchange notes. The registration statement, exhibits and schedules are also available at the Commission's Public Reference Section or through its website.

You may obtain a free copy of our filings with the Commission by writing or telephoning us at the following address: Kansas City Power & Light Company, 1201 Walnut, Kansas City, Missouri 64106-2124 (Telephone No.: 816-556-2200) Attention: Corporate Secretary, or by contacting us at our website (www.kcpl.com). Information on our website is not part of this prospectus. In order to obtain timely delivery of such information, noteholders must request the information no later than 5 business days before the date on which this exchange offer will expire.

#### **SUMMARY**

THIS SUMMARY HIGHLIGHTS SELECTED INFORMATION FROM THIS PROSPECTUS TO HELP YOU UNDERSTAND THE TERMS OF THIS EXCHANGE OFFER AND THE EXCHANGE NOTES. IT LIKELY DOES NOT CONTAIN ALL THE INFORMATION THAT IS IMPORTANT TO YOU OR THAT YOU SHOULD CONSIDER IN MAKING A DECISION TO EXCHANGE OLD NOTES FOR EXCHANGE NOTES. TO UNDERSTAND ALL OF THE TERMS OF THIS EXCHANGE OFFER AND THE EXCHANGE NOTES AND TO ATTAIN A MORE COMPLETE UNDERSTANDING OF OUR BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL SITUATION, YOU SHOULD CAREFULLY READ THIS ENTIRE PROSECTUS AND THE INFORMATION WE HAVE INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE HEREIN.

#### **Kansas City Power & Light Company**

We engage in the generation, transmission, distribution and sale of electricity and serve approximately 474,000 customers located in all or portions of 23 counties in western Missouri and eastern Kansas. Our customers include approximately 419,000 residences, 53,000 commercial firms, and 2,000 industrials, municipalities, and other electric utilities. Retail electric revenues accounted for approximately 90% of our total electric revenues in 2001. Wholesale firm power, bulk power sales and miscellaneous electric revenues accounted for the remainder of utility revenues. In addition to our utility business, we have an unregulated subsidiary called Home Service Solutions, Inc. which, through its subsidiaries, provides energy-related residential services.

In October 2001, we became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Great Plains Energy, a holding company registered under the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935, as amended. Great Plains Energy also owns two unregulated subsidiaries, Great Plains Power Incorporated and KLT Inc., which we transferred to it in connection with the corporate reorganization. For more details on the formation of the holding company and descriptions of the other Great Plains Energy subsidiaries, please refer to our 2001 Form 10-K, which is incorporated herein by reference. Our principal executive office is located at 1201 Walnut, Kansas City, Missouri 64106 (Telephone: (816) 556-2200).

#### Summary of the Exchange Offer

On March 13, 2002, we completed a private offering of the old notes. We received proceeds, after deducting the discount to the initial purchasers, of \$223,188,750 from the sale of the old notes.

In connection with the offering of the old notes, we entered into a registration rights agreement with the initial purchasers of the old notes in which we agreed to file not later than 90 days after the issuance of the old notes and to use our best efforts to have declared effective within 180 days after that date, a registration statement relating to the exchange offer, and to consummate the exchange offer no later than 30 days after the registration statement is declared effective. In the exchange offer, you are entitled to exchange your old notes for exchange notes, with substantially identical terms, that are registered with the Commission. You should read the discussion under the headings "--The Exchange Notes" beginning on page 8 and "Description of the Notes" beginning on page 25 for further information about the exchange notes. After the exchange offer is complete, you will no longer be entitled to any exchange or registration rights for your old notes.

We have summarized the terms of the exchange offer below. You should read the discussion under the heading "The Exchange Offer" beginning on page 14 for further information about the exchange offer and resale of the exchange notes.

The Exchange Offer

We are offering to exchange up to \$225,000,000 principal amount of the exchange notes for up to \$225,000,000 principal amount of the old notes. Old notes may only be exchanged in \$1,000 increments.

The terms of the exchange notes are identical in all material respects to those of the old notes except the exchange notes will not be subject to transfer restrictions and holders of exchange notes will have no registration rights since these notes will already be registered. Also, the exchange notes will not contain provisions for an increase in their stated interest rate.

Old notes that are not tendered for exchange will continue to be subject to transfer restrictions and will not have registration rights. Therefore, the market for secondary resales of old notes that are not tendered for exchange is likely to be limited.

**Expiration Date.** 

The exchange offer will expire at 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on \_\_\_\_\_, 2002, or such later date and time to which we may extend it. Please read "The Exchange Offer -- Extensions, Delay in Acceptance, Termination or Amendment" on page 16 for more information about an extension of the expiration date.

Withdrawal of Tenders

You may withdraw your tender of old notes at any time prior to the expiration date. We will return to you, without charge, promptly after the expiration or termination of the exchange offer any old notes that you tendered but that were not accepted for exchange.

Conditions to the Exchange Offer.

We will not be required to accept old notes for exchange:

- \* If the exchange offer would be unlawful or would violate any interpretation of the staff of the Commission, or If any legal action has been instituted or threatened that would impair our ability to proceed with the exchange offer.
- \* The exchange offer is not conditioned upon any minimum aggregate principal amount of old notes being tendered. Please read "The Exchange Offer -- Conditions to the Exchange Offer" on page 17 for more information about the conditions to the exchange offer.

#### **Procedures for Tendering Old Notes**

If your old notes are held through The Depositary Trust Company, or "DTC", and you wish to participate in the exchange offer, you may do so through DTC's automated tender offer program. If you tender under this program, you will agree to be bound by the letter of transmittal that we are providing with this prospectus as though you had signed the letter of transmittal. By signing or agreeing to be bound by the letter of transmittal, you will represent to us that, among other things:

- \* any exchange notes that you receive will be acquired in the ordinary course of your business.
- \* you have no arrangement or understanding with any person to participate in the distribution of the old notes or the exchange notes,
- \* you are not our "affiliate", as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act of 1933, or if you are our affiliate, you will comply with any applicable registration and prospectus delivery requirements of the Securities Act of 1933,

# Procedures for Tendering Old Notes (Continued)

- \* if you are not a broker-dealer, you are not engaged in and do not intend to engage in the distribution of the exchange notes, and
- \* if you are a broker-dealer that will receive exchange notes for your own account in exchange for old notes that you acquired as a result of market-making activities or other trading activities, you will deliver a prospectus in connection with any resale of such exchange notes.

# Special Procedures for Beneficial Owners..

If you own a beneficial interest in old notes that are registered in the name of a broker, dealer, commercial bank, trust company or other nominee and you wish to tender the old notes in the exchange offer, please contact the registered holder as soon as possible and instruct the registered holder to tender on your behalf and to comply with our instructions described in this prospectus.

#### **Guaranteed Delivery Procedures**

You must tender your old notes according to the guaranteed delivery procedures described in "The Exchange Offer -- Guaranteed Delivery Procedures" on page 22 if any of the following apply:

- \* you wish to tender your old notes but they are not immediately available,
- \* you cannot deliver your old notes, the letter of transmittal or any other required documents to the exchange agent prior to the expiration date, or
- \* you cannot comply with the applicable procedures under DTC's automated tender offer program prior to the expiration date.

#### U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations

The exchange of old notes for exchange notes in the exchange offer will not be a taxable event for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Please read "Federal Income Tax Consequences" on page 37.

Use of Proceeds..

We will not receive any cash proceeds from the issuance of exchange notes in the exchange offer.

#### **Registration Rights**

If we fail to complete the exchange offer as required by the registration rights agreement, we may be obligated to pay additional interest to holders of old notes. Please read "Registration Rights" beginning on page 31 for more information regarding your rights as a holder of old notes.

#### The Exchange Agent

We have appointed The Bank of New York as exchange agent for the exchange offer. Please direct questions and requests for assistance, requests for additional copies of this prospectus or of the letter of transmittal and requests for the notice of guaranteed delivery to the exchange agent. If you are not tendering under DTC's automated tender offer program, you should send the letter of transmittal and any other required documents to the exchange agent as follows:

THE BANK OF NEW YORK

BY HAND OR COURIER:

The Bank of New York
Corporate Trust Department
Reorganization Unit
15 Broad Street, 16th floor
New York NY 10007

# BY MAIL (REGISTERED OR CERTIFIED MAIL RECOMMENDED):

The Bank of New York Corporate Trust Department Reorganization Unit 15 Broad Street, 16th floor New York NY 10007

# BY FACSIMILE TRANSMISSION (ELIGIBLE INSTITUTIONS ONLY):

	() Attention:	
(	CONFIRM BY TELEPHONE ) - (	)

# The Exchange Notes

The exchange notes will be freely tradeable and otherwise substantially identical to the old notes. The exchange notes will not have registration rights, since they will already be registered, or provisions for additional interest. The exchange notes will evidence the same debt as the old notes, and the old notes and the exchange notes will be governed by the same indenture. The old notes and the exchange notes will vote together as a single separate class under the indenture.

Notes Offered \$225 million principal amount of 6.00%

Senior Notes due 2007, Series B.

**Interest Rate..** 6.00% per annum.

Maturity Date. March 15, 2007.

Interest Payment Dates.. March 15 and September 15 of each year,

commencing September 15, 2002.

**Optional Redemption..** We may redeem the exchange notes at

our option at any time, upon no more than 60 and not less than 30 days' notice by mail. We may redeem the notes either as a whole or in part at a redemption price equal to the greater of (1) 100% of the principal amount of the notes being redeemed and (2) the sum of the present values of the remaining scheduled payments of principal and interest on the notes being redeemed (excluding the portion of any such interest accrued to the date of redemption) discounted (for purposes of determining present value) to the redemption date on a semi-annual basis (assuming a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months) at the Treasury Rate (as defined in this prospectus) plus 25 basis points, plus, in each case, accrued interest thereon to the date of redemption.

For more information on our optional redemption right, see "Description of the Notes--Optional Redemption" beginning on

page 27.

Ranking... The exchange notes will:

- \* be unsecured, and
- \* rank equally with all of our other unsecured and unsubordinated indebtedness from time to time outstanding.

Absence of Public Markets for the Notes..

There is no existing market for the exchange notes. We cannot provide any assurance about:

\* the liquidity of any markets that may develop for the notes,

- \* your ability to sell the notes, and
- \* the prices at which you will be able to sell the notes.

Future trading prices of the notes will depend on many factors, including:

- \* prevailing interest rates,
- \* our operating results,
- \* the ratings of the notes, and
- \* the market for similar securities

The initial purchasers of the old notes have advised us that they currently intend to make a market in the exchange notes we issue in the exchange offer. These initial purchasers do not, however, have any obligation to do so, and they may discontinue any market-making activities at any time without any notice. In addition, we do not intend to apply for a listing of the exchange notes on any securities exchange or for quotation of the exchange notes in any automated dealer quotation system.

#### PRIVATE PLACEMENT

We issued \$225 million principal amount of the old notes on March 13, 2002 to the initial purchasers of those notes and received proceeds, after deducting the discount to the initial purchasers, equal to 99.195% of the principal amount. We issued the old notes to the initial purchasers in a transaction exempt from or not subject to registration under the Securities Act. of 1933 The initial purchasers then offered and resold the old notes to qualified institutional buyers initially at the price of 99.795% of the principal amount.

We received aggregate net proceeds, before expenses, of approximately \$223,188,750 million from the sale of the old notes. We used those proceeds for the repayment at maturity, on March 20, 2002, of \$200 million of our medium term floating rate notes currently bearing interest at 2.05% per year, with the balance used to repay short-term debt securities.

#### **USE OF PROCEEDS**

We will not receive any cash proceeds from the issuance of the exchange notes. In consideration for issuing the exchange notes, we will receive in exchange a like principal amount of old notes. The old notes surrendered in exchange for the exchange notes will be retired and canceled and cannot be reissued. Accordingly, issuance of the exchange notes will not result in any change in our capitalization.

#### PRO FORMA FINANCIAL INFORMATION

In October, 2001, we became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Great Plains Energy, a holding company registered under the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935, as amended. Great Plains Energy also owns two unregulated subsidiaries, Great Plains Power Incorporated and KLT Inc., which we transferred to it in connection with the corporate reorganization.

We present the following unaudited pro forma consolidated financial information before and after the corporate reorganization which included the formation of our holding company parent, Great Plains Energy. The pro forma income statement data give effect to the corporate reorganization as if it had occurred at the beginning of the period presented. This information does not purport to represent what our results of operations would actually have been had the reorganization occurred at January 1, 2001 or to project our results of operations for any future period or date. The unaudited pro forma consolidated financial information should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and notes contained in our 2001 Form 10-K, incorporated herein by reference.

# KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated Condensed Statement of Income Year Ended December 31, 2001 (in thousands)

Dro Formo

	KCP&L		Pro F	1a	
	listorical as Reported (a)	A	djustments (b)		KCP&L (a)
Operating Revenues					
Electric sales revenues	\$ 1,256,121	\$	(288,642)	\$	967,479
Other revenues	94,773		(28,538)		94,773
Total	1,350,894		(317,180		1,033,714
Operating Expenses					
Fuel	163,846		-		163,846
Purchased power	304,862		(239,689)		65,173
Gas purchased and production expenses	17,454		(17,454)		-

VCD 0 I

Other	304,704	(38,966)	265,738
	•	, ,	•
Maintenance	77,172	(1,611)	75,561
Depreciation and depletion	152,893	(14,263)	138,630
(Gain) Loss on property	(22,026)	23,654	1,628
General taxes	97,288	(2,665)	94,623
Total	1,096,193	(290,994)	805,199
Operating income	 254,701	 (26,186)	228,515
Losses from equity investments	(501)	393	(108)
Other income and expenses	(22,440)	17,244	(5,196)
Interest charges	(97,653)	18,114	(79,539)
Income taxes	(30,288)	(21,036)	(51,324)
Income before extraordinary item	\$ 103,819	\$ (11,471)	\$ 92,348

<sup>(</sup>a) KCP&L includes, in addition to KCP&L (the utility), its wholly-owned subsidiary Home Service Solutions, Inc., and, prior to the October 1, 2001 corporate reorganization, KLT Inc. and Great Plains Power Incorporated. After adjustments, the KCP&L column includes KCP&L (the utility) and Home Service Solutions, Inc.

#### SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following table sets forth selected financial and operating data for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000, 1999, 1998 and 1997 and on a pro forma basis for the year ended December 31, 2001. The unaudited pro forma consolidated financial information for the year ended December 31, 2001, gives effect to the October, 2001, reorganization as if it had occurred at January 1, 2001. This information does not purport to represent what the results of operations of KCP&L would actually have been had the reorganization occurred at January 1, 2001 or to project KCP&L's results of operations for any future period or date. This summary is qualified in its entirety by the detailed information and financial statements included in the documents we have incorporated into this prospectus by reference and our unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this prospectus. Please read "Where You Can Find More Information.

		e months ed March 31				Year End	led I	Decembe	r 31			
	2	2002 <sup>(b)</sup>	:	2001 <sup>(b)</sup>		2000 <sup>(b)</sup>		1999 <sup>(b)</sup>		1998 <sup>(c)</sup>	:	1997 <sup>(c)</sup>
				(dolla	ars ir	n millions	exce	ept per sh	are	amounts)		
Consolidated KCP&L <sup>(a)</sup>												
Operating Revenues	\$	212	\$	1,351	\$	1,116	\$	921	\$	973	\$	917
Income (loss) before extraordinary item and cumulative effect of changes in												
accounting principles <sup>(d)</sup>	\$	(8)	\$	104	\$	129	\$	82	\$	121	\$	77
Net Income	\$	(8)	\$	120	\$	159	\$	82	\$	121	\$	77
Total assets at period end	\$	3,173	\$	3,146	\$	3,294	\$	2,990	\$	3,012	\$	3,058
Total mandatorily redeemable preferred securities Total redeemable preferred stock and long-	\$	150	\$	150	\$	150	\$	150	\$	150	\$	150
term debt (including current maturities)	\$	1,189	\$	1,164	\$	1,136	\$	815	\$	913	\$	1,008

<sup>(</sup>a) KCP&L's consolidated financial statements include its wholly owned subsidiary Home Service Solutions, Inc. In addition, KCP&L's consolidated results of operations include KLT Inc. and Great Plains Power Incorporated for all periods prior to the October 1, 2001 formation of the holding company.

#### **RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES**

The following table sets forth our ratio of earnings to fixed charges for the periods indicated:

<sup>(</sup>b) Elimination of KLT Inc.'s income and expenses and minor expenses incurred by Great Plains Energy and Great Plains Power Incorporated before the October 1, 2001, reorganization.

<sup>(</sup>b) See Management's Discussion in our quarterly report on Form 10-Q for explanation of the three months ended March 31, 2002, results and our annual reports on Form 10-K for explanation of 2001, 2000 and 1999 results.

<sup>(</sup>c) KCP&L incurred significant merger-related costs of \$15 million in 1998 and \$60 million in 1997. Included in 1997 merger expense is the \$53 million payment to UtiliCorp United (UtiliCorp) for terminating the merger with UtiliCorp and agreeing to a merger with Western Resources Inc. Subsequently, the planned merger with Western Resources Inc. was terminated.

<sup>(</sup>d) In 2001, this amount is before the \$15.9 million after taxes extraordinary gain on early extinguishment of debt. For further information, see Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements in our Form 10-K for 2001. In 2000, this amount is before the \$30.1 million after taxes cumulative effect of changes in pension accounting. For further information, see Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements in our Form 10-K for 2001.

2002	<u>2001</u>	<u>2000</u>	<u>1999</u>	<u>1998</u>	<u>1997</u>
(a)	2.11	3.02	2.38	2.98	2.05

(a) A \$14.5 million deficiency in earnings (as defined below) caused the ratio of earnings to fixed charges to be less than a one-to-one coverage.

Our ratio of earnings to fixed charges includes our wholly-owned subsidiary, Home Service Solutions, Inc. In addition, the above ratios include KLT Inc. and Great Plains Power Incorporated for all periods prior to the October 1, 2001 reorganization. The ratio of earnings to fixed charges for KCP&L and Home Service Solutions, Inc. only would have been 2.41 in 2001.

For purposes of computing the ratio of earnings to fixed charges, "earnings" consists of net income before extraordinary item, cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles, losses from equity investments and minority interests in consolidated subsidiaries with fixed charges, plus interest charges (excluding the reduction for capitalized interest), income taxes, and the estimated interest component of rents. "Fixed charges" consists of interest charges (excluding the reduction for capitalized interest) and the estimated interest component of rents.

#### KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY

We engage in the generation, transmission, distribution, and sale of electricity. As of December 31, 2001, we served approximately 474,000 customers located in all or portions of 23 counties in western Missouri and eastern Kansas. Our customers include approximately 419,000 residences, 53,000 commercial firms, and 2,000 industrials, municipalities, and other electric utilities. Retail electric revenues accounted for approximately 90% of our total electric revenues in 2001. Wholesale firm power, bulk power sales and miscellaneous electric revenues accounted for the remainder of our utility revenues. In addition to our utility business, we have an unregulated subsidiary called Home Service Solutions, Inc., which, through its subsidiaries, provides residential services.

In October 2001, we became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Great Plains Energy, a holding company registered under the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935, as amended. Great Plains Energy also owns two unregulated subsidiaries, Great Plains Power Incorporated and KLT Inc., which we transferred to it in connection with the corporate reorganization. For more details on the formation of the holding company and descriptions of the other Great Plains Energy subsidiaries, please refer to our 2001 Form 10-K, which is incorporated by reference. Please read "Where You Can Find More Information".

#### THE EXCHANGE OFFER

#### **Purpose of the Exchange Offer**

In connection with the offering of the old notes, we entered into a registration rights agreement with the initial purchasers of the old notes in which we agreed to file not later than 90 days after the date of issuance of the old notes and to use our best efforts to have declared effective within 180 days after that date a registration statement relating to the exchange offer, and to cause the exchange offer to be consummated no later than 30 days after the registration statement is declared effective. We are offering the exchange notes under this prospectus in an exchange offer for the old notes to satisfy our obligations under the registration rights agreement. We refer to our offer to exchange the exchange notes for the old notes as the "exchange offer".

# Resale of Exchange notes

Based on existing interpretations of the Securities Act of 1933 by the Staff of the Division of Corporation Finance of the Commission, or the "Staff", set forth in several no-action letters to third parties, and subject to the immediately following sentence, we believe that the exchange notes issued pursuant to the exchange offer may be offered for resale, resold and transferred by the holders thereof without further compliance with the registration and prospectus delivery requirements of the Securities Act of 1933. However, any purchaser of notes who is an affiliate of ours or who intends to participate in the exchange offer for the purpose of distributing the exchange notes, or any broker-dealer who purchased notes from us or one of our affiliates to resell pursuant to Rule 144A or any other available exemption under the Securities Act of 1933:

- will not be able to rely on the interpretations of the Staff set forth in the abovementioned no-action letters.
- \* will not be able to tender its notes in the exchange offer, and
- \* must comply and must represent to us that it will comply with the registration and prospectus delivery requirements of the Securities Act of 1933 in connection with any sale or transfer of the notes unless such sale or transfer is made pursuant to an exemption from such requirements.

We do not intend to seek our own no-action letter, and there is no assurance that the Staff would make a similar determination with respect to the exchange notes as it has in such no-action letters to third parties.

Each holder who wishes to exchange its old notes for exchange notes pursuant to the exchange offer will be required to represent that at the time of consummation of the offer:

- the exchange notes to be received by it will be acquired in the ordinary course of its business,
- it has no arrangement or understanding with any person to participate in the distribution (within the meaning of the Securities Act of 1933) of the exchange notes,

\*

such holder is not an affiliate of ours (within the meaning of the Securities Act of 1933), and

\* it is not a broker-dealer engaged in or intending to engage in the distribution of the exchange notes.

In addition, in connection with any resales of exchange notes, any broker-dealer, electing to participate in the exchange offer, who acquired such notes for its own account as a result of market-making activities or other trading activities, or an "exchanging dealer", will represent to us that it shall deliver a prospectus meeting the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933 in connection with any resale of the exchange notes. The Staff has taken the position that such broker-dealers may fulfill their prospectus delivery requirements with respect to the exchange notes (other than a resale of an unsold allotment from the original sale of the notes) with the prospectus contained in the exchange offer registration statement. Under the registration rights agreement, we will be required to allow such broker-dealers to use the prospectus contained in the exchange offer registration statement for up to 180 days, subject to certain "black out" periods, following the exchange offer, in connection with the resale of exchange notes received in exchange for notes acquired by such broker-dealers for their own account as a result of market-making or other trading activities.

# Terms of the Exchange Offer

Upon the terms and subject to the conditions described in this prospectus and in the letter of transmittal, we will accept for exchange any old notes properly tendered and not withdrawn prior to the expiration date of the exchange offer. We will issue \$1,000 principal amount of exchange notes in exchange for each \$1,000 principal amount of old notes surrendered under the exchange offer. Old notes may be tendered only in integral multiples of \$1,000.

The exchange offer is not conditioned upon any minimum aggregate principal amount of old notes being tendered for exchange.

As of the date of this prospectus, \$225 million principal amount of old notes are outstanding. This prospectus and the letter of transmittal are being sent to all registered holders of old notes. There will be no fixed record date for determining registered holders of old notes entitled to participate in the exchange offer.

We intend to conduct the exchange offer in accordance with the provisions of the registration rights agreement, the applicable requirements of the Securities Act of 1933 and the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and the rules and regulations of the Commission. Old notes that are not tendered for exchange in the exchange offer:

- \* will remain outstanding,
- \* will continue to accrue interest, and
- \* will be entitled to the rights and benefits that holders have under the indenture relating to the notes and the registration rights agreement.

We will be deemed to have accepted for exchange properly tendered old notes when we have given oral or written notice of the acceptance to the exchange agent and complied with the applicable provisions of the registration rights agreement. The exchange agent will act as agent for the tendering holders for the purposes of receiving the exchange notes from us.

If you tender old notes in the exchange offer, you will not be required to pay brokerage commissions or fees or, subject to the instructions in the letter of transmittal, transfer taxes with respect to the exchange of old notes. We will pay all charges and expenses, other than certain applicable taxes described below, in connection with the exchange offer. It is important that you read "--Fees and Expenses" for more details about fees and expenses incurred in the exchange offer.

We will return any old notes that we do not accept for exchange for any reason without expense to the tendering holder as promptly as practicable after the expiration or termination of the exchange offer.

#### **Expiration Date**

The exchange offer will expire at 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on \_\_\_\_\_\_, 2002, unless in our sole discretion we extend it.

## Extensions, Delay in Acceptance, Termination or Amendment

We expressly reserve the right, at any time or at various times, to extend the period of time during which the exchange offer is open. We may delay acceptance for exchange of any old notes by giving oral or written notice of the extension to their holders. During any such extensions, all old notes you have previously tendered will remain subject to the exchange offer for that series, and we may accept them for exchange.

To extend the exchange offer, we will notify the exchange agent orally or in writing of any extension. We also will make a public announcement of the extension no later than 9:00 a.m., New York City time, on the next business day after the previously scheduled expiration date.

If any of the conditions described below under "--Conditions to the Exchange Offer" have not been satisfied with respect to the exchange offer, we reserve the right, in our sole discretion:

- \* to delay accepting for exchange any old notes,
- \* to extend the exchange offer, or
- \* to terminate the exchange offer.

We will give oral or written notice of such delay, extension or termination to the exchange agent. Subject to the terms of the registration rights agreement, we also reserve the right to amend the terms of the exchange offer in any manner.

Any such delay in acceptance, extension, termination or amendment will be followed as promptly as practicable by oral or written notice thereof to the registered holders of old notes. If we amend the exchange offer in a manner that we determine to constitute a material change, we will promptly disclose that amendment by means of a prospectus supplement. We will distribute the supplement to the registered holders of the old notes. Depending upon the significance of the amendment and the manner of disclosure to the registered holders, we will extend the exchange offer if the exchange offer would otherwise expire during such period.

Without limiting the manner in which we may choose to make public announcements of any delay in acceptance, extension, termination or amendment of the exchange offer, we have no obligation to publish, advertise or otherwise communicate any such public announcement, other than by making a timely release to an appropriate news agency.

## **Conditions to the Exchange Offer**

Despite any other term of the exchange offer, we will not be required to accept for exchange, or exchange any exchange notes for any old notes, and we may terminate the exchange offer as provided in this prospectus before accepting any old notes for exchange, if in our reasonable judgment:

- \* the exchange offer, or the making of any exchange by a holder of old notes, would violate applicable law or any applicable interpretation of the staff of the Commission, or
- \* any action or proceeding has been instituted or threatened in any court or by or before any governmental agency with respect to the exchange offer that, in our judgment, would reasonably be expected to impair our ability to proceed with that exchange offer.

In addition, we will not be obligated to accept for exchange the old notes of any holder that has not made to us:

- the representations described under "--Procedures for Tendering" and "Plan of Distribution," and
- \* such other representations as may be reasonably necessary under applicable Commission rules, regulations or interpretations to make available to us an appropriate form for registering the exchange notes under the Securities Act of 1933

We expressly reserve the right to amend or terminate the exchange offer, and to reject for exchange any old notes not previously accepted for exchange in the exchange offer, upon the occurrence of any of the conditions to the exchange offer specified above. We will give oral or written notice of any extension, amendment, non-acceptance or termination to the holders of the old notes as promptly as practicable.

These conditions are for our sole benefit, and we may assert them or waive them in whole or in part at any time or at various times in our sole discretion. Our failure at any time to exercise any of these rights will not mean that we have waived our rights. Each right will be deemed an ongoing right that we may assert at any time or at various times.

In addition, we will not accept for exchange any old notes tendered, and will not issue exchange notes in exchange for any such old notes, if at such time any stop order has been threatened or is in effect with respect to the registration statement of which this prospectus constitutes a part or the qualification of the indenture relating to the notes under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939.

#### **Procedures for Tendering**

How to tender generally

Only a holder of old notes may tender such old notes in the exchange offer. To tender in the exchange offer, a holder must either (1) comply with the procedures for physical tender or (2) comply with the automated tender offer program procedures of The Depository Trust Company, or "DTC," described below.

To complete a physical tender, a holder must:

- complete, sign and date the letter of transmittal or a facsimile of the letter of transmittal,
- have the signature on the letter of transmittal guaranteed if the letter of transmittal so requires,
- \* mail or deliver the letter of transmittal or facsimile to the exchange agent prior to the expiration date, and
- \* deliver the old notes to the exchange agent prior to the expiration date or comply with the guaranteed delivery procedures described below.

To be tendered effectively, the exchange agent must receive any physical delivery of the letter of transmittal and other required documents at its address provided above under "Summary--The Exchange Agent" prior to the expiration date.

To complete a tender through DTC's automated tender offer program, the exchange agent must receive, prior to the expiration date, a timely confirmation of book-entry transfer of such old notes into the exchange agent's account at DTC according to the procedure for book-entry transfer described below or a properly transmitted agent's message.

The tender by a holder that is not withdrawn prior to the expiration date and our acceptance of that tender will constitute an agreement between the holder and us in accordance with the terms and subject to the conditions described in this prospectus and in the letter of transmittal.

THE METHOD OF DELIVERY OF OLD NOTES, THE LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL AND ALL OTHER REQUIRED DOCUMENTS TO THE EXCHANGE AGENT IS AT YOUR ELECTION AND RISK. RATHER THAN MAIL THESE ITEMS, WE RECOMMEND THAT YOU USE AN OVERNIGHT OR HAND DELIVERY SERVICE. IN ALL CASES, YOU SHOULD ALLOW SUFFICIENT TIME TO ASSURE DELIVERY TO THE EXCHANGE AGENT BEFORE THE EXPIRATION DATE. YOU SHOULD NOT SEND THE LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL OR OLD NOTES TO US. YOU MAY REQUEST YOUR BROKER, DEALER, COMMERCIAL BANK, TRUST COMPANY OR OTHER NOMINEE TO EFFECT THE ABOVE TRANSACTIONS FOR YOU.

How to tender if you are a beneficial owner

If you beneficially own old notes that are registered in the name of a broker, dealer, commercial bank, trust company or other nominee and you wish to tender those notes, you should contact the registered holder as soon as possible and instruct the registered holder to tender on your behalf. If you are a beneficial owner and wish to tender on your own behalf, you must, prior to completing and executing the letter of transmittal and delivering your old notes, either:

- make appropriate arrangements to register ownership of the old notes in your name, or
- obtain a properly completed bond power from the registered holder of your old notes.

The transfer of registered ownership may take considerable time and may not be completed prior to the expiration date.

Signatures and signature guarantees

You must have signatures on a letter of transmittal or a notice of withdrawal described below under "--Withdrawal of Tenders" guaranteed by an eligible institution unless the old notes are tendered:

- \* by a registered holder who has not completed the box entitled "Special Issuance Instructions" or "Special Delivery Instructions" on the letter of transmittal, or
- \* for the account of an eligible institution.

An eligible institution is a member firm of a registered national securities exchange or of the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc., a commercial bank or trust company having an office or correspondent in the United States, or an eligible guarantor institution within the meaning of Rule 17Ad-15 under the Securities Exchange Act, that is a member of one of the recognized signature guarantee programs identified in the letter of transmittal.

When endorsements or bond powers are needed

If a person other than the registered holder of any old notes signs the letter of transmittal, the old notes must be endorsed or accompanied by a properly completed bond power. The registered holder must sign the bond power as the registered holder's name appears on the old notes. An eligible institution must guarantee that signature.

If the letter of transmittal or any old notes or bond powers are signed by trustees, executors, administrators, guardians, attorneys-in-fact, or officers of corporations or others acting in a fiduciary or representative capacity, those persons should so indicate when signing. Unless we waive this requirement, they also must submit evidence satisfactory to us of their authority to deliver the letter of transmittal.

Tendering through DTC's automated tender offer program

The exchange agent and DTC have confirmed that any financial institution that is a participant in DTC's system may use DTC's automated tender offer program to tender. Accordingly, participants in the program may, instead of physically completing and signing the letter of transmittal and delivering it to the exchange agent, transmit their acceptance of the exchange offer electronically. They may do so by causing DTC to transfer the old notes to the exchange agent in accordance with its procedures for transfer. DTC will then send an agent's message to the exchange agent.

An agent's message is a message transmitted by DTC to and received by the exchange agent and forming part of the book-entry confirmation, stating that:

- \* DTC has received an express acknowledgment from a participant in DTI's automated tender offer program that is tendering old notes that are the subject of such book-entry confirmation,
- \* the participant has received and agrees to be bound by the terms of the letter of transmittal or, in the case of an agent's message relating to guaranteed delivery, the participant has received and agrees to be bound by the applicable notice of guaranteed delivery, and
- \* we may enforce the agreement against such participant.

#### Determinations under the Exchange Offer

We will determine in our sole discretion all questions as to the validity, form, eligibility, time of receipt, acceptance of tendered old notes and withdrawal of tendered old notes. Our determination will be final and binding. We reserve the absolute right to reject any old notes not properly tendered or any old notes our acceptance of which, in the opinion of our counsel, might be unlawful. We also reserve the right to waive any defects, irregularities or conditions of the exchange offer as to particular old notes. Our interpretation of the terms and conditions of the exchange offer, including the instructions in the letter of transmittal, will be final and binding on all parties.

Unless waived, any defects or irregularities in connection with tenders of old notes must be cured within such time as we determine. Neither we, the exchange agent nor any other person will be under any duty to give notification of defects or irregularities with respect to

tenders of old notes, nor will we or those persons incur any liability for failure to give such notification. Tenders of old notes will not be deemed made until such defects or irregularities have been cured or waived. Any old notes received by the exchange agent that are not properly tendered and as to which the defects or irregularities have not been cured or waived will be returned to the tendering holder, unless otherwise provided in the letter of transmittal, as soon as practicable following the expiration date.

When we will issue exchange notes

In all cases, we will issue exchange notes for old notes that we have accepted for exchange in the exchange offer only after the exchange agent timely receives:

- old notes or a timely book-entry confirmation of transfer of such old notes into the exchange agent's account at DTC, and
- \* a properly completed and duly executed letter of transmittal and all other required documents or a properly transmitted agent's message.

Return of old notes not accepted or exchanged

If we do not accept any tendered old notes for exchange for any reason described in the terms and conditions of the exchange offer or if old notes are submitted for a greater principal amount than the holder desires to exchange, we will return the unaccepted or non-exchanged old notes without expense to their tendering holder. In the case of old notes tendered by book-entry transfer into the exchange agent's account at DTC according to the procedures described below, such non-exchanged old notes will be credited to an account maintained with DTC. These actions will occur as promptly as practicable after the expiration or termination of the exchange offer.

Your representations to us

By signing or agreeing to be bound by the letter of transmittal, you will represent to us that, among other things:

- any exchange notes you receive will be acquired in the ordinary course of your business.
- \* you have no arrangement or understanding with any person to participate in the distribution of the old notes or the exchange notes within the meaning of the Securities Act of 1933,
- \* you are not our affiliate, as defined in Rule 405 under the Securities Act of 1933 or, if you are our affiliate, you will comply with the applicable registration and prospectus delivery requirements of the Securities Act of 1933,
- if you are not a broker-dealer, you are not engaged in and do not intend to engage in the distribution of the exchange notes, and
- \* if you are a broker-dealer, you will receive exchange notes for your own account in exchange for old notes that you acquired as a result of market-making activities or other trading activities, and you will deliver a prospectus in connection with any resale of such exchange notes.

# **Book-Entry Transfer**

The exchange agent will make a request to establish an account with respect to the old notes at DTC for purposes of the exchange offer promptly after the date of this prospectus. Any financial institution participating in DTC's system may make book-entry delivery of old notes by causing DTC to transfer such old notes into the exchange agent's account at DTC in accordance with DTC's procedures for transfer. If you are unable to deliver confirmation of the book-entry tender of your old notes into the exchange agent's account at DTC or all other documents required by the letter of transmittal to the exchange agent on or prior to the expiration date, you must tender your old notes according to the guaranteed delivery procedures described below.

## **Guaranteed Delivery Procedures**

If you wish to tender your old notes but they are not immediately available or if you cannot deliver your old notes, the letter of transmittal or any other required documents to the exchange agent or comply with the applicable procedures under DTC's automated tender offer program prior to the expiration date, you may tender if:

- \* the tender is made through a member firm of a registered national securities exchange or of the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc., a commercial bank or trust company having an office or correspondent in the United States, or an eligible guarantor institution.
- \* prior to the expiration date, the exchange agent receives from such member firm of a registered national securities exchange or of the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc., commercial bank or trust company having an office or correspondent in the United States, or eligible guarantor institution either a properly completed and duly executed notice of guaranteed delivery by facsimile transmission, mail or hand delivery or a properly transmitted agent's message and notice of guaranteed delivery:
  - stating your name and address, the registered number(s) of your old notes and the principal amount of old notes tendered,

- \* stating that the tender is being made thereby, and
- \* guaranteeing that, within three New York Stock Exchange trading days after the expiration date, the letter of transmittal or facsimile thereof or agent's message in lieu thereof, together with the old notes in proper form for transfer or a book-entry confirmation, and any other documents required by the letter of transmittal will be deposited by the eligible guarantor institution with the exchange agent,
- \* the exchange agent receives such properly completed and executed letter of transmittal or facsimile or agent's message, as well as all tendered old notes in proper form for transfer or a book-entry confirmation, and all other documents required by the letter of transmittal, within three New York Stock Exchange trading days after the expiration date.

Any holder of old notes who wishes to tender old notes pursuant to the guaranteed delivery procedures described in the letter of transmittal must ensure that the exchange agent receives notice of guaranteed delivery prior to 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on the expiration date. Upon request to the exchange agent, the exchange agent will send a notice of guaranteed delivery to you if you wish to tender your old notes according to the guaranteed delivery procedures described above.

#### Withdrawal of Tenders

Except as otherwise provided in this prospectus, you may withdraw your tender at any time prior to 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on the expiration date.

For a withdrawal to be effective:

- \* the exchange agent must receive a written notice of withdrawal at one of the addresses listed above under "Summary--The Exchange Agent," or
- \* the withdrawing holder must comply with the appropriate procedures of DTC's automated tender offer program.

Any notice of withdrawal must:

- \* specify the name of the person who tendered the old notes to be withdrawn,
- identify the old notes to be withdrawn, including the registration number or numbers and the principal amount of such old notes,
- \* be signed by the person who tendered the old notes in the same manner as the original signature on the letter of transmittal used to deposit those old notes or be accompanied by documents of transfer sufficient to permit the trustee to register the transfer in the name of the person withdrawing the tender, and
- \* specify the name in which such old notes are to be registered, if different from that of the person who tendered the old notes.

If old notes have been tendered under the procedure for book-entry transfer described above, any notice of withdrawal must specify the name and number of the account at DTC to be credited with the withdrawn old notes and otherwise comply with the procedures of DTC.

We will determine all questions as to the validity, form, eligibility and time of receipt of notice of withdrawal, and our determination shall be final and binding on all parties. We will deem any old notes so withdrawn not to have been validly tendered for exchange for purposes of the exchange offer.

Any old notes that have been tendered for exchange but that are not exchanged for any reason will be returned to their holder without cost to the holder or, in the case of old notes tendered by book-entry transfer into the exchange agent's account at DTC according to the procedures described above, such old notes will be credited to an account maintained with DTC for the old notes. This return or crediting will take place as soon as practicable after withdrawal, rejection of tender or termination of the exchange offer. You may re-tender properly withdrawn old notes by following one of the procedures described under "--Procedures for Tendering" above at any time on or prior to 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on the expiration date.

## **Fees and Expenses**

We will bear the expenses of soliciting tenders. The principal solicitation is being made by mail; however, we may make additional solicitation by facsimile, email, telephone or in person by our officers and regular employees and those of our affiliates.

We have not retained any dealer-manager in connection with the exchange offer and will not make any payments to broker-dealers or others soliciting acceptances of the exchange offer. We will, however, pay the exchange agent reasonable and customary fees for its services and reimburse it for its related reasonable out-of-pocket expenses. We may also pay brokerage houses and other custodians, nominees and fiduciaries the reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred by them in forwarding copies of this prospectus, letters of transmittal and related documents to the beneficial owners of the old notes and in handling

or forwarding tenders for exchange.

We will pay the cash expenses to be incurred in connection with the exchange offer. They include:

\* Commission registration fees for the exchange notes,

- fees and expenses of the exchange agent and trustee,
- accounting and legal fees,
- \* printing costs, and
- related fees and expenses.

#### **Transfer Taxes**

If you tender your old notes for exchange, you will not be required to pay any transfer taxes. We will pay all transfer taxes, if any, applicable to the exchange of old notes in the exchange offer. The tendering holder will, however, be required to pay any transfer taxes, whether imposed on the registered holder or any other person, if:

- \* certificates representing exchange notes or old notes for principal amounts not tendered or accepted for exchange are to be delivered to, or are to be issued in the name of, any person other than the registered holder of old notes tendered,
- \* tendered old notes are registered in the name of any person other than the person signing the letter of transmittal, or
- \* a transfer tax is imposed for any reason other than the exchange of old notes for exchange notes in the exchange offer.

If satisfactory evidence of payment of any transfer taxes payable by a tendering holder is not submitted with the letter of transmittal, the amount of such transfer taxes will be billed directly to that tendering holder. The exchange agent will retain possession of exchange notes with a face amount equal to the amount of the transfer taxes due until it receives payment of the taxes.

#### Consequences of Failure to Exchange

If you do not exchange your old notes for exchange notes in the exchange offer, you will remain subject to the existing restrictions on transfer of the old notes. In general, you may not offer or sell the old notes unless either they are registered under the Securities Act of 1933 or the offer or sale is exempt from or not subject to registration under the Securities Act of 1933 and applicable state securities laws. Except as required by the registration rights agreement, we do not intend to register resales of the old notes under the Securities Act of 1933. Therefore, the market for secondary resales of old notes that are not tendered for exchange is likely to be limited.

The tender of old notes in the exchange offer will reduce the outstanding principal amount of the old notes. Due to the corresponding reduction in liquidity, this may have an adverse effect upon, and increase the volatility of, the market price of any old notes that you continue to hold.

## **Accounting Treatment**

We will amortize our expenses of the exchange offer over the term of the exchange notes.

#### Other

Participation in the exchange offer is voluntary, and you should carefully consider whether to accept. You are urged to consult your financial and tax advisors in making your decision on what action to take. In the future, we may seek to acquire untendered old notes in open market or privately negotiated transactions, through subsequent exchange offers or otherwise. We have no present plan to acquire any old notes that are not tendered in the exchange offer or to file a registration statement to permit resales of any untendered

old notes, except as required by the registration rights agreement.

Each broker-dealer that receives exchange notes for its own account in exchange for old notes, where such old notes were acquired by such broker-dealer as a result of market-making activities or other trading activities, must acknowledge that it will deliver a prospectus in connection with any resale of such exchange notes. See "Plan of Distribution".

#### **DESCRIPTION OF THE NOTES**

# General

We will issue the exchange notes, and we issued the old notes, under an indenture, dated as of March 1, 2002, between us and The Bank of New York, as trustee (the "Indenture"), which we have filed with the Commission. The terms of the notes include those set forth in the Indenture and those made a part of the Indenture by the Trust Indenture Act of 1939.

The following description is a summary of the material provisions of the notes and the Indenture. This summary is not complete and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the Indenture, including the definitions of certain terms. You should carefully read the summary below and the provisions of the Indenture that may be important to you before investing in the notes. Copies of the Indenture are available at the offices of the Trustee.

We may issue debt securities from time to time in one or more series under the Indenture. There is no limitation on the amount of debt securities we may issue under the Indenture. Securities issued under the Indenture, including the notes, are sometimes hereinafter referred to as "Indenture Securities."

The old notes and the exchange notes will vote and consent together on all matters as one class and none of the notes will have the right to vote or consent as a class separate from one another on any matter. Accordingly, in determining whether the required holders have given any notice, consent or waiver or taken any other action permitted under the Indenture, any old notes that remain outstanding after the exchange offer will be aggregated with the exchange notes, and the holders of the old notes and the exchange notes will vote together as a single series. All references in this prospectus to specified percentages in aggregate principal amount of the old notes means, at any time

after the exchange offer is consummated, the percentages in aggregate principal amount of the old notes and the exchange notes collectively then outstanding.

We have included cross-references in the summary below to refer you to the section numbers of the Indenture we are describing.

#### Ranking of the Notes

The notes will:

- be general unsecured obligations, and
- rank equally with all of our other unsecured and unsubordinated indebtedness from time to time outstanding.

#### Principal, Maturity and Interest

The notes will mature on March 15, 2007. The notes are initially limited to \$225,000,000 in aggregate principal amount. However, we may issue additional notes of this series from time to time, with the same ranking and terms as the notes (other than the issue date and in some cases, the first interest payment date) without the consent of the holders of the notes.

Interest on the notes will:

- \* accrue at the rate of 6.00% per year from March 13, 2002,
- \* be payable semi-annually in arrears on each March 15 and September 15, commencing September 15, 2002,
- \* be payable to the person in whose name the notes are registered at the close of business on the relevant March 1 and September 1 preceding the applicable interest payment date, which we refer to as "regular record dates,"
- be computed on the basis of a 360-day year comprised of twelve 30-day months, and
- \* be payable on overdue interest to the extent permitted by law at the same rate as interest is payable on principal.

If any interest payment date, the maturity date or any redemption date falls on a day that is not a Business Day, the payment will be made on the next Business Day with the same force and effect as if made on the relevant interest payment date, maturity date or redemption date. Unless we default on a payment, no interest will accrue for the period from and after the applicable maturity or redemption date.

"Business Day" means, with respect to the notes, any day other than (1) a Saturday or a Sunday or (2) a day on which banking institutions in the Borough of Manhattan, The City of New York, and the State of New York or the State of Missouri, are not authorized or obligated by law or executive order to close.

#### **Optional Redemption**

We may redeem the notes at our option at any time, upon no more than 60 and not less than 30 days' notice by mail. We may redeem the notes either as a whole or in part at a redemption price equal to the greater of (1) 100% of the principal amount of the notes being redeemed and (2) the sum of the present values of the remaining scheduled payments of principal and interest on the notes being redeemed (excluding the portion of any such interest accrued to the date of redemption) discounted (for purposes of determining present value) to the redemption date on a semi-annual basis (assuming a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months) at the Treasury Rate (as defined below) plus 25 basis points, plus, in each case, accrued interest thereon to the date of redemption.

"Treasury Rate" means, with respect to any redemption date, the rate per year equal to the semi-annual equivalent yield to maturity of the Comparable Treasury Issue, assuming a price for the Comparable Treasury Issue (expressed as a percentage of its principal amount) equal to the Comparable Treasury Price for such redemption date.

"Comparable Treasury Issue" means the United States Treasury security selected by an Independent Investment Banker as having a maturity comparable to the remaining term of the notes that would be utilized, at the time of selection and in accordance with customary financial practice, in pricing new issues of corporate debt securities of comparable maturity to the remaining term of the notes.

"Comparable Treasury Price" means, with respect to any redemption date, (1) the average of the bid and asked prices for the Comparable Treasury Issue (expressed in each case as a percentage of its principal amount) on the third Business Day preceding such redemption date, as set forth in the daily statistical release (or any successor release) published by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York and designated "Composite 3:30 p.m. Quotations for U.S. Government Securities" or (2) if such release (or any successor release) is not published or does not contain such prices on such third Business Day, the Reference Treasury Dealer Quotation for such redemption date.

"Independent Investment Banker" means one of the Reference Treasury Dealers appointed by us and reasonably acceptable to the Trustee.

"Reference Treasury Dealer" means a primary U.S. government securities dealer in New York City selected by us and reasonably acceptable to the Trustee.

"Reference Treasury Dealer Quotation" means, with respect to the Reference Treasury Dealer and any redemption date, the average, as determined by the Trustee, of the bid and asked prices for the Comparable Treasury Issue (expressed in each case as a percentage of its

principal amount) quoted in writing to the Trustee by such Reference Treasury Dealer at or before 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on the third Business Day preceding such redemption date.

If less than all of the notes are to be redeemed, the Trustee shall select, in such manner as in its sole discretion it shall deem appropriate and fair, the portion of notes to be redeemed. (Section 3.02)

#### **Payments and Paying Agents**

Payment of principal of and premium, if any, on the notes will be made against surrender of notes at the principal offices of the Trustee. Payment of any installment of interest on notes will be made to the person in whose name such note is registered at the close of business on the record date for such interest. Payments of such interest will be made at the principal offices of the Trustee, or by a check mailed to each holder of a note at such holder's registered address.

All moneys paid by the Company to a paying agent for the payment of principal of, premium, if any, or interest, if any, on any note that remain unclaimed at the end of two years after such principal, premium or interest shall have become due and payable will be repaid to us and the holder of such note entitled to receive such payment will thereafter look only to us for payment thereof. (Section 12.05) However, any such payment shall be subject to escheat pursuant to state abandoned property laws.

#### Consolidation, Merger and Sale

The Indenture permits us, without the consent of the holders of any of the notes, to consolidate with or merge into any other corporation or sell, transfer or lease its assets as an entirety or substantially as an entirety to any person, provided that: (i) the successor corporation formed by or surviving any such consolidation or merger, or the person to which such sale, transfer or lease shall have been made (the "Successor") is a corporation organized under the laws of the United States of America or any state thereof; (ii) the Successor assumes the Company's obligations under the Indenture and the Indenture Securities; (iii) immediately after giving effect to the transaction, no Event of Default (see "Default and Certain Rights on Default") and no event that, after notice or lapse of time, or both, would become an Event of Default, shall have occurred and be continuing; and (iv) certain other conditions are met. (Section 11.02) The Indenture does not restrict the merger of another corporation into the Company. The Successor, other than a Successor by reason of a lease of our properties, will succeed to the Company's rights and obligations under the Indenture and the Indenture Securities and the Company will be relieved of its obligations.

These provisions will not, however, be applicable to the sale, transfer or lease by us to an affiliated company of facilities used for the generation of electricity (and not used for the transmission or distribution of electric energy), provided that all such sales, transfers or leases occurring after the date of the Indenture shall not in the aggregate represent assets with a depreciated value on our books, calculated with respect to the assets sold, transferred or leased at the time of such sale, transfer or lease, in excess of 65% of the depreciated value on our books of our total assets as set forth in our most recent Form 10-K or Form 10-O filing.

#### **Modification of the Indenture**

The Indenture contains provisions permitting us and the Trustee, without the consent of the holders of the Indenture Securities (including the notes), to establish, among other things, the form and terms of any series of Indenture Securities issuable thereunder by one or more supplemental indentures, and, with the consent of the holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Indenture Securities of any series at the time outstanding (including the notes), evidenced as in the Indenture provided, to execute supplemental indentures adding any provisions to or changing in any manner or eliminating any of the provisions of the Indenture or of any supplemental indenture with respect to Indenture Securities of such series, or modifying in any manner the rights of the holders of the Indenture Securities of such series; provided, however, that no such supplemental indenture shall (i) extend the fixed maturity, or the earlier optional date of maturity, if any, of any Indenture Security of a particular series or reduce the principal amount thereof or the premium thereon, if any, or reduce the rate of payment of interest thereon, or make the principal thereof or premium, if any, or interest thereon payable in any coin or currency other than that provided in the Indenture Security, without the consent of the holder of each Indenture Security so affected, or (ii) reduce the principal amount of Indenture Securities of any series, the holders of which are required to consent to any such supplemental indenture, without the consent of the holders of all Indenture Securities of such series outstanding thereunder. (Sections 10.01 and 10.02)

# **Default and Certain Rights on Default**

The Indenture provides that the Trustee or the holders of 33% or more in aggregate principal amount of Indenture Securities of a series outstanding thereunder may declare the principal of all Indenture Securities of such series to be due and payable immediately, if any Event of Default with respect to such series of Indenture Securities shall occur and be continuing. However, if all defaults with respect to Indenture Securities of such series (other than non-payment of accelerated principal) are cured, the holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Indenture Securities of such series outstanding thereunder may waive the default and rescind the declaration and its consequences. Events of Default with respect to a series of Indenture Securities include (unless specifically deleted in the supplemental indenture or Board Resolution under which such series of Indenture Securities is issued, or modified in any such supplemental indenture or Board Resolution):

- (i) failure to pay interest when due on any Indenture Security of such series, continued for 30 days;
- (ii) failure to pay principal or premium, if any, when due on any Indenture Security of such series, continued for 1 business day;
- (iii) failure to perform any of our other covenants in the Indenture or the Indenture Securities of such series (other than a covenant included in the Indenture or the Indenture Securities solely for the benefit of series of Indenture Securities other than such series), continued for 60 days after written notice from the Trustee or the holders of 33% or more in aggregate principal amount of the Indenture Securities of such series outstanding thereunder;
  - (iv) certain events of bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization; and
  - (v) any other Event of Default as may be specified for such series. (Section 6.01)

The Indenture provides that the holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Indenture Securities of any series outstanding thereunder (including the notes) may, subject to certain exceptions, direct the time, method and place of conducting any proceeding for any remedy available to, or exercising any power or trust conferred upon, the Trustee with respect to Indenture Securities of such series and may on behalf of all holders of Indenture Securities of such series waive any past default and its consequences with respect to Indenture

Securities of such series, except a default in the payment of the principal of or premium, if any, or interest on any of the Indenture Securities of such series. (Section 6.06)

Holders of Indenture Securities of any series may not institute any proceeding to enforce the Indenture unless the Trustee thereunder shall have refused or neglected to act for 60 days after a request and offer of satisfactory indemnity by the holders of 33% or more in aggregate principal amount of the Indenture Securities of such series outstanding thereunder, but the right of any holder of Indenture Securities of any series to enforce payment of principal of or premium, if any, or interest on the holder's Indenture Securities when due shall not be impaired. (Section 6.04)

The Trustee is required to give the holders of Indenture Securities of any series notice of defaults with respect to such series (Events of Default summarized above, exclusive of any grace period and irrespective of any requirement that notice of default be given) known to it within 90 days after the happening thereof, unless cured before the giving of such notice, but, except for defaults in payments of principal of, premium, if any, or interest on the Indenture Securities of such series, the Trustee may withhold notice if and so long as it determines in good faith that the withholding of such notice is in the interests of such holders. (Section 6.07)

We are required to deliver to the Trustee each year an Officers' Certificate stating whether such officers have obtained knowledge of any default by us in the performance of certain covenants and, if so, specifying the nature thereof. (Section 4.06)

#### **Concerning the Trustee**

The Indenture provides that the Trustee shall, prior to the occurrence of any Event of Default with respect to the Indenture Securities of any series and after the curing or waiving of all Events of Default with respect to such series which have occurred, perform only such duties as are specifically set forth in the Indenture. During the existence of any Event of Default with respect to the Indenture Securities of any series, the Trustee shall exercise such of the rights and powers vested in it under the Indenture with respect to such series and use the same degree of care and skill in their exercise as a prudent man would exercise or use under the circumstances in the conduct of his own affairs. (Section 7.01)

The Trustee may acquire and hold Indenture Securities and, subject to certain conditions, otherwise deal with us as if it were not the Trustee under the Indenture. (Section 7.04)

As of December 31, 2001, The Bank of New York, which is the Trustee for the notes under the Indenture, was the trustee for \$1,117.9 million of our secured and unsecured debt under eight separate indentures executed between 1992 and 2000. The Bank of New York is also a depository for funds and performs other services for, and transacts other banking business with, us and our affiliates in the normal course of business and may do so in the future.

#### Satisfaction and Discharge of Indenture; Defeasance

The Indenture may be discharged upon payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on all the Indenture Securities and all other sums due under the Indenture. In addition, the Indenture provides that if, at any time after the date of the Indenture, we, if so permitted with respect to Indenture Securities of a particular series, shall deposit with the Trustee, in trust for the benefit of the holders thereof, (i) funds sufficient to pay, or (ii) such amount of obligations issued or guaranteed by the United States of America as will, or will together with the income thereon without consideration of any reinvestment thereof, be sufficient to pay all sums due for principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Indenture Securities of such series, as they shall become due from time to time, and certain other conditions are met, the Trustee shall cancel and satisfy the Indenture with respect to such series to the extent provided therein. (Sections 12.01 and 12.02)

# Sinking Fund

We are not obligated to make mandatory redemption or sinking fund payments with respect to the notes.

#### Notices

Holders of the notes will receive notices by mail at their addresses as they appear in the security register. (Section 15.04)

# **Governing Law**

New York law will govern the Indenture and the notes.

#### **REGISTRATION RIGHTS AGREEMENT**

In connection with the issuance of the old notes, we entered into a registration rights agreement with the initial purchasers of the old notes pursuant to which we obligated ourselves to:

- \* prepare and file not later than 90 days after the date of issuance of the old notes a registration statement under the Securities Act of 1933 relating to an exchange offer of the exchange notes for the old notes,
- \* use our best efforts to cause the exchange offer registration statement to be declared effective under the Securities Act of 1933 within 180 days after the date of issuance of the old notes and to keep the exchange offer registration statement effective for not less than 20 Business Days (or longer, if required by applicable law) after the date notice of the registered exchange offer is mailed to the registered holders of the old notes, and
- \* unless the exchange offer would not be permitted by applicable law or Commission policy, to cause the exchange offer to be consummated no later than 30 days after the exchange offer registration statement is declared effective.

Upon the exchange offer registration statement being declared effective, we will promptly offer the exchange notes in exchange for surrender of the old notes. We obligated ourselves to keep the exchange offer open for not less than 20 Business Days (or longer if required by applicable law) after the date on which notice of the exchange offer is mailed to the registered holders of the old notes. We must consummate the exchange offer within 30 days of the effectiveness of the exchange offer registration statement. For each old note validly

tendered to us pursuant to the exchange offer and not withdrawn by the holder thereof, the holder of such note will receive an exchange note having a principal amount equal to that of the surrendered note. Interest on each exchange note will accrue from the last interest payment date on which interest was paid on the note surrendered in exchange therefor or, if no interest has been paid on such note, from the date of the original issuance of the note. The exchange notes will vote together with the old notes on all matters in which holders of old notes or exchange notes are entitled to vote.

Under the registration rights agreement, in the event that:

- changes in law or the applicable interpretations of the Staff do not permit us to effect the exchange offer,
- the exchange offer is not consummated on or prior to the 210th day following the closing date,
- \* following consummation of the exchange offer, any initial purchaser so requests with respect to notes held by such initial purchaser and not eligible to be exchanged in the exchange offer, or
- any holder of notes (except exchanging dealers) not eligible to participate in the exchange offer or that participates in the exchange offer but does not receive freely tradable notes so requests,

then (the date on which the conditions described in the first two bullets above occur or the date on which the notice described under the third or fourth bullet above is given, the "trigger date") we will at our cost:

- \* promptly (no later than the 90th day after the trigger date), file with the Commission a "shelf" registration statement to cover resales of the notes,
- \* use our best efforts to cause the shelf registration statement to be declared effective under the Securities Act of 1933 no later than the 180th day after the trigger date, and
- \* use our best efforts to keep the shelf registration statement effective until two years (or such longer period if there are certain "black out" periods) after the shelf registration statement is declared effective or until all of the notes covered by the shelf registration statement have been sold or are no longer restricted securities.

We will have the ability to suspend the availability of the shelf registration statement during certain "black out" periods.

In the event of the filing of the shelf registration statement, we will provide to each relevant holder of notes copies of the prospectus which is a part of the shelf registration statement and will notify each such holder when the shelf registration statement has become effective.

A holder of notes that sells notes pursuant to the shelf registration statement generally will be required to be named as a selling security holder in the related prospectus and to deliver a prospectus to the purchasers, will be subject to certain of the civil liability provisions under the Securities Act of 1933 in connection with such sales and will be bound by the provisions of the registration rights agreement that are applicable to such a holder (including certain indemnification obligations). We may require such holder to provide us with information about itself that we may, from time to time, reasonably require for inclusion in the shelf registration statement and the related prospectus and we may exclude from such registration any holder that unreasonably fails to furnish such information within a reasonable time after receiving such request.

Under the registration rights agreement, in the event that:

- \* we fail to file the exchange offer registration statement or the shelf registration statement with the Commission on or prior to the 90th day following the date of issuance of the notes or the trigger date, as the case may be,
- \* the exchange offer registration statement or the shelf registration statement is not declared effective by the Commission on or prior to the 180th day following the date of issuance of the notes or the trigger date, as the case may be,
- \* the exchange offer is not consummated on or prior to the 30th day after the exchange offer registration statement has been declared effective, or
- \* any required exchange offer registration statement or shelf registration statement relating to the notes is filed and declared effective but thereafter either ceases to be effective or cannot be used to sell the notes because (1) an event occurs as a result of which the related prospectus forming part of such registration statement contains any untrue statement of a material fact or omits to state any material fact necessary to make the statements therein in light of the circumstances under which they were made not misleading, or (2) it shall be necessary to amend such registration statement or supplement the related prospectus to comply with the Securities Act of 1933 or Securities Exchange Act of 1934 or the respective rules thereunder (each such event listed in the four bullet points above, a "registration default").

then the interest rate borne by the notes which are "transfer restricted securities" (as defined below) will be increased by 0.25% per year upon the occurrence of such registration default, which rate will increase by an additional 0.25% per year if such registration default has not been cured within 90 days after the occurrence thereof and similar such increases shall occur for each succeeding 90 day period until all registration defaults have been cured, provided that the aggregate amount of any such increase in the interest rate on the notes shall in no

event exceed 1.00% per year; and provided, further, that a registration default will be deemed not to have occurred in relation to a shelf registration statement or the related prospectus if such registration default has occurred solely as a result of:

- \* the filing of a post-effective amendment to the shelf registration statement to incorporate annual audited financial information with respect to us where such post-effective amendment needs to be declared effective to permit holders to use the related prospectus or shelf registration; or
- \* other material events with respect to us that need to be described in the related prospectus or shelf registration statement and we are proceeding promptly and in good faith to amend or supplement such documents accordingly;

provided however that in case such registration default occurs for a continuous period of more than 30 days, additional interest shall be payable from the date of such default until the default is cured. All accrued additional interest will be paid to holders of notes in the same manner and at the same time as regular payments of interest on the notes. Following the cure of all registration defaults, the accrual of additional interest will cease and the interest rate will revert to the original rate.

A "Transfer Restricted Security" is a note until (1) the date on which such note has been exchanged by a person other than a broker-dealer for a freely transferable new note in the exchange offer, (2) following the exchange by a broker-dealer in the exchange offer of such note for a new note, the date on which such new note is sold to a purchaser who received a copy of the exchange registration statement and related prospectus on or prior to the date of such sale, (3) the date on which such note has been effectively registered under the Securities Act of 1933 and disposed of in accordance with the shelf registration statement or (4) the date on which such note is distributed to the public pursuant to Rule 144 under the Securities Act of 1933 or is saleable pursuant to Rule 144(k) under the Securities Act of 1933.

If you desire to tender your old notes, you will be required to make to us the representations described under "The Exchange Offer -- Procedures for Tendering -- Your Representations to Us" to participate in the exchange offer. In addition, we may require you to deliver information that we will use in connection with the shelf registration statement to have your old notes included in the shelf registration statement and benefit from the provisions regarding additional interest described in the preceding paragraphs. If you sell old notes under the shelf registration statement, you generally will:

- \* be required to be named as a selling securityholder in the related prospectus and to deliver a prospectus to purchasers,
- \* be subject to applicable civil liability provisions under the Securities Act of 1933 in connection with those sales, and
- \* be bound by the provisions of the registration rights agreement applicable to you.

This description of the registration rights agreement is a summary only. For more information, you may read the provisions of the agreement, which we have filed with the SEC. See "Where You Can Find More Information".

# **BOOK ENTRY; DELIVERY AND FORM**

We will issue the exchange notes in the form of one or more permanent global notes in definitive, fully registered, book-entry form, without interest coupons (collectively, the "Global Note"). The Global Note will be deposited with or on behalf of DTC and registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, or will remain in the custody of the trustee in accordance with the FAST Balance Certificate Agreement between DTC and the trustee. The Global Note will be deposited on behalf of the acquirors of the exchange notes for credit to the respective accounts of the acquirors or to such other accounts as they may direct at DTC. Please read "The Exchange Offer -- Book-Entry Transfer."

Except as set forth below, each Global Note may be transferred, in whole and not in part, solely to another nominee of DTC or to a successor of DTC or its nominee. Beneficial interests in the Global Note may not be exchanged for notes in definitive form.

All interests in the Global Note may be subject to the procedures and requirements of DTC.

Notes in definitive form will be issued to each person that DTC identifies as the beneficial owner of the notes represented by the Global Note, upon surrender by DTC of the Global Note, if:

- \* we notify the Trustee in writing that DTC or any successor depositary (the "Depositary") is no longer willing or able to act as a depositary for the Global Note or DTC ceases to be registered as a clearing agency under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and a successor depositary is not appointed within 90 days of such notice or cessation, or
- \* we, at our option, notify the Trustee in writing that we elect to cause the issuance of notes in definitive form under the Indenture.

Neither we nor the Trustee shall be liable for any delay by the Depositary, its nominee or any direct or indirect participant in identifying the beneficial owners of the related notes, and each such person may conclusively rely on, and shall be protected in relying on, instructions from such Depositary or nominee for all purposes (including with respect to the registration and delivery, and the respective principal amounts, of the notes to be issued).

The descriptions of the operations and procedures of DTC set forth below are provided solely as a matter of convenience. These operations and procedures are solely within the control of DTC and are subject to change by DTC from time to time. We do not take any responsibility for the operations or procedures of DTC, and investors are urged to contact DTC or its participants directly to discuss these matters.

According to DTC, the following information with respect to DTC has been provided to the industry for informational purposes only and is not intended to serve as a representation, warranty, or contract modification of any kind. We have obtained the information in this section

concerning DTC and DTC's book-entry system from sources that we believe are reliable. However, we take no responsibility for the accuracy of this information.

DTC is:

- \* a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York Banking Law,
- \* a "banking organization" within the meaning of the New York Banking Law.
- \* a member of the Federal Reserve System,
- \* a "clearing corporation" within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and
- \* a "clearing agency" registered under Section 17A of the Exchange Act.

DTC holds securities that its participants deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the clearance and settlement among participants of securities transactions, such as transfers and pledges, in deposited securities through electronic computerized book-entry changes in participants' accounts, thereby eliminating the need for physical movement of securities certificates. Direct participants include:

- securities brokers and dealers,
- banks,
- \* trust companies, and
- \* clearing corporations and some other organizations.

DTC is owned by a number of its direct participants and by The New York Stock Exchange, Inc., the American Stock Exchange LLC, and the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. Access to DTC's book-entry system is also available to others, such as securities brokers and dealers, banks and trust companies that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a direct participant, either directly or indirectly, which we refer to as "indirect participants." The rules applicable to DTC and its participants are on file with the SEC.

Upon our issuance of notes represented by a Global Note, purchases of notes under the DTC system must be made by or through direct participants, which will receive a credit for the notes on DTC's records. The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each note, which we refer to as a "beneficial owner," is in turn to be recorded on the direct and indirect participants' records. Beneficial owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase. However, beneficial owners are expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the direct or indirect participant through which the beneficial owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the notes are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of participants acting on behalf of beneficial owners. Beneficial owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership interests in notes, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the notes is discontinued. The laws of some states require that certain purchasers of securities take physical delivery of such securities in definitive certificated form. Such laws may impair the ability to transfer beneficial interests in a Global Note.

So long as the Depositary for the Global Note, or its nominee, is the registered owner of the Global Note, the Depositary or its nominee, as the case may be, will be considered the sole owner or holder of the notes represented by the Global Note for all purposes under the Indenture. Except as described above, beneficial owners will not:

- \* Be entitled to have notes represented by the Global Note registered in their names,
- Receive or be entitled to receive physical delivery of notes in definitive certificated form, and
- \* be considered the owners or holders thereof under the Indenture.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all notes deposited by participants with DTC are registered in the name of DTC's partnership nominee, Cede & Co. The deposit of notes with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. effect no change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual beneficial owners of the notes. DTC's records reflect only the identity of the direct participants to whose accounts the notes are credited, which may or may not be the beneficial owners. The participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers. Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to direct participants, by direct participants to indirect participants, and by direct participants and indirect participants to beneficial owners will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. will consent or vote with respect to notes. Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an omnibus proxy to us as soon as possible after the record date. The omnibus proxy assigns Cede & Co.'s consenting or voting rights to those direct participants to whose accounts the notes are credited on the record date, identified in a listing attached to the omnibus proxy.

We will make payments of principal, premium, if any, and interest on the notes represented by the Global Note registered in the name of the Depositary or its nominee through the Trustee or a paying agent to the Depositary or its nominee, as the case may be, as the registered owner of the Global Note. Neither we, the Trustee, nor the paying agent will have any responsibility or liability for any aspect of the records relating to or payments made on account of beneficial ownership interests of the Global Note or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing any records relating to such beneficial ownership interests.

We have been advised that DTC will credit direct participants' accounts on the payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC's records unless DTC has reason to believe that it will not receive payment on the payable date. Payments by participants to beneficial owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of

customers registered in "street name," and will be the responsibility of such participant and not of DTC, the paying agent, or us, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Payment of principal, premium, if any, and interest to DTC is either our responsibility or the responsibility of the paying agent. Disbursement of these payments to direct participants is the responsibility of DTC. Disbursement of these payments to the beneficial owners is the responsibility of direct and indirect participants.

DTC may discontinue providing its services as securities Depositary with respect to the notes at any time by giving us reasonable notice. Under such circumstances, in the event that we do not obtain a successor securities Depositary, notes will be registered in such names as DTC shall direct and will be delivered to such persons. Additionally, we may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry transfers through DTC (or a successor Depositary) with respect to the notes. In that event, notes will be registered in such names as DTC shall direct and will be delivered to such persons.

We cannot assure you that DTC will distribute payments on the notes made to DTC or its nominee as the registered owner or any redemption or other notices to the participants, or that the participants or others will distribute the payments or notices to the beneficial owners, or that they will do so on a timely basis, or that DTC will serve and act in the manner described in this prospectus. Beneficial owners should make appropriate arrangements with their broker or dealer regarding distribution of information regarding the notes that may be transmitted by or through DTC.

#### FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSEQUENCES

We have based the following discussion on the current provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, applicable Treasury regulations, judicial authority and administrative rulings and practice. We can give you no assurance that the Internal Revenue Service will not take a contrary view, and we have not obtained an opinion of counsel and have not sought and will not seek a ruling from the IRS. Legislative, judicial or administrative changes or interpretations may be forthcoming that could alter or modify the statements and conditions described in this section. These changes or interpretations may be retroactive and could affect the tax consequences to you. If you are an insurance company, tax-exempt organization, financial institution, broker-dealer, foreign corporation or person who is not a citizen or resident of the United States, you may be subject to special rules we have not discussed. WE RECOMMEND THAT YOU CONSULT YOUR OWN TAX ADVISOR AS TO THE PARTICULAR TAX CONSEQUENCES OF EXCHANGING YOUR OLD NOTES FOR EXCHANGE NOTES, INCLUDING THE APPLICABILITY AND EFFECT OF ANY STATE, LOCAL OR FOREIGN TAX LAWS.

We believe that the exchange of old notes for exchange notes in the exchange offer will not be treated as an exchange for federal income tax purposes, because the exchange notes will not be considered to differ materially in kind or extent from the old notes. Rather, the exchange notes you receive should be treated as a continuation of the old notes in your hands. As a result, there should be no federal income tax consequences to your exchanging old notes for exchange notes in the exchange offer.

#### **PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION**

Each broker-dealer that receives exchange notes for its own account pursuant to the Exchange Offer must acknowledge that it will deliver a prospectus in connection with any resale of such exchange notes. This prospectus, as it may be amended or supplemented from time to time, may be used by a broker-dealer in connection with resales of exchange notes received in exchange for old notes where such old notes were acquired as a result of market-making activities or other trading activities. We have agreed that, for a period of 180 days after the Expiration Date, we will make this prospectus, as amended or supplemented, available to any broker-dealer for use in connection with any such resale.

We will not receive any proceeds from any sale of exchange notes by broker-dealers. Exchange notes received by broker-dealers for their own account pursuant to the Exchange Offer may be sold from time to time in one or more transactions

- \* in the over-the-counter market,
- \* in negotiated transactions,
- \* through the writing of options on the exchange notes,
- \* or a combination of such methods of resale,

at market prices prevailing at the time of resale, at prices related to such prevailing market prices or negotiated prices.

Any such resale may be made

- \* Directly to purchasers or
- \* to or through brokers or dealers who may receive compensation in the form of commissions or concessions from any such broker-dealer or the purchasers of any such exchange notes.

Based on interpretations by the Staff of the Commission, any broker-dealer that resells exchange notes that were received by it for its own account pursuant to the Exchange Offer and any broker or dealer that participates in a distribution of such exchange notes may be deemed to be an "underwriter" within the meaning of the Securities Act of 1933 and any profit on any such resale of exchange notes and any commission or concessions received by any such persons may be deemed to be underwriting compensation under the Securities Act of 1933. The letter of transmittal states that, by acknowledging that it will deliver and by delivering a prospectus, a broker-dealer will not be deemed to admit that it is an "underwriter" within the meaning of the Securities Act of 1933.

For a period of 180 days after the Expiration Date we will promptly send additional copies of this prospectus and any amendment or supplement to this prospectus to any broker-dealer that requests such documents in the letter of transmittal. We have agreed to pay all expenses incident to the Exchange Offer (including the expenses of one counsel for the holders of the notes) other than commissions or concessions of any brokers or dealers and will indemnify the holders of the notes (including any broker-dealers) against certain liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act of 1933.

If you wish to exchange your old notes for exchange notes in the exchange offer, you will be required to make representations to us as described in "The Exchange Offer--Procedures for Tendering--Your Representations to Us" of this prospectus and in the letter of transmittal.

#### TRANSFER RESTRICTIONS ON THE OLD NOTES

The old notes were not registered under the Securities Act of 1933. Accordingly, we offered and sold the old notes only in private sales exempt from or not subject to the registration requirements of the Securities Act of 1933 to qualified institutional buyers under Rule 144A

under the Securities Act of 1933.

You may not offer or sell those old notes in the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons except in transactions exempt from or not subject to the Securities Act of 1933 registration requirements.

#### LEGAL MATTERS

Legal matters with respect to the exchange notes will be passed upon for the Company by Jeanie Sell Latz, Esq., Corporate Secretary. At December 31, 2001, Ms. Latz owned beneficially 44,543 shares of Great Plains Energy's common stock, including options grants and shares which may be acquired at a later date based on corporate and Ms. Latz's individual performance.

#### **EXPERTS**

The consolidated financial statements incorporated in this Prospectus by reference to the Form 10-K of Kansas City Power & Light Company (a wholly-owned subsidiary of Great Plains Energy Incorporated) for the year ended December 31, 2001 (as amended), except as they relate to DTI Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Debtors-in-Possession), have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, independent accountants, whose report thereon appears in the Form 10-K (as amended). The report (which contains an explanatory paragraph relating to Kansas City Power & Light Company's corporate reorganization as described in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements) of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP referred to above, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for DTI Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries, is based solely on the report of Deloitte & Touche LLP. The financial statements of DTI Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Debtors-in-Possession) (not presented separately or incorporated by reference herein) have been audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, independent auditors, as stated in their report (which expresses an unqualified opinion and includes explanatory paragraphs referring to DTI Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries' filing for reorganization under Chapter 11 of the Federal Bankruptcy Code, substantial doubt about DTI Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries' ability to continue as a going concern and an impairment charge recorded by DTI Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries' ability to continue as a going concern and an impairment charge recorded by DTI Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries' ability to continue as a going concern and an impairment charge recorded by DTI Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries' ability to continue as a going concern and an impairment charge recorded by DTI Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries' ability to continue as a going concern and an impairment charge recorded by DTI Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries' ability to continue as a going concern and an impairment charge recorded by DTI Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries' ability t

#### PART II

#### INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED IN PROSPECTUS

Item 20. Indemnification of Directors and Officers.

RSMo. Section 351.355 (2001) provides as follows:

- 1. A corporation created under the laws of this state may indemnify any person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, other than an action by or in the right of the corporation, by reason of the fact that he or she is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of the corporation, or is or was serving at the request of the corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, against expenses, including attorneys' fees, judgements, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by him or her in connection with such action, suit, or proceeding if he or she acted in good faith and in a manner he or she reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the corporation, and, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe his or her conduct was unlawful. The termination of any action, suit, or proceeding by judgment, order, settlement, conviction, or upon a plea of nolo contendere or its equivalent, shall not, of itself, create a presumption that the person did not act in good faith and in a manner which he or she reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the corporation, and, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, had reasonable cause to believe that his conduct was unlawful.
- 2. The corporation may indemnify any person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action or suit by or in the right of the corporation to procure a judgment in its favor by reason of the act that he or she is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of the corporation, or is or was serving at the request of the corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise against expenses, including attorneys' fees, and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by him or her in connection with the defense or settlement of the action or suit if he or she acted in good faith and in a manner he or she reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the corporation; except that no indemnification shall be made in respect of any claim, issue or matter as to which such person shall have been adjudged to be liable for negligence or misconduct in the performance of his or her duty to the corporation unless and only to the extent that the court in which the action or suit was brought determines upon application that, despite the adjudication of liability and in view of all the circumstances of the case, the person is fairly and reasonably entitled to indemnity for such expenses which the court shall deem proper.
- 3. Except as otherwise provided in the articles of incorporation or the bylaws, to the extent that a director, officer, employee or agent of the corporation has been successful on the merits or otherwise in defense of any action, suit, or proceeding referred to in subsections 1 and 2 of this section, or in defense of any claim, issue or matter therein, he or she shall be indemnified against expenses, including attorneys' fees, actually and reasonably incurred by him or her in connection with the action, suit or proceeding.
- 4. Any indemnification under subsections 1 and 2 of this section, unless ordered by a court, shall be made by the corporation only as authorized in the specific case upon a determination that indemnification of the director, officer, employee or agent is proper in the circumstances because he or she has met the applicable standard of conduct set forth in this section. The determination shall be made by the board of directors by a majority vote of a quorum consisting of directors who were not parties to the action, suit, or proceeding, or if such a quorum is not obtainable, or even if obtainable a quorum of disinterested directors so directs, by independent legal counsel in a written opinion, or by the shareholders.
- 5. Expenses incurred in defending a civil or criminal action, suit or proceeding may be paid by the corporation in advance of the final disposition of the action, suit, or proceeding as authorized by the board of directors in the specific case upon receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of the director, officer, employee or agent to repay such amount unless it shall ultimately be determined that he or she is entitled to be indemnified by the corporation as authorized in this section.

- 6. The indemnification provided by this section shall be deemed exclusive of any other rights to which those seeking indemnification may be entitled under the articles of incorporation or bylaws or any agreement, vote of shareholders or disinterested directors or otherwise, both as to action in his official capacity and as to action in another capacity while holding such office, and shall continue as to a person who has ceased to be a director, officer, employee or agent and shall inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors and administrators of such a person.
- 7. A corporation created under the laws of this state shall have the power to give any further indemnity, in addition to the indemnity authorized or contemplated under other subsections of this section, including subsection 6, to any person who is or was a director, officer, employee or agent, or to any person who is or was serving at the request of the corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, provided such further indemnity is either (i) authorized, directed, or provided for in the articles of incorporation of the corporation or any duly adopted amendment thereof or (ii) is authorized, directed, or provided for in any bylaw or agreement of the corporation which has been adopted by a vote of the shareholders of the corporation, and provided further that no such indemnity shall indemnify any person from or on account of such person's conduct which was finally adjudged to have been knowingly fraudulent, deliberately dishonest or willful misconduct. Nothing in this subsection shall be deemed to limit the power of the corporation under subsection 6 of this section to enact bylaws or to enter into agreements without shareholder adoption of the same.
- 8. The corporation may purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any person who is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of the corporation, or is or was serving at the request of the corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise against any liability asserted against him and incurred by him in any such capacity, or arising out of his status as such, whether or not the corporation would have the power to indemnify him against such liability under the provisions of this section.
- 9. Any provision of this chapter to the contrary notwithstanding, the provisions of this section shall apply to all existing and new domestic corporations, including but not limited to banks, trust companies, insurance companies, building and loan associations, savings bank and safe deposit companies, mortgage loan companies, corporations formed for benevolent, religious, scientific or educational purposes and nonprofit corporations.
- 10. For the purpose of this section, references to "the corporation" include all constituent corporations absorbed in a consolidation or merger as well as the resulting or surviving corporation so that any person who is or was a director, officer employee or agent of such a constituent corporation or is or was serving at the request of such constituent corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise shall stand n the same position under the provisions of this section with respect to the resulting or surviving corporation as he or she would if he or she had served the resulting or surviving corporation in the same capacity.
- 11. For purposes of this section, the term "other enterprise" shall include employee benefit plans; the term "fines" shall include any excise taxes assessed on a person with respect to an employee benefit plan; and the term "serving at the request of the corporation" shall include any service as a director, officer, employee, or agent of the corporation which imposes duties on, or involves services by, such director, officer, employee, or agent with respect to an employee benefit plan, its participants, or beneficiaries; and a person who acted in good faith and in a manner he reasonably believed to be in the interest of the participants and beneficiaries of an employee benefit plan shall be deemed to have acted in a manner "not opposed to the best interests of the corporation" as referred to in this section.

The officers and directors of the Company have entered into indemnification agreements with the Company indemnifying such officers and directors to the extent allowed under the above RSMo. Section 351.355 (2001).

Article XIII of the Restated Articles of Consolidation of the Company provides as follows:

ARTICLE THIRTEENTH. (a) Right to Indemnification. Each person who was or is made a party or is threatened to be made a party to any action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, by reason of the fact that he or she is or was a director or officer of the Company or is or was an employee of the Company acting within the scope and course of his or her employment or is or was serving at the request of the Company as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation or of a partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, including service with respect to employee benefit plans, shall be indemnified and held harmless by the Company to the fullest extent authorized by The Missouri General and Business Corporation Law, as the same exists or may hereafter be amended, against all expense, liability and loss (including attorneys' fees, judgments, fines, ERISA excise taxes or penalties and amounts paid to or to be paid in settlement) actually and reasonably incurred by such person in connection therewith. The Company may in its discretion by action of its Board of Directors provide indemnification to agents of the Company as provided for in this ARTICLE THIRTEENTH. Such indemnification shall continue as to a person who has ceased to be a director, officer, employee or agent and shall inure to the benefit of his or her heirs, executors and administrators.

- (b) Rights Not Exclusive. The indemnification and other rights provided by this ARTICLE THIRTEENTH shall not be deemed exclusive of any other rights to which a person may be entitled under any applicable law, By-laws of the Company, agreement, vote of shareholders or disinterested directors or otherwise, both as to action in such person's official capacity and as to action in any other capacity while holding the office of director or officer, and the Company is hereby expressly authorized by the shareholders of the Company to enter into agreements with its directors and officers which provide greater indemnification rights than that generally provided by The Missouri General and Business Corporation Law; provided, however, that no such further indemnity shall indemnify any person from or on account of such director's or officer's conduct which was finally adjudged to have been knowingly fraudulent, deliberately dishonest or willful misconduct. Any such agreement providing for further indemnity entered into pursuant to this ARTICLE THIRTEENTH after the date of approval of this ARTICLE THIRTEENTH by the Company's shareholders need not be further approved by the shareholders of the Company in order to be fully effective and enforceable.
- (c) Insurance. The Company may purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any person who was or is a director, officer, employee or agent of the Company, or was or is serving at the request of the Company as a director, officer, employee or agent of another company, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise against any liability asserted against or incurred by such person in any such capacity, or arising out of his or her status as such, whether or not the Company would have the power to indemnify such person against such liability under the provisions of this ARTICLE THIRTEENTH.
- (d) Amendment. This ARTICLE THIRTEENTH may be hereafter amended or repealed; however, no amendment or repeal shall reduce, terminate or otherwise adversely affect the right of a person entitled to obtain indemnification or an advance of expenses with respect to an action, suit or proceeding that pertains to or arises out of actions or omissions that occur prior to the later of (a) the effective date of such amendment or repeal; (b) the expiration date of such person's then current term of office with, or service for, the Company (provided such

person has a stated term of office or service and completes such term); or (c) the effective date such person resigns his or her office or terminates his or her service (provided such person has a stated term of office or service but resigns prior to the expiration of such term).

Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Act") may be permitted to directors, officers and controlling persons of Registrant pursuant to the foregoing provisions, or otherwise, Registrant has been advised that in the opinion of the Securities and Exchange Commission such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Act and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event that a claim for indemnification against such liabilities (other than the payment by Registrant of expenses incurred or paid by a director, officer or controlling person of Registrant in the successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding) is asserted against Registrant by such director, officer or controlling person in connection with the securities being registered, Registrant will, unless in the opinion of its counsel the matter has been settled by controlling precedent, submit to a court of appropriate jurisdiction the question whether such indemnification by it is against public policy as expressed in the Act and will be governed by the final adjudication of such issue.

Item 21. List of Exhibits.

Exhibit

Exhibit Number	Description of Exhibit
4.1	*Indenture dated March 1, 2002, between Kansas City Power & Light Company and The Bank of New York, as Trustee. (Exhibit 4.1.b to Form 10-Q for period ended March 31, 2002).
4.2	Company Order and Officer's Certificate Series A and Series B Notes, dated March 13, 2002.
4.3	Form of Company Order and Officer's Certificate Series B Notes, dated May, 2002.
4.4	*Registration Rights Agreement dated March 13, 2002, among Kansas City Power & Light Company, Banc of America Securities LLC and BNP Paribas Securities Corp. (Exhibit 4.2.b to Form 10-Q for period ended March 31, 2002).
5	Opinion and consent of Jeanie Sell Latz, Corporate Secretary.
12	Schedule of computation of ratio of earnings to fixed charges for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000, 1999, 1998 and 1997.
23.1	Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.
23.2	Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP.
23.3	Consent of Jeanie Sell Latz, Corporate Secretary (included as part of Exhibit 5).
24	Powers of Attorney.
25	Form T-1 Statement of Eligibility and Qualification of The Bank of New York, as Trustee under the Indenture, under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939.
99.1	Form of Letter of Transmittal
99.2	Form of Notice of Guaranteed Delivery
99.3	Form of Letter to Depository Trust Company Participants
99.4	Form of Letter to Clients
	* Incorporated herein by reference as indicated
	Item 22. Undertakings.

- (a) The undersigned Registrant hereby undertakes:
- (1) to file, during any period in which offers or sales are being made, a post-effective amendment to this Registration Statement: (i) to include any prospectus required by Section 10(a)(3) of the Securities Act of 1933; (ii) to reflect in the prospectus any facts or events arising after the effective date of the Registration Statement (or the most recent post-effective amendment thereof) which, individually or in the aggregate, represent a fundamental change in the information set forth in the Registration Statement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any increase or decrease in volume of securities offered (if the total dollar value of securities offered would not exceed that which was registered) and any deviation from the low or high end of the

estimated maximum offering range may be reflected in the form of prospectus filed with the Commission pursuant to Rule 424(b) if, in the aggregate, the changes in volume and price represent no more than a 20% change in the maximum aggregate offering price set forth in the "Calculation of Registration Fee" table in the effective registration statement; and (iii) to include any material information with respect to the plan of distribution not previously disclosed in the Registration Statement or any material change to such information in the Registration Statement; provided, however, that paragraphs (a)(1)(i) and (a)(1)(ii) do not apply if the information required to be included in a post-effective amendment by those paragraphs is contained in periodic reports filed with or furnished to the Commission by Registrant pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act that are incorporated by reference in the Registration Statement;

- (2) that, for the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each such post-effective amendment shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof; and
- (3) to remove from registration by means of a post-effective amendment any of the securities being registered which remain unsold at the termination of the offering.
- (b) The undersigned Registrant hereby undertakes that, for purposes of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each filing of Registrant's annual report pursuant to Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act that is incorporated by reference in this Registration Statement shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof.
- (c) See the last paragraph of Item 20.
- (d) The undersigned Registrant hereby undertakes to respond to requests for information that is incorporated by reference into the Prospectus pursuant to Items 4, 10(b), 11 or 13 of this Form, within one business day of receipt of such request, and to send the incorporated documents by first class mail or other equally prompt means. This includes information contained in documents filed subsequent to the effective date of the Registration Statement through the date of responding to the request.
  - e. The undersigned Registrant hereby undertakes to supply by means of a post-effective amendment all information concerning a transaction, and the company being acquired involved therein, that was not the subject of and included in the Registration Statement when it became effective.

#### **SIGNATURES**

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, the registrant certifies that it has reasonable grounds to believe that it meets all of the requirements for filing on Form S-4 and has duly caused this Registration Statement or amendment thereto to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Kansas City, State of Missouri, on the 10th day of May, 2002.

KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY

By: <u>/s/Bernard J. Beaudoin</u> (Bernard J. Beaudoin)

Chairman of the Board, President and Chief

**Executive Officer** 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, this Registration Statement or amendment has been signed below by the following persons in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

<u>Signature</u>	<u>Title</u>	<u>Date</u>
<u>/s/Bernard J. Beaudoin</u> (Bernard J. Beaudoin)	Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer	)
	(Principal Executive Officer)	)
<u>/s/Andrea F. Bielsker</u> (Andrea F. Bielsker)	Vice President-Finance, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer	)
(Andrea 1. Dielsker)	(Principal Financial Officer)	)
/s/Neil Roadman	Controller	)
(Neil Roadman)	(Principal Accounting Officer)	ý
David L. Bodde*	Director	)
(David L. Bodde)		)
Mark A. Ernst*	Director	) May 10, 2002
(Mark A. Ernst)		)
William K. Hall*	Director	)
(William K. Hall)		)

Luis A. Jimenez* (Luis A. Jimenez)	Director	)
William C. Nelson* (William C. Nelson)	Director	)
<u>Linda Hood Talbott*</u> (Linda Hood Talbott)	Director	)
Robert H. West* (Robert H. West) *By: /s/Bernard J. Beaudoin (Bernard J. Beaudoin) Attorney-in-fact	Director	)

# INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit Number	Description of Exhibit
4.1	*Indenture dated March 1, 2002, between Kansas City Power & Light Company and The Bank of New York, as Trustee. (Exhibit 4.1.b to Form 10-Q for period ended March 31, 2002)
4.2	Company Order and Officer's Certificate Series A and Series B Notes, dated March 13, 2002.
4.3	Form of Company Order and Officer's Certificate Series B Notes, dated May, 2002.
4.4	*Registration Rights Agreement dated March 13, 2002, among Kansas City Power & Light Company, Banc of America Securities LLC and BNP Paribas Securities Corp. (Exhibit 4.2.b to Form 10-Q for period ended March 31, 2002)
5	Opinion and consent of Jeanie Sell Latz, Corporate Secretary.
12	Schedule of computation of ratio of earnings to fixed charges for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000, 1999, 1998 and 1997.
23.1	Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.
23.2	Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP.
23.3	Consent of Jeanie Sell Latz, Corporate Secretary (included as part of Exhibit 5).
24	Powers of Attorney.
25	Form T-1 Statement of Eligibility and Qualification of The Bank of New York, as Trustee under the Indenture, under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939.
99.1	Form of Letter of Transmittal
99.2	Form of Notice of Guaranteed Delivery
99.3	Form of Letter to Depository Trust Company Participants
99.4	Form of Letter to Clients
* Incorporated	d herein by reference as indicated

# COMPANY ORDER AND OFFICERS' CERTIFICATE SERIES A AND SERIES B NOTES

March 13, 2002

The Bank of New York 101 Barclay Street New York, NY 10286

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Pursuant to Article Two of the Indenture, dated as of March 1, 2002 (the "Indenture") between Kansas City Power & Light Company (the "Company") and The Bank of New York, as trustee (the "Trustee"), the resolutions adopted in the meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company on February 5, 2002, and March 7, 2002, a copy of which certified by the Secretary is being delivered herewith under Section 2.01 of the Indenture:

- The Company's \$225,000,000 aggregate principal amount of 6.00% Senior Notes due 2007, Series A (the "Series A Notes"), and \$225,000,000 aggregate principal amount of 6.00% Senior Notes due 2007, Series B (the "Series B Notes, and, together with the Series A Notes, the "Notes"), are hereby established. The Notes shall be in substantially the form delivered herewith.
- The terms and characteristics of the Notes shall be as follows (the numbered clauses set forth below corresponding to the numbered subsections of Section 2.03 of the Indenture):
  - a. the titles of the Securities of the series are: \$225,000,000 aggregate principal amount of 6.00% Senior Notes due 2007, Series A; and \$225,000,000 aggregate principal amount of 6.00% Senior Notes due 2007, Series B:
  - b. the aggregate principal amount of Series A Notes and Series B Notes which may be authenticated and delivered under the Indenture shall be limited to \$225,000,000 for each such series, except as otherwise provided in Sections 2.01, 2.05, 2.06 and 2.07 of the Indenture;
  - c. the date on which the principal of and premium, if any, on the Series A Notes and Series B Notes shall be payable is March 15, 2007 (the "Maturity Date");
  - d. the rate at which the Series A Notes shall bear interest shall be 6.00%. Interest will accrue from March 13, 2002 (the "Issue Date"), or from the most recent interest payment date to which interest has been paid. Interest is payable on September 15, 2002, and thereafter semi-annually on March 15 and September 15 of each year (each such date an "Interest Payment Date") to holders of record at

The Bank of New York March 13, 2002 Page 2

> the close of business on the March 1 or September 1 as the case may be, immediately preceding that interest payment date (each such date a "Regular Record Date").

The interest rate borne by the Transfer Restricted Securities will be increased by 0.25% per annum from and including the date on which a Registration Default shall occur to but excluding the date on which all Registration Defaults have been cured, which rate will increase by an additional 0.25% per annum if such Registration Default has not been cured within 90 days after the occurrence thereof and similar such increases shall occur for each succeeding 90 day period until all Registration Defaults have been cured ("Additional Interest"); provided that the aggregate amount of any such increase in the interest rate on the Transfer Restricted Securities shall in no event exceed 1.0% per annum; provided, further that a Registration Default referred to in Section 6(a)(iv) of the Registration Rights Agreement shall be deemed not to have occurred and be continuing in relation to a Shelf Registration Statement or the related prospectus if (i) such Registration Default has occurred solely as a result of (x) the filing of a post-effective amendment to such Shelf Registration Statement to incorporate annual audited financial information with respect to the Company where such post-effective amendment is not yet

effective and needs to be declared effective to permit holders to use the related prospectus or (y) other material events, with respect to the Company that would need to be described in such Shelf Registration Statement or the related prospectus and (ii) in the case of clause (y), the Company is proceeding promptly and in good faith to amend or supplement such Shelf Registration Statement and related prospectus to describe such events; provided, however, that in any case if such Registration Default occurs for a continuous period in excess of 30 days, Additional Interest shall be payable in accordance with the above paragraph from the day such Registration Default occurs until such Registration Default is cured. All accrued Additional Interest shall be payable in respect of Transfer Restricted Securities in the same manner and at the same time as regular payments of interest on the Transfer Restricted Securities. Following the cure of all Registration Defaults, the accrual of Additional Interest shall cease and the interest rate on the Transfer Restricted Securities will revert to 6.00% per annum.

- e. not applicable;
- f. principal and interest payment on the Notes will be made by the Company to The Depository Trust Company (the "DTC"), or if DTC shall cease to be the depositary for the Notes, to the Trustee, at its offices, as paying agent;
- g. the Notes shall be redeemable at the option of the Company, in whole at any time or in part from time to time, upon not less than thirty but not more than sixty days' previous notice given by mail to the registered owners of the Notes at a redemption price equal to the greater of (i) 100% of the principal amount of the

Notes being redeemed and (ii) the sum of the present values of the remaining scheduled payments of principal and interest on the Notes being redeemed (excluding the portion of any such interest accrued to the date of redemption) discounted (for purposes of determining present value) to the redemption date on a semi-annual basis (assuming a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months) at the Treasury Rate (as defined below) plus 25 basis points, plus, in each case, accrued interest thereon to the date of redemption points (the "Redemption Price").

"Treasury Rate" means, with respect to any redemption date, the rate per annum equal to the semi-annual equivalent yield to maturity of the Comparable Treasury Issue, assuming a price for the Comparable Treasury Issue (expressed as a percentage of its principal amount) equal to the Comparable Treasury Price for such redemption date.

"Comparable Treasury Issue" means the United States Treasury security selected by an Independent Investment Banker as having a maturity comparable to the remaining term of the Notes that would be utilized, at the time of selection and in accordance with customary financial practice, in pricing new issues of corporate debt securities of comparable maturity to the remaining term of the Notes.

"Comparable Treasury Price" means, with respect to any redemption date, (i) the average of the bid and asked prices for the Comparable Treasury Issue (expressed in each case as a percentage of its principal amount) on the third Business Day preceding such redemption date, as set forth in the daily statistical release (or any successor release) published by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York and designated "Composite 3:30 p.m. Quotations for U.S. Government Securities" or (ii) if such release (or any successor release) is not published or does not contain such prices on such third Business Day, the Reference Treasury Dealer Quotation for such redemption date.

"Independent Investment Banker" means one of the Reference Treasury Dealers appointed by the Company and reasonably acceptable to the Trustee.

"Reference Treasury Dealer" means a primary U.S. government securities dealer in New York City selected by the Company and reasonably acceptable to the Trustee.

"Reference Treasury Dealer Quotation" means, with respect to the Reference Treasury Dealer and any redemption date, the average, as determined by the Trustee, of the bid and asked prices for the Comparable Treasury Issue (expressed in each case as a percentage of its principal amount) quoted in writing to the Trustee by such Reference Treasury Dealer at or before 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on the third Business Day preceding such redemption date.

- h. not applicable;
- i. In accordance with the provisions of the Indenture and this clause 2.i., one or more fully-registered Note certificates will be issued as global securities for the Notes in the aggregate principal amount of the Notes and will be deposited with DTC.

Notes offered and sold to Qualified Institutional Buyers pursuant to Rule 144A shall be issuable in whole or in part in the form of one or more permanent Global Securities in definitive, fully registered, book-entry form, without interest coupons (collectively, the "Global Note"). The Global Note shall be deposited on the Issue Date with, or on behalf of, the Depositary. Interest in the Global Note shall be available for purchase only by Qualified Institutional Buyers.

The Global Note shall represent such of the Notes as shall be specified therein and shall provide that it shall represent the aggregate principal amount of Notes from time to time endorsed thereon and that the aggregate principal amount of Notes represented thereby may from time to time be reduced or increased, as appropriate, to reflect redemptions or the exchange pursuant to the Registered Exchange Offer. Any endorsement of a Global Note to reflect the amount, or any increase or decrease in the aggregate principal amount of Notes represented thereby shall be reflected by the Trustee on Schedule A attached to the Global Note and made by the Trustee in accordance with written instructions or such other written form of instructions as is customary for the Depositary, from the Depositary or its nominee on behalf of any Person having a beneficial interest in the Global Note.

The Depositary Trust Company shall initially serve as Depositary with respect to the Global Note. Such Global Note shall bear the legends set forth in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A.

The Global Note shall be substantially in the form attached hereto as  $\mathsf{Exhibit}\ \mathsf{A}.$ 

- j. not applicable;
- k. not applicable;
- the Indenture may be discharged upon payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on all the Notes and other sums due under the Indenture pursuant to Section 12.02;
- m. not applicable;
- n. not applicable;

- o. not applicable;
- p. the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver Series B Notes from time to time for issue only in exchange for a like principal amount of Series A Notes, upon a Company Order, pursuant to Section 2.03 of the Indenture, for the authentication and delivery thereof;
- q. Notes in definitive form that are Transfer Restricted Securities presented or surrendered for registration of transfer or exchange shall be accompanied by the following additional information and documents, as applicable, upon which the Security Registrar may conclusively rely: if such Transfer Restricted Securities are being transferred (1) to a Qualified Institutional Buyer in accordance with Rule 144A under the Securities Act or (2) pursuant to an exemption from registration in accordance with Rule 144 under the Securities Act (and based upon an opinion of counsel if the Company or the Trustee so requests) or (3) pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act, a certification to that effect from such holder in substantially the form of Exhibit B

The transfer of beneficial interests in the Global Note shall be effected through the Depositary, in accordance with the Indenture and this Company Order (including the restrictions on transfer set forth therein and herein) and the rules and procedures of the Depositary therefore, which shall include restrictions on transfer comparable to those set forth therein and herein to the extent required by the Securities Act.

Except as permitted hereunder, each certificate evidencing the Global Note or Notes in definitive form (and all Notes issued in exchange therefor or substitution thereof) shall bear a legend in substantially the following form:

THIS NOTE HAS NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE "SECURITIES ACT"), OR UNDER THE SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STATE OR OTHER JURISDICTION, AND THIS NOTE MAY NOT BE OFFERED, SOLD, PLEDGED OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED EXCEPT PURSUANT TO AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT OR IN ACCORDANCE WITH AN APPLICABLE EXEMPTION FROM THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT (SUBJECT TO THE DELIVERY OF SUCH EVIDENCE, IF ANY, REQUIRED UNDER THE INDENTURE PURSUANT TO WHICH THIS NOTE IS ISSUED) AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH ANY APPLICABLE SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STATE OF THE UNITED STATES OR ANY OTHER JURISDICTION. EACH PURCHASER OF THIS NOTE IS HEREBY NOTIFIED THAT THE SELLER MAY BE RELYING ON THE EXEMPTION FROM THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 5 OF THE SECURITIES ACT PROVIDED BY RULE 144A THEREUNDER OR ANOTHER EXEMPTION UNDER THE

SECURITIES ACT. THE HOLDER OF THIS NOTE AGREES FOR THE BENEFIT OF KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY THAT (A) PRIOR TO THE DATE WHICH IS TWO YEARS AFTER THE LATER OF THE DATE OF ORIGINAL ISSUANCE OF THIS NOTE AND THE LAST DATE ON WHICH KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY OR ANY OF ITS AFFILIATES WAS THE OWNER OF THIS NOTE (OR ANY PREDECESSOR OF THIS NOTE) OR SUCH SHORTER PERIOD AS MAY BE PRESCRIBED BY RULE 144(K), OR ANY SUCCESSOR PROVISION THEREOF, UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT (THE "RESALE RESTRICTION TERMINATION DATE"), THIS NOTE MAY BE RESOLD, PLEDGED OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED ONLY (1)(A) FOR SO LONG AS THIS NOTE IS ELIGIBLE FOR RESALE PURSUANT TO RULE 144A, TO A PERSON WHO THE SELLER REASONABLY BELIEVES IS A QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYER (AS DEFINED IN RULE 144A UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT) IN A TRANSACTION MEETING THE REQUIREMENTS OF RULE 144A, (B) IN A TRANSACTION MEETING THE REQUIREMENTS OF RULE 144 UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT, OR  $(\hat{C})$  IN ACCORDANCE WITH ANOTHER EXEMPTION FROM THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT (AND BASED UPON AN OPINION OF COUNSEL IF KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY SO REQUESTS), SO LONG AS, PRIOR TO ANY OFFER, SALE OR TRANSFER OF THIS NOTE PURSUANT TO CLAUSE (C) ABOVE, THE REGISTRAR RECEIVES A CERTIFICATION OF THE TRANSFEROR AND AN OPINION OF COUNSEL THAT SUCH TRANSFER IS IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE SECURITIES ACT, (2) TO KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY, OR (3) PURSUANT TO AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT AND, IN EACH CASE, IN ACCORDANCE WITH ANY APPLICABLE SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STATE OF THE UNITED STATES OR ANY OTHER APPLICABLE JURISDICTION AND (B) THE HOLDER WILL AND EACH SUBSEQUENT HOLDER IS REQUIRED TO NOTIFY ANY PURCHASER FROM IT OF THIS NOTE OF THE RESALE RESTRICTION SET FORTH IN (A) ABOVE. LEGEND WILL BE REMOVED UPON THE REQUEST OF THE HOLDER AFTER THE RESALE RESTRICTION TERMINATION DATE OR SUCH EARLIER TIME AS DETERMINED BY KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAW.

Each certificate evidencing the Global Note also shall bear the legend specified for Global Note in the form of Note attached hereto as Exhibit A.

Upon any sale or transfer of a Note represented by a Global Note pursuant to Rule 144 under the Securities Act or an effective registration statement under the Securities Act, which shall be certified to the Trustee and Security Registrar upon which each may conclusively

rely, such Note shall not be required to bear the legend set forth herein if all other interests in such Global Note have been or are concurrently being sold or transferred pursuant to Rule 144 under the Securities Act or pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, upon consummation of the Registered Exchange Offer, the Company shall issue and, upon receipt of a Company Order in accordance with Section 2.01 of the Indenture, the Trustee shall authenticate Series B Notes in exchange for Series A Notes accepted for exchange in the Registered Exchange Offer, which Series B Notes (except in limited circumstances set forth in the Registration Rights Agreement) shall not bear the legend set forth herein and shall not provide for Additional Interest, and the Security Registrar shall rescind any restriction on the transfer of such Notes, in each case unless the holder of such Series A Notes (A) will not be acquiring the Series B Notes in the ordinary course of such holder's business, (B) at the time of consummation of the Registered Exchange Offer is a Person who has an arrangement or understanding with any Person to participate in the "distribution" (within the meaning of the Securities Act) of the Series B Notes, (C) is a Person who is an "affiliate" (as defined in Rule 144 under the Securities Act) of the Company or (D) is a broker-dealer tendering Series A Notes acquired directly from the Company or an "affiliate" (as defined in Rule 144 under the Securities Act) of the Company for its own account. The Company shall identify to the Trustee such holders of the Notes in a written certification signed by an Officer of the Company and, absent certification from the Company to such effect, the Trustee shall assume that there are no such holders.

- r. not applicable;
- s. The Company shall perform its obligations under the Registration Rights Agreement and shall comply in all material respects with the terms and conditions contained therein including without limitation, the payment of Additional Interest.

The Trustee shall have no obligation or duty to monitor, determine or inquire as to compliance with any restrictions on transfer imposed under this Indenture or under applicable law with respect to any transfer of any interest in any Securities (including any transfers between or among Depositary participants or beneficial owners of interests in any Global Security) other than to require delivery of such certificates and other documentation or evidence as are expressly required by, and to do so if and when expressly required by the terms of, this Indenture, and to examine the same to determine substantial compliance as to form with the express requirements hereof.

3. For all purposes under this Company Order, capitalized terms used herein shall have the meaning specified herein or in the Indenture, in the Registration Rights Agreement as the case may be: The Bank of New York March 13, 2002 Page 8

"Additional Interest" has the meaning set forth in clause 2.d. herein;

"Comparable Treasury Issue" has the meaning set forth in clause 2.g. herein;

"Comparable Treasury Price" has the meaning set forth in clause 2.g. herein;

"Exchange Offer Registration Statement" has the meaning assigned to such term in the Registration Rights Agreement;

"Global Note" has the meaning set forth in clause 2.i herein:

"Indenture" has the meaning set forth in the first paragraph of this Company Order;

"Independent Investment Banker" has the meaning set forth in clause 2.g. herein;  $\,$ 

"Initial Purchasers" means the initial purchasers listed on Schedule A to the Purchase Agreement, dated March 8, 2002, among the Company, Banc of America Securities LLC and BNP Paribas Securities Corp. as representatives for the initial purchasers relating to the issuance and sale of the Series A Notes;

"Interest Payment Date" has the meaning set forth in clause 2.d. herein;

"Issue Date" has the meaning set forth in clause 2.d. herein;

"Maturity Date" has the meaning set forth in clause 2.c. herein:

"Notes" has the meaning set forth in Paragraph 1 herein;

"Qualified Institutional Buyer" has the meaning assigned to such term in Rule 144A under the Securities Act;

"Redemption Price" has the meaning set forth in clause 2.g. herein;  $% \left( 1\right) =\left( 1\right) +\left( 1\right)$ 

"Registered Exchange Offer" means the offer by the Company pursuant to the Registration Rights Agreement to the holders of all outstanding Transfer Restricted Securities to exchange all such outstanding Transfer Restricted Securities held by such holders for Series B Notes, in an aggregate amount equal to the aggregate principal amount of the Transfer Restricted Securities tendered in such exchange offer by such holders;

"Registrar" or "Security Registrar" means the Person keeping and maintaining the Security Register pertaining to the Notes; The Bank of New York March 13, 2002 Page 9

"Reference Treasury Dealer" has the meaning set forth in clause 2.g. herein;

"Reference Treasury Dealer Quotation" has the meaning set forth in clause 2.g. herein;

"Transfer Restricted Securities" has the meaning assigned to such term in the Registration Rights Agreement;

"Registration Default" has the meaning assigned to such term in the Registration Rights Agreement;

"Registration Rights Agreement" means that certain Registration Rights Agreement, dated March 13, 2002, by and among the Company and the Initial Purchasers;

"Regular Record Date" has the meaning set forth in clause 2.d. herein:

"Series A Notes" has the meaning set forth in Paragraph 1 herein:

"Series B Notes" has the meaning set forth in Paragraph 1 herein;

"Shelf Registration Statement" has the meaning assigned to such term in the Registration Rights Agreement;

"Transfer Restricted Securities" has the meaning assigned to such term in the Registration Rights Agreement;

"Treasury Rate" has the meaning set forth in clause 2.g. herein;

The terms "herein", "hereof", "hereunder" and other words of similar import refer to this Company Order.

- 4. You are hereby requested to authenticate \$225,000,000 aggregate principal amount of Series A Notes, executed by the Company and delivered to you concurrently with this Company Order and Officers' Certificate, in the matter provided by the Indenture.
- You are hereby requested to hold the Notes as custodian for DTC in accordance with the Letter of Representations dated March 12, 2002, from the Company and the Trustee to DTC.
- Concurrently with this Company Order and Officers' Certificate, an Opinion of Counsel under Sections 2.01 and 15.06 of the Indenture is being delivered to you.
- 7. The undersigned, Bernard J. Beaudoin, and Andrea F. Bielsker, the Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer and the Vice President Finance, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer, respectively, of the Company do hereby certify that:

The Bank of New York March 13, 2002 Page 10

- a. we have read the relevant portions of the Indenture, including without limitation the conditions precedent provided for therein relating to the action proposed to be taken by the Trustee as requested in this Company Order and Officers' Certificate, and the definitions in the Indenture relating thereto;
- we have read the Board Resolutions of the Company and the Opinion of Counsel referred to above;
- c. we have conferred with other officers of the Company who have examined such records of the Company and have made such other investigation as we deemed relevant for purposes of this certificate;
- d. in our opinion, we have made such examination or investigation as is necessary to enable us to express an informed opinion as to whether or not such conditions have been complied with; and
- e. on the basis of the foregoing, we are of the opinion that all conditions precedent provided for in the Indenture relating to the action proposed to be taken by the Trustee as requested herein have been complied with.

The Bank of New York March 13, 2002 Page 11

Kindly acknowledge receipt of this Company Order and Officers' Certificate, including the documents listed herein, and confirm the arrangements set forth herein by signing and returning the copy of this document attached hereto.

Sincerely,

KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY

/s/Bernard J. Beaudoin Bernard J. Beaudoin Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer

/s/Andrea F. Bielsker Andrea F. Bielsker Vice President - Finance, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

Acknowledged by Trustee:

By: /s/Robert A. Massimillo Authorized Signatory

#### Exhibit A

#### [FORM OF NOTE]

THIS NOTE IS A GLOBAL SECURITY WITHIN THE MEANING OF THE INDENTURE HEREINAFTER REFERRED TO AND IS REGISTERED IN THE NAME OF A DEPOSITARY OR A NOMINEE OF A DEPOSITARY. THIS NOTE IS EXCHANGEABLE FOR SECURITIES REGISTERED IN THE NAME OF A PERSON OTHER THAN THE DEPOSITARY OR ITS NOMINEE ONLY IN THE LIMITED CIRCUMSTANCES DESCRIBED IN THE INDENTURE AND THE COMPANY ORDER OF MARCH 13, 2002, AND MAY NOT BE TRANSFERRED EXCEPT AS A WHOLE BY THE DEPOSITARY TO A NOMINEE OF THE DEPOSITARY OR BY A NOMINEE OF THE DEPOSITARY TO THE DEPOSITARY OR ANOTHER NOMINEE OF THE DEPOSITARY.

[For as long as this Global Security is deposited with or on behalf of it shall bear the following legend.] Unless this certificate is presented by an authorized representative of The Depository Trust Company, a New York corporation ("DTC"), to the Company or its agent for registration of transfer, exchange or payment, and any certificate issued is registered in the name of Cede & Co. or in such other name as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC (and any payment is made to Cede & Co. or to such other entity as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL inasmuch as the registered owner hereof, Cede & Co., has an interest herein.

REGISTERED

REGISTERED

KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY 6.00% Senior Notes due 2007, Series [A/B]

No. Principal Sum: \$225,000,000\*

Registered Holder: Cede & Co. CUSIP No. 485134 BD 1

KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY, a Missouri corporation (hereinafter called the "Company", which term includes any successor corporation under the Indenture hereinafter referred to), for value received, hereby promises to pay to the registered holder named above or registered assigns, on the maturity date stated above, the principal sum stated above and to pay interest thereon from March 13, 2002, or from the most recent interest payment date to which interest has been duly paid or provided for, initially on September 15, 2002, and thereafter semiannually on March 15 and September 15 of each year, at the interest rate stated above, until the date on which payment of such principal sum has been made or duly provided for. The interest

<sup>\*</sup> Reference is made to Schedule A attached hereto with respect to decreases and increases in the aggregate principal amount evidenced by this Certificate.

so payable on any interest payment date will be paid to the person in whose name this Security is registered at the close of business on the March 1 or September 1, as the case may be, immediately preceding that interest payment date, except as otherwise provided in the Indenture.

The principal and interest payments on the Security will be made by the Company to DTC for disbursement to the registered holder named above. All such payments shall be made in such coin or currency of the United States of America as at the time of payment is legally tender for payment of public and private debts.

This Security is one of a duly authorized issue of securities of the Company (herein called the "Securities"), issued and to be issued in one or more series under an Indenture, dated as of March 1, 2002 (herein called the "Indenture", which term shall have the meaning assigned to it in such instrument), between the Company and The Bank of New York, as Trustee (herein called the "Trustee", which term includes any successor trustee under the Indenture). Reference is made to the Indenture and any supplemental indenture thereto for the provisions relating, among other things, to the respective rights of the Company, the Trustee and the holders of the Securities, and the terms on which the Securities are, and are to be, authenticated and delivered. This Security is one of the series designated on the face hereof, initially limited in aggregate principal amount to \$225,000,000; provided, however, that the authorized aggregate principal amount of the Securities may be increased above such amount by a Board Resolution to such effect.

If an Event of Default (as defined in the Indenture) shall have occurred and be continuing with respect to the Securities, the principal hereof may be declared, and upon such declaration shall become due and payable, in the manner, with such effect and subject to the conditions provided in the Indenture. Any such declaration may be rescinded by holders of a majority in principal amount of the outstanding Securities if all Events of Default with respect to the Securities (other than the non-payment of principal of the Securities which shall have become due by such declaration) shall have been remedied.

The Indenture contains provisions permitting the Company and the Trustee, with the consent of the holders of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Securities at the time outstanding, evidenced as in the Indenture provided, to execute supplemental indentures adding any provisions to the Indenture or to any supplemental indenture with respect to the Securities, or modifying in any manner the rights of the holders of the Securities; provided, however, that no such supplemental indenture shall (i) extend the fixed maturity of any Securities or reduce the principal amount thereof, or reduce the rate thereon, or make the principal thereof, or interest thereon, payable in any coin or currency other than that in the Securities provided, without the consent of each holder of the Securities so affected, or (ii) reduce the aforesaid principal amount of the Securities, the holders of which are required to consent to any such supplemental indenture without the consent of the holders of all Securities then outstanding.

This Security is issuable as registered Security only, in the denomination of \$1,000 and any integral multiples of \$1,000 approved by the Company, such approval to be evidenced by the execution thereof.

As provided in the Indenture and Company Order of March 13, 2002, and subject to certain limitations therein set forth, this Security is transferable by the registered holder hereof in person or by his attorney duly authorized in writing on the books of the Company at the office or agency to be maintained by the Company for that purpose, but only in the matter, subject to the limitations and upon payment of any tax or governmental charge for which the Company may require reimbursement as provided in the Indenture, and upon surrender and cancellation of this Security. Upon any registration of transfer, a new registered Security or Securities, of authorized denomination or denominations, and in the same aggregate principal amount, will be issued to the transferee in exchange therefore.

The Company, the Trustee, any paying agent and any Security Registrar may deem and treat the registered holder hereof as the absolute owner of this Security (whether or not this Security shall be overdue and notwithstanding any notations of ownership or other writing hereof made by anyone other than the Security Registrar) for the purpose of receiving payment of or on account of the principal hereof and interest due hereon as herein provided and for all other purposes, and neither the Company nor the Trustee nor any paying agent nor any Security Registrar shall be affected by any notice to the contrary.

No recourse shall be had for the payment of the principal of or interest on this Security, or for any claim based hereon, or otherwise in respect hereof, or based on or in respect of the Indenture or any indenture supplemental thereto, against any incorporator or against any past, present or future stockholder, officer or member of the Board of Directors, as such, of the Company, whether by virtue of any constitution, state or rule of law, or by the enforcement of any assessment or penalty or otherwise, all such liability being, by the acceptance hereof and as party of the consideration for the issue hereof, expressly waived and released.

By its acceptance of this Security bearing a legend restricting transfer, each holder of this Security acknowledges the restrictions on transfer of this Security set forth in the Indenture, Company Order of March 13, 2002 and such legend and agrees that it will transfer this Security only as provided in the Indenture and Company Order of March 13, 2002. In addition to the rights provided to holders of this Security under the Indenture, holders shall have all the rights set forth in that certain Registration Rights Agreement, dated March 13, 2002, among the Company and the Initial Purchasers, including without limitation the right to receive Additional Interest as described in Section 6 thereof.

This Security shall be deemed to be a contract made under the laws of the State of New York, and for all purposes shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of New York.

All terms used in this Security which are defined in the Indenture and not defined herein shall have the meaning assigned to them in the Indenture.

This Security shall not be entitled to any benefit under the Indenture or be valid or obligatory for any purpose until the certificate of authentication on the face hereof is manually signed by the Trustee.

THIS NOTE HAS NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE "SECURITIES ACT"), OR UNDER THE SECURITIES  $(ACT)^2$ LAWS OF ANY STATE OR OTHER JURISDICTION, AND THIS NOTE MAY NOT BE OFFERED, SOLD, PLEDGED OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED EXCEPT PURSUANT TO AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT OR IN ACCORDANCE WITH AN APPLICABLE EXEMPTION FROM THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT (SUBJECT TO THE DELIVERY OF SUCH EVIDENCE, IF ANY, REQUIRIED UNDER THE INDENTURE PURSUANT TO WHICH THIS NOTE IS ISSUED) AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH ANY APPLICABLE SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STATE OF THE UNITED STATES OR ANY OTHER JURISDICTION. EACH PURCHASER OF THE NOTE IS HEREBY NOTIFIED THAT THE SELLER MAY BE RELYING ON THE EXEMPTION FROM THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 5 OF THE SECURITIES ACT PROVIDED BY RULE 144A THEREUNDER OR ANOTHER EXEMPTION UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT. THE HOLDER OF THIS NOTE AGREES FOR THE BENEFIT OF KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY THAT (A) PRIOR TO THE DATE WHICH IS TWO YEARS AFTER THE LATER OF THE DATE OF ORIGINAL ISSUANCE OF THIS NOTE AND THE LAST DATE ON WHICH KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY OR ANY OF ITS AFFILIATES WAS THE OWNER OF THIS NOTE (OR ANY PREDECESSOR OF THIS NOTE) OR SUCH SHORTER PERIOD AS MAY BE PRESCRIBED BY RULE 144(K), OR ANY SUCCESSOR PROVISION THEREOF, UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT (THE "RESALE RESTRICTION TERMINATION DATE"), THIS NOTE MAY BE RESOLD, PLEDGED OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED ONLY (1)(A) FOR SO LONG AS THIS NOTE IS ELIGIBLE FOR RESALE PURSUANT TO RULE 144A, TO A PERSON WHO THE SELLER REASONABLY BELIEVES IS A QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYER (AS DEFINED IN RULE 144A UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT) IN A TRANSACTION MEETING THE REQUIREMENTS OF RULE 144A, (B) IN A TRANSACTION MEETING THE REQUIREMENTS OF RULE 144 UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT, OR (C) IN ACCORDANCE WITH ANOTHER EXEMPTION FROM THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT (AND BASED UPON AN OPINION OF COUNSEL IF KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY SO REQUESTS), SO LONG AS, PRIOR TO ANY OFFER, SALE OR TRANSFER OF THIS NOTE PURSUANT TO CLAUSE (C) ABOVE, THE REGISTRAR RECEIVES A CERTIFICATION OF THE TRANSFEROR AND AN OPINION OF COUNSEL THAT SUCH TRANSFER IS IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE SECURITIES ACT, (2) TO KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY OR (3) PURSUANT TO AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT AND, IN EACH CASE, IN ACCORDANCE WITH ANY APPLICABLE SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STATE OF THE UNITED STATES OR ANY OTHER APPLICABLE JURISDICTION AND (B) THE HOLDER WILL AND EACH SUBSEQUENT HOLDER IS REQUIRED TO NOTIFY ANY PURCHASER FROM IT OF THIS NOTE OF THE RESALE RESTRICTION SET FORTH IN (A) ABOVE. THIS LEGEND WILL BE REMOVED UPON THE REQUEST OF THE HOLDER AFTER THE RESALE RESTRICTION TERMINATION DATE OR

SUCH EARLIER TIME AS DETERMINED BY KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAW.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this instrument to be signed by the manual or facsimile signatures of a Vice President - Finance, Chief Financial Officer and the Treasurer of the Company, and a facsimile of its corporate seal to be affixed or reproduced hereon.

	KANSAS	CITY	POWER	&	LIGHT	COMPANY
--	--------	------	-------	---	-------	---------

Bv:

Andrea F. Bielsker
(SEAL)
Vice President - Finance, Chief
Financial Officer and Treasurer

Attest:

Name: Title:

TRUSTEE'S CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION
This is one of the Securities of the series designated herein issued under the Indenture described herein.

THE BANK OF NEW YORK, as Trustee

Authorized Signatory

Dated as of \_\_\_\_\_

# SCHEDULE OF ADJUSTMENTS

The initial aggregate principal amount evidenced by the Certificate to which this Schedule is attached is \$225,000,000. The notations on the following table evidence decreases and increases in the aggregate principal amount evidenced by such Certificate.

		Aggregate	
		Principal	
	Decrease in	Amount of	
	Aggregate	Securities	Notation by
Date of	Principal	Remaining After	Security
Adjustment	Amount	Such Decrease	Registrar

# FORM OF CERTIFICATE TO BE DELIVERED UPON EXCHANGE OR REGISTRATION OF TRANSFER OR SECURITIES

Re: 6.00% Senior Notes due 2007, Series A (the "Notes") of Kansas City Power & Light Company (the "Company")

The Transferor has requested the Trustee by written order to exchange or register the transfer of a Note or Notes.

In connection with such request and in respect of each such Note, the Transferor does hereby certify that the Transferor is familiar with the Indenture, dated as of March 1, 2002 (as amended or supplemented above to date, the "Indenture"), between the Company and The Bank of New York (the "Trustee") relating to the above-captioned Notes and that the transfer of this Note does not require registration under the Securities Act (as defined below) because:\*

- () Such Note is being acquired for the Transferor's own account without transfer.
- () Such Note is being transferred to a "qualified institutional buyer" (as defined in Rule 144A under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act")), in accordance with Rule 144A under the Securities Act.
- () Such Note is being transferred (i) pursuant to an exemption from registration in accordance with Rule 144 under the Securities Act (and based upon an opinion of counsel if the Company or the Trustee so requests) or (ii) pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act.
- () Such Note is being transferred in reliance on and in compliance with another exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act (and based upon an opinion of counsel if the Company or the Trustee so requests).

You are entitled to rely upon this certificate and you are irrevocably authorized to produce this certificate or a copy hereof to an interested party in any administrative or legal proceeding or official inquiry with respect to the matters covered hereby.

<sup>\*</sup> Check applicable box

[INSERT NAME OF TRANSFEROR]

By:	
Name:	
Title:	
Address:	

Date: \_\_\_\_\_

# COMPANY ORDER AND OFFICERS' CERTIFICATE SERIES B NOTES

\_\_\_\_\_, 2002

The Bank of New York 101 Barclay Street New York, NY 10286

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Pursuant to Article Two of the Indenture, dated as of March 1, 2002 (the "Indenture") between Kansas City Power & Light Company (the "Company") and The Bank of New York, as trustee (the "Trustee"), the Board Resolutions dated February 5, 2002, the resolutions adopted in the meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company on March 7, 2002, and the Company Order dated March 13, 2002 (the "Prior Company Order"), a copy of which certified by the Secretary is being delivered herewith under Section 2.01 of the Indenture:

- 1. The Company's \$225,000,000 aggregate principal amount of 6.00% Senior Notes due 2007, Series A (the "Series A Notes"), and \$225,000,000 aggregate principal amount of 6.00% Senior Notes due 2007, Series B (the "Series B Notes, and, together with the Series A Notes, the "Notes"), were established pursuant to the Indenture and Prior Company Order.
- 2. Paragraph 2.q. of the Prior Company Order provides, among other things, that upon consummation of the Registered Exchange Offer (as defined in the Prior Company Order), the Company shall issue and, upon receipt of a Company Order in accordance with Section 2.01 of the Indenture, the Trustee shall authenticate Series B Notes in exchange for Series A Notes accepted for exchange in the Registered Exchange Offer. The Prior Company Order provided that the Global Note representing the Series B Notes be substantially in the form appended to the Prior Company Order, which form for the Series B Notes is appended hereto as Exhibit A.
- 3. You are hereby requested to authenticate \$\_\_\_\_\_ aggregate principal amount of Series B Notes, executed by the Company and delivered to you concurrently with this Company Order and Officers' Certificate, in the matter provided by the Indenture.
- Concurrently with this Company Order and Officers' Certificate, an Opinion of Counsel under Sections 2.01 and 15.06 of the Indenture is being delivered to you.
- 6. The undersigned, Bernard J. Beaudoin, and Andrea F. Bielsker, the Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer and the Vice President - Finance, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer, respectively, of the Company do hereby certify that:
  - a. we have read the relevant portions of the Indenture, including without limitation the conditions precedent provided for therein relating to the action proposed to be taken by the Trustee as requested in this Company Order and Officers' Certificate, and the definitions in the Indenture relating thereto;
  - we have read the Board Resolutions of the Company and the Opinion of Counsel referred to above;
  - c. we have conferred with other officers of the Company who have examined such records of the Company and have made such other investigation as we deemed relevant for purposes of this certificate;
  - d. in our opinion, we have made such examination or investigation as is necessary to enable us to express an informed opinion as to whether or not such conditions have been complied with; and
  - e. on the basis of the foregoing, we are of the opinion that all conditions precedent provided for in the Indenture relating to the action proposed to be taken by the Trustee as requested herein have been complied with.

Kindly acknowledge receipt of this Company Order and Officers' Certificate, including the documents listed herein, and confirm the arrangements set forth herein by signing and returning the copy of this document attached hereto.

Sincerely,

KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY

Bernard J. Beaudoin Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer

Andrea F. Bielsker Vice President - Finance, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

Acknowledged	by	Trustee:
_		

Authorized Signatory

#### Exhibit A

### [FORM OF NOTE]

THIS NOTE IS A GLOBAL SECURITY WITHIN THE MEANING OF THE INDENTURE HEREINAFTER REFERRED TO AND IS REGISTERED IN THE NAME OF A DEPOSITARY OR A NOMINEE OF A DEPOSITARY. THIS NOTE IS EXCHANGEABLE FOR SECURITIES REGISTERED IN THE NAME OF A PERSON OTHER THAN THE DEPOSITARY OR ITS NOMINEE ONLY IN THE LIMITED CIRCUMSTANCES DESCRIBED IN THE INDENTURE AND THE COMPANY ORDER OF MARCH 13, 2002, AND MAY NOT BE TRANSFERRED EXCEPT AS A WHOLE BY THE DEPOSITARY TO A NOMINEE OF THE DEPOSITARY OR BY A NOMINEE OF THE DEPOSITARY TO THE DEPOSITARY OR ANOTHER NOMINEE OF THE DEPOSITARY.

Unless this certificate is presented by an authorized representative of The Depository Trust Company, a New York corporation ("DTC"), to the Company or its agent for registration of transfer, exchange or payment, and any certificate issued is registered in the name of Cede & Co. or in such other name as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC (and any payment is made to Cede & Co. or to such other entity as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL inasmuch as the registered owner hereof, Cede & Co., has an interest herein.

REGISTERED REGISTERED

Registered Holder: Cede & Co.

the person in whose name this Security is

KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY 6.00% Senior Notes due 2007, Series B

Principal Sum: \$\_\_\_

CUSIP No. 485134 BE 9

KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY, a Missouri corporation
(hereinafter called the "Company", which term includes any
successor corporation under the Indenture hereinafter referred
to), for value received, hereby promises to pay to the registered
holder named above or registered assigns, on the maturity date
stated above, the principal sum stated above and to pay interest
thereon from March 13, 2002, or from the most recent interest
payment date to which interest has been duly paid or provided
for, initially on September 15, 2002, and thereafter semi-
annually on March 15 and September 15 of each year, at the
interest rate stated above, until the date on which payment of
such principal sum has been made or duly provided for. The
interest so payable on any interest payment date will be paid to

\* Reference is made to Schedule A attached hereto with respect to decreases and increases in the aggregate principal amount evidenced by this Certificate.

registered at the close of business on the March 1 or September 1, as the case may be, immediately preceding that interest payment date, except as otherwise provided in the Indenture.

The principal and interest payments on the Security will be made by the Company to DTC for disbursement to the registered holder named above. All such payments shall be made in such coin or currency of the United States of America as at the time of payment is legally tender for payment of public and private debts.

This Security is one of a duly authorized issue of securities of the Company (herein called the "Securities"), issued and to be issued in one or more series under an Indenture, dated as of March 1, 2002 (herein called the "Indenture", which term shall have the meaning assigned to it in such instrument), between the Company and The Bank of New York, as Trustee (herein called the "Trustee", which term includes any successor trustee under the Indenture). Reference is made to the Indenture and any supplemental indenture thereto for the provisions relating, among other things, to the respective rights of the Company, the Trustee and the holders of the Securities, and the terms on which the Securities are, and are to be, authenticated and delivered. This Security is one of the series designated on the face hereof, initially limited in aggregate principal amount to \$225,000,000; provided, however, that the authorized aggregate principal amount of the Securities may be increased above such amount by a Board Resolution to such effect.

If an Event of Default (as defined in the Indenture) shall have occurred and be continuing with respect to the Securities, the principal hereof may be declared, and upon such declaration shall become due and payable, in the manner, with such effect and subject to the conditions provided in the Indenture. Any such declaration may be rescinded by holders of a majority in principal amount of the outstanding Securities if all Events of Default with respect to the Securities (other than the non-payment of principal of the Securities which shall have become due by such declaration) shall have been remedied.

The Indenture contains provisions permitting the Company and the Trustee, with the consent of the holders of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Securities at the time outstanding, evidenced as in the Indenture provided, to execute supplemental indentures adding any provisions to the Indenture or to any supplemental indenture with respect to the Securities, or modifying in any manner the rights of the holders of the Securities; provided, however, that no such supplemental indenture shall (i) extend the fixed maturity of any Securities or reduce the principal amount thereof, or reduce the rate thereon, or make the principal thereof, or interest thereon, payable in any coin or currency other than that in the Securities provided, without the consent of each holder of the Securities so affected, or (ii) reduce the aforesaid principal amount of the Securities, the holders of which are required to consent to any such supplemental indenture without the consent of the holders of all Securities then outstanding.

This Security is issuable as registered Security only, in the denomination of \$1,000 and any integral multiples of \$1,000 approved by the Company, such approval to be evidenced by the execution thereof.

As provided in the Indenture and Company Orders of March 13, 2002, and \_\_\_\_\_, 2002, and subject to certain limitations therein set forth, this Security is transferable by the registered holder hereof in person or by his attorney duly authorized in writing on the books of the Company at the office or agency to be maintained by the Company for that purpose, but only in the matter, subject to the limitations and upon payment of any tax or governmental charge for which the Company may require reimbursement as provided in the Indenture, and upon surrender and cancellation of this Security. Upon any registration of transfer, a new registered Security or Securities, of authorized denomination or denominations, and in the same aggregate principal amount, will be issued to the transferee in exchange therefore.

The Company, the Trustee, any paying agent and any Security Registrar may deem and treat the registered holder hereof as the absolute owner of this Security (whether or not this Security shall be overdue and notwithstanding any notations of ownership or other writing hereof made by anyone other than the Security Registrar) for the purpose of receiving payment of or on account of the principal hereof and interest due hereon as herein provided and for all other purposes, and neither the Company nor the Trustee nor any paying agent nor any Security Registrar shall be affected by any notice to the contrary.

No recourse shall be had for the payment of the principal of or interest on this Security, or for any claim based hereon, or otherwise in respect hereof, or based on or in respect of the Indenture or any indenture supplemental thereto, against any incorporator or against any past, present or future stockholder, officer or member of the Board of Directors, as such, of the Company, whether by virtue of any constitution, state or rule of law, or by the enforcement of any assessment or penalty or otherwise, all such liability being, by the acceptance hereof and as party of the consideration for the issue hereof, expressly waived and released.

In addition to the rights provided to holders of this Security under the Indenture, holders shall have all the rights set forth in that certain Registration Rights Agreement, dated March 13, 2002, among the Company and the Initial Purchasers, including without limitation and among other rights therein specified, that this Security and all 6.00% Senior Notes due 2007, Series A, from time to time issued and outstanding under the Indenture (collectively, the "Securities") will vote and consent together on all matters as one class and none of the Securities will have the right to vote or consent as a class separate from one another on any matter.

This Security shall be deemed to be a contract made under the laws of the State of New York, and for all purposes shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of New York.

All terms used in this Security which are defined in the Indenture and not defined herein shall have the meaning assigned to them in the Indenture.

This Security shall not be entitled to any benefit under the Indenture or be valid or obligatory for any purpose until the certificate of authentication on the face hereof is manually signed by the Trustee.

to be signed by the manual or President - Finance, Chief Fin	company has caused this instrument facsimile signatures of a Vice nancial Officer and the Treasurer of its corporate seal to be affixed
к	CANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY
В	BV:

(SEAL)	By: Andrea F. Bielsker Vice President - Finance, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
Attest:	
Name: Title:	
TRUSTEE'S CERTIFICATE OF AU This is one of the Securitie herein issued under the Inde	es of the series designated
	THE BANK OF NEW YORK, as Trustee
7	Authorized Signatory
Dated as of	

# SCHEDULE OF ADJUSTMENTS

The initial aggregate principal amount evidenced by the Certificate to which this Schedule is attached is \$\_\_\_\_\_\_. The notations on the following table evidence decreases and increases in the aggregate principal amount evidenced by such Certificate.

		Aggregate	
		Principal	
	Decrease in	Amount of	
	Aggregate	Securities	Notation by
Date of	Principal	Remaining After	Security
Adjustment	Amount	Such Decrease	Registrar

May 10, 2002

Kansas City Power & Light Company 1201 Walnut Kansas City, Missouri 64106-2124

Ladies and Gentlemen:

I have acted as counsel in connection with the Registration Statement on Form S-4 (the "Registration Statement") filed by the Company with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "Commission") under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Act"), relating to the registration under the Act of \$225 million aggregate principal amount of the Company's 6,00% Senior Notes due 2007, Series B (the "Exchange Notes") to be offered by the Company in exchange (the "Exchange Offer") for a like principal amount of its issued and outstanding 6.00% Senior Notes due 2007, Series A (the "Old Notes"). The Exchange Notes are to be issued under an Indenture dated as of March 1, 2002 (the "Indenture"), between the Company and The Bank of New York.

I am familiar with the proceedings to date with respect to such records, documents and matters of law and satisfied myself as to such matters of fact as I consider are relevant for purposes of this opinion.

I am of the opinion that:

When (i) the Registration Statement has become effective under the Act and the Indenture has been qualified under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, and (ii) the Exchange Notes have been duly authorized, executed, authenticated and delivered in accordance with the provisions of the Indenture and issued in exchange for Old Notes pursuant to, and in accordance with the terms of, the Exchange Offer as contemplated in the Registration Statement, the Exchange Notes will constitute legal, valid and binding obligations of the Company, enforceable against the Company in accordance with their terms, except as such enforceability is subject to the effect of (x) bankruptcy,

insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, fraudulent conveyance or other laws relating to or affecting creditors' rights generally and (y) general principles of equity (regardless of whether such enforceability is considered in a proceeding in equity or at law).

I am a member of the Bar of the State of Missouri and, for purposes of this opinion, do not hold myself out as an expert of the laws of any jurisdiction other than the State of Missouri.

I hereby consent to the use of this opinion as an exhibit to the above-mentioned Registration Statement.

Sincerely,

/s/Jeanie Sell Latz

Jeanie Sell Latz Executive Vice President-Corporate and Shared Services and Secretary

#### KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY

# COMPUTATION OF RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

ended March 31 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 (Thousands) Income before extraordinary item and cumulative effect of changes \$ (7,981) \$ 103,819 \$ 128,631 \$ 81,915 \$ 120,722 \$ 76,560 in accounting principle : bbA Equity investment losses 501 19,441 24,951 11,683 2,748 Minority interests in subsidiaries (5,038)(2,222)(575) Income subtotal (7,981)99,282 148,072 106,867 130,183 78,733 Add: 8,079 Taxes on income (6,526)30,288 53,166 3,180 32,800 Kansas City earnings tax 392 583 421 602 864 Total taxes on income (6,526)30,871 53,587 33,664 8,471 3,782 Interest on value of leased 8,482 property 1,990 10,679 11,806 8,577 8,309 Interest on long-term debt 15,115 80,329 60,956 51,327 57,012 60,298 Interest on short-term debt 516 8,883 11,537 4,362 295 1,382 Mandatorily redeemable Preferred Securities 3,113 12,450 12,450 12,450 12,450 8,853 Other interest expense 4,457 and amortization 938 5,188 2,927 3,573 3,990 Total fixed charges 21,672 117,529 99,676 80,289 82,696 82,832 Earnings before taxes on income and fixed charges 7,165 247,682 301,335 190,938 246,543 170,036 Ratio of earnings to fixed charges (a) 2.11 3.02 2.38 2.98 2.05

Three months

<sup>(</sup>a) A \$14.5 million deficiency in earnings caused the ratio of earnings to fixed charges to be less than a one-to-one coverage.

### CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in this Registration Statement on Form S-4 of our report dated February 5, 2002 relating to the financial statements of Kansas City Power & Light Company (a wholly-owned subsidiary of Great Plains Energy Incorporated), which appears in Kansas City Power & Light Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001 (as amended). We also consent to the reference to us under the heading "Experts" in such Registration Statement.

/s/PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Kansas City, Missouri May 8, 2002

# INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' CONSENT

We consent to the incorporation by reference in this Registration Statement on Form S-4 of Kansas City Power & Light Company of our report dated January 30, 2002 (relating to the financial statements of DTI Holdings, Inc (the "Company") and Subsidiaries not presented separately herein and which report expresses an unqualified opinion and includes explanatory paragraphs referring to the Company's filing for reorganization under Chapter 11 of the Federal Bankruptcy Code, substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern and an impairment charge recorded by the Company), appearing in the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Kansas City Power & Light Company for the year ended December 31, 2001.

We also consent to the reference to us under the heading "Experts" in the Prospectus, which is part of this Registration Statement.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

St. Louis, Missouri May 8, 2002

#### KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

That the undersigned, a Director of Kansas City Power & Light Company, a Missouri corporation, does hereby constitute and appoint Bernard J. Beaudoin or Jeanie S. Latz, his true and lawful attorney and agent, with full power and authority to execute in the name and on behalf of the undersigned as such director a Registration Statement on Form S-4 and all amendments thereto; hereby granting unto such attorney and agent full power of substitution and revocation in the premises; and hereby ratifying and confirming all that such attorney and agent may do or cause to be done by virtue of these presents.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal this 22nd day of April, 2002.

/s/Bernard J. Beaudoin

STATE OF MISSOURI )

COUNTY OF JACKSON )

On this 22nd day of April, 2002, before me the undersigned, a Notary Public, personally appeared Bernard J. Beaudoin, to be known to be the person described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and who, being by me first duly sworn, acknowledged that he executed the same as his free act and deed.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year last above written.

/s/Jacquetta L. Hartman Notary Public Ray County, Missouri

My Commission Expires:

April 8, 2004

# POWER OF ATTORNEY

# KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

That the undersigned, a Director of Kansas City Power & Light Company, a Missouri corporation, does hereby constitute and appoint Bernard J. Beaudoin or Jeanie S. Latz, his true and lawful attorney and agent, with full power and authority to execute in the name and on behalf of the undersigned as such director a Registration Statement on Form S-4 and all amendments thereto; hereby granting unto such attorney and agent full power of substitution and revocation in the premises; and hereby ratifying and confirming all that such attorney and agent may do or cause to be done by virtue of these presents.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal this 18th day of April, 2002.

/s/David L. Bodde

STATE OF MISSOURI ) ) ss COUNTY OF JACKSON )

On this 18th day of April, 2002, before me the undersigned, a Notary Public, personally appeared David L. Bodde, to be known to be the person described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and who, being by me first duly sworn, acknowledged that he executed the same as his free act and deed.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year last above written.

/s/Jacquetta L. Hartman Notary Public Ray County, Missouri

My Commission Expires:

### KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

That the undersigned, a Director of Kansas City Power & Light Company, a Missouri corporation, does hereby constitute and appoint Bernard J. Beaudoin or Jeanie S. Latz, his true and lawful attorney and agent, with full power and authority to execute in the name and on behalf of the undersigned as such director a Registration Statement on Form S-4 and all amendments thereto; hereby granting unto such attorney and agent full power of substitution and revocation in the premises; and hereby ratifying and confirming all that such attorney and agent may do or cause to be done by virtue of these presents.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal this 22nd day of April, 2002.

/s/Mark A. Ernst

STATE OF MISSOURI )

COUNTY OF JACKSON )

On this 22nd day of April, 2002, before me the undersigned, a Notary Public, personally appeared Mark A. Ernst, to be known to be the person described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and who, being by me first duly sworn, acknowledged that he executed the same as his free act and deed.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year last above written.

/s/Jacquetta L. Hartman Notary Public Ray County, Missouri

 $\begin{tabular}{ll} My Commission Expires: \\ \end{tabular}$ 

### KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

That the undersigned, a Director of Kansas City Power & Light Company, a Missouri corporation, does hereby constitute and appoint Bernard J. Beaudoin or Jeanie S. Latz, his true and lawful attorney and agent, with full power and authority to execute in the name and on behalf of the undersigned as such director a Registration Statement on Form S-4 and all amendments thereto; hereby granting unto such attorney and agent full power of substitution and revocation in the premises; and hereby ratifying and confirming all that such attorney and agent may do or cause to be done by virtue of these presents.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal this 22nd day of April, 2002.

/s/William K. Hall

STATE OF MISSOURI )
COUNTY OF JACKSON )

On this 22nd day of April, 2002, before me the undersigned, a Notary Public, personally appeared William K. Hall, to be known to be the person described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and who, being by me first duly sworn, acknowledged that he executed the same as his free act and deed.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year last above written.

/s/Jacquetta L. Hartman Notary Public Ray County, Missouri

 $\begin{tabular}{ll} My Commission Expires: \\ \end{tabular}$ 

### KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

That the undersigned, a Director of Kansas City Power & Light Company, a Missouri corporation, does hereby constitute and appoint Bernard J. Beaudoin or Jeanie S. Latz, his true and lawful attorney and agent, with full power and authority to execute in the name and on behalf of the undersigned as such director a Registration Statement on Form S-4 and all amendments thereto; hereby granting unto such attorney and agent full power of substitution and revocation in the premises; and hereby ratifying and confirming all that such attorney and agent may do or cause to be done by virtue of these presents.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal this 11th day of April, 2002.

/s/Luis A. Jimenez

STATE OF MISSOURI )
COUNTY OF JACKSON )

On this 11th day of April, 2002, before me the undersigned, a Notary Public, personally appeared Luis A. Jimenez, to be known to be the person described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and who, being by me first duly sworn, acknowledged that he executed the same as his free act and deed.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year last above written.

/s/Jacquetta L. Hartman Notary Public Ray County, Missouri

 $\begin{tabular}{ll} My Commission Expires: \\ \end{tabular}$ 

### KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

That the undersigned, a Director of Kansas City Power & Light Company, a Missouri corporation, does hereby constitute and appoint Bernard J. Beaudoin or Jeanie S. Latz, his true and lawful attorney and agent, with full power and authority to execute in the name and on behalf of the undersigned as such director a Registration Statement on Form S-4 and all amendments thereto; hereby granting unto such attorney and agent full power of substitution and revocation in the premises; and hereby ratifying and confirming all that such attorney and agent may do or cause to be done by virtue of these presents.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal this 22nd day of April, 2002.

/s/William C. Nelson

STATE OF MISSOURI )

COUNTY OF JACKSON )

On this 22nd day of April, 2002, before me the undersigned, a Notary Public, personally appeared William C. Nelson, to be known to be the person described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and who, being by me first duly sworn, acknowledged that he executed the same as his free act and deed.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year last above written.

/s/Jacquetta L. Hartman Notary Public Ray County, Missouri

 $\begin{tabular}{ll} My Commission Expires: \\ \end{tabular}$ 

### KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

That the undersigned, a Director of Kansas City Power & Light Company, a Missouri corporation, does hereby constitute and appoint Bernard J. Beaudoin or Jeanie S. Latz, her true and lawful attorney and agent, with full power and authority to execute in the name and on behalf of the undersigned as such director a Registration Statement on Form S-4 and all amendments thereto; hereby granting unto such attorney and agent full power of substitution and revocation in the premises; and hereby ratifying and confirming all that such attorney and agent may do or cause to be done by virtue of these presents.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal this 8th day of April, 2002.

/s/Linda H. Talbott

STATE OF MISSOURI )

COUNTY OF JACKSON )

On this 8th day of April, 2002, before me the undersigned, a Notary Public, personally appeared Linda H. Talbott, to be known to be the person described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and who, being by me first duly sworn, acknowledged that she executed the same as her free act and deed.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year last above written.

/s/Jacquetta L. Hartman Notary Public Ray County, Missouri

 $\begin{tabular}{ll} My Commission Expires: \\ \end{tabular}$ 

# KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

That the undersigned, a Director of Kansas City Power & Light Company, a Missouri corporation, does hereby constitute and appoint Bernard J. Beaudoin or Jeanie S. Latz, his true and lawful attorney and agent, with full power and authority to execute in the name and on behalf of the undersigned as such director a Registration Statement on Form S-4 and all amendments thereby granting unto such attorney and agent full power of substitution and revocation in the premises; and hereby ratifying and confirming all that such attorney and agent may do or cause to be done by virtue of these presents.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal this 22nd day of April, 2002.

/s/Robert H. West

STATE OF MISSOURI )

COUNTY OF JACKSON )

On this 22nd day of April, 2002, before me the undersigned, a Notary Public, personally appeared Robert H. West, to be known to be the person described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and who, being by me first duly sworn, acknowledged that he executed the same as his free act and deed.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year last above written.

/s/Jacquetta L. Hartman Notary Public Ray County, Missouri

My Commission Expires:

FORM T-1

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549

STATEMENT OF ELIGIBILITY UNDER THE TRUST INDENTURE ACT OF 1939 OF A CORPORATION DESIGNATED TO ACT AS TRUSTEE

CHECK IF AN APPLICATION TO DETERMINE ELIGIBILITY OF A TRUSTEE PURSUANT TO SECTION 305(b)(2) (

THE BANK OF NEW YORK (Exact name of trustee as specified in its charter)

New York 13-5160382 (State of incorporation (I.R.S. employer if not a U.S. national bank) identification no.)

One Wall Street, New York, N.Y. 10286 (Address of principal executive (Zip code) offices)

KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY (Exact name of obligor as specified in its charter)

44-0308720 Missouri (State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. employer incorporation or organization) identification no.)

1201 Walnut Kansas City, Missouri 64106-2124 (Address of principal executive (Zip code)

64106-2124

offices)

6.00% Senior Notes due 2007, Series B (Title of the indenture securities)

\_\_\_\_\_\_

General information. Furnish the following information as to the Trustee:

Name and address of each examining or supervising (a) authority to which it is subject.

\_\_\_\_\_\_

Address

Superintendent of Banks 2 Rector Street, New York, of the State of New York N.Y. 10006, and Albany, N.Y. 12203

Federal Reserve Bank of 33 Liberty Plaza, New York,

New York N.Y. 10045

Federal Deposit Insurance Washington, D.C. 20429

Corporation

New York Clearing House New York, New York 10005

Association

(b) Whether it is authorized to exercise corporate trust powers.

Name

2. Affiliations with Obligor.

If the obligor is an affiliate of the trustee, describe each such affiliation.

None.

16. List of Exhibits.

Exhibits identified in parentheses below, on file with the Commission, are incorporated herein by reference as an exhibit hereto, pursuant to Rule 7a-29 under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939 (the "Act") and 17 C.F.R. 229.10(d).

- 1. A copy of the Organization Certificate of The Bank of New York (formerly Irving Trust Company) as now in effect, which contains the authority to commence business and a grant of powers to exercise corporate trust powers. (Exhibit 1 to Amendment No. 1 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 33-6215, Exhibits 1a and 1b to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 33-21672 and Exhibit 1 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 33-29637.)
- 4. A copy of the existing By-laws of the Trustee. (Exhibit 4 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 33-31019.)
- 6. The consent of the Trustee required by Section 321(b) of the Act. (Exhibit 6 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 33-44051.)
- 7. A copy of the latest report of condition of the Trustee published pursuant to law or to the requirements of its supervising or examining authority.

2

### SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Act, the Trustee, The Bank of New York, a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York, has duly caused this statement of eligibility to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, all in The City of New York, and State of New York, on the 7th day of May, 2002.

# THE BANK OF NEW YORK

By: /s/Stacey Poindexter Name: Stacey Poindexter Title: Assistant Treasurer

Consolidated Report of Condition of
THE BANK OF NEW YORK
of One Wall Street, New York, N.Y. 10286
And Foreign and Domestic Subsidiaries,
a member of the Federal Reserve System, at the close of business
December 31, 2001, published in accordance with a call made by the
Federal Reserve Bank of this District pursuant to the provisions of
the Federal Reserve Act.

ASSETS	Dollar Amounts In Thousands
Cash and balances due from depository institutions:	In mousands
Noninterest-bearing balances and currency and coin	\$3,163,218
Interest-bearing balances	5,923,554
Securities:	
Held-to-maturity securities	1,210,537
Available-for-sale securities	9,596,941
Federal funds sold and Securities purchased under agreements to resell	4,723,579
Loans and lease financing receivables:	
Loans and leases held for sale	1,104,560
Loans and leases, net of unearned income36,204,516	
LESS: Allowance for loan and lease losses608,227	
Loans and leases, net of unearned income and allowance	35,596,289
Trading Assets	8,039,857
Premises and fixed assets (including capitalized leases)	836,786
Other real estate owned	1,292
Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated companies	207,616
Customers' liability to this bank on acceptances outstanding	292,295
Intangible assets	
Goodwill	1,579,965
Other intangible assets	18,971
Other assets	5,723,285

Total assets	\$78,018,745 ========
LIABILITIES	
Deposits:	
In domestic offices	\$28,786,182
Noninterest-bearing 12,264,352	
Interest-bearing 16,521,830	
In foreign offices, Edge and Agreement subsidiaries, and IBFs	27,024,257
Noninterest-bearing 407,933	
Interest-bearing 26,616,325	
Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase	1,872,762
Trading liabilities	2,181,529
Other borrowed money: (includes mortgage indebtedness and obligations under capitalized leases)	1,692,630
Bank's liability on acceptances executed and outstanding	336,900
Subordinated notes and debentures	1,940,000
Other liabilities	7,217,748
Total liabilities	\$71,052,008 ======
EQUITY CAPITAL	
Common stock	1,135,284
Surplus	1,050,729
Retained earnings	4,266,676
Accumulated other comprehensive income	13,733
Other equity capital components	0
Total equity capital	6,466,422
Total liabilities and equity	\$78,015,745

I, Thomas J. Mastro, Senior Vice President and Comptroller of the above-named bank do hereby declare that this Report of Condition has been prepared in conformance with the instructions issued by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System and is true to the best of my knowledge and belief.

Thomas J. Mastro, Senior Vice President and Comptroller

We, the undersigned directors, attest to the correctness of this Report of Condition and declare that it has been examined by us and to the best of our knowledge and belief has been

prepared in conformance with the instructions issued by the  $\,$  Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System and is true and correct.

Thomas A. Renyi Gerald L. Hassell Alan R. Griffith

Director

### KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY

LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL FOR TENDER OF ALL OUTSTANDING

6.00% SENIOR NOTES DUE 2007, SERIES A IN EXCHANGE FOR REGISTERED 6.00% NOTES DUE 2007, SERIES B

THE EXCHANGE OFFER WILL EXPIRE AT 5:00 P.M., NEW YORK CITY TIME, ON \_\_\_\_\_\_, 2002, UNLESS EXTENDED (THE "EXPIRATION DATE"). NOTES TENDERED IN SUCH EXCHANGE OFFER MAY BE WITHDRAWN AT ANY TIME PRIOR TO 5:00 P.M., NEW YORK CITY TIME, ON THE EXPIRATION DATE.

### DELIVER TO THE EXCHANGE AGENT:

THE BANK OF NEW YORK

BY HAND OR COURIER:

The Bank of New York Corporate Trust Department Reorganization Unit 15 Broad Street, 16<sup>th</sup> Floor New York, NY 10007

# BY MAIL (REGISTERED OR CERTIFIED MAIL RECOMMENDED):

The Bank of New York Corporate Trust Department Reorganization Unit 15 Broad Street, 16<sup>th</sup> Floor New York, NY 10007

BY FACSIMILE TRANSMISSION (ELIGIBLE INSTITUTIONS ONLY):

() _ Attentio	on:	
CONFIRM	BY TELEPHONE:	_)

DELIVERY OF THIS INSTRUMENT TO AN ADDRESS OTHER THAN AS SET FORTH ABOVE OR TRANSMISSION OF INSTRUCTIONS VIA A FACSIMILE NUMBER OTHER THAN THE ONE LISTED ABOVE WILL NOT CONSTITUTE A VALID DELIVERY. THE INSTRUCTIONS ACCOMPANYING THIS LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL SHOULD BE READ CAREFULLY BEFORE THE LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL IS COMPLETED.

The undersigned hereby acknowledges receipt and review of the prospectus dated \_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_, 2002 of Kansas City Power & Light Company (the "Company") and this letter of transmittal. These two documents together constitute the Company's offer to exchange its 6.00% Senior Notes due 2007, Series B (the "Exchange Notes"), the issuance of which has been registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), for a like principal amount of its issued and outstanding 6.00% Senior Notes due 2007, Series A (the "Old Notes") (the "Exchange Offer").

The Company reserves the right, at any time or from time to time, to extend the period of time during which the Exchange Offer for the Old Notes is open, at its discretion, in which event the term "Expiration Date" shall mean the latest date to which such Exchange Offer is extended. The Company shall notify The Bank of New York (the "Exchange Agent") of any extension by oral or written notice and shall make a public announcement thereof no later than 9:00 a.m., New York City time, on the next business day after the previously scheduled Expiration Date.

This letter of transmittal is to be used by a holder of Old Notes (i) if certificates of Old Notes are to be forwarded herewith or (ii) if delivery of Old Notes is to be made by book-entry transfer to the account maintained by the Exchange Agent at The Depository Trust Company (the "DTC") pursuant to the procedures set forth in the prospectus under the caption "The Exchange Offer -- Book-Entry Transfer" and an "agent's message" is not delivered as described in the prospectus under the caption "The Exchange Offer -- Procedures for Tendering --Tendering through DTC's automated tender offer program." Tenders by book-entry transfer may also be made by delivering an agent's message in lieu of this letter of transmittal. Holders of Old Notes whose Old Notes are not immediately available, or who are unable to deliver their Old Notes, this letter of transmittal and all other documents required hereby to the Exchange Agent on or prior to the Expiration Date for the Exchange Offer, or who are unable to complete the procedure for book-entry transfer on a timely basis, must tender their Old Notes according to the guaranteed delivery procedures set forth in the prospectus under the caption "The Exchange Offer -- Guaranteed Delivery Procedures." See Instruction 2. DELIVERY OF DOCUMENTS TO THE DTC DOES NOT CONSTITUTE DELIVERY TO THE EXCHANGE AGENT.

The term "holder" with respect to the Exchange Offer for Old Notes means any person in whose name such Old Notes are registered on the books of the Company, any person who holds such Old Notes and has obtained a properly completed bond power from the registered holder or any participant in

the DTC system whose name appears on a security position listing as the holder of such Old Notes and who desires to deliver such Old Notes by bookentry transfer at DTC. The undersigned has completed, executed and delivered this letter of transmittal to indicate the action the undersigned desires to take with respect to such Exchange Offer. Holders who wish to tender their Old Notes must complete this letter of transmittal in its entirety (unless such Old Notes are to be tendered by book-entry transfer and an agent's message is delivered in lieu hereof).

PLEASE READ THE ENTIRE LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL AND THE PROSPECTUS CAREFULLY BEFORE CHECKING ANY BOX BELOW.

THE INSTRUCTIONS INCLUDED WITH THIS LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL MUST BE FOLLOWED. QUESTIONS AND REQUESTS FOR ASSISTANCE OR FOR ADDITIONAL COPIES OF THE PROSPECTUS AND THIS LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL MAY BE DIRECTED TO THE EXCHANGE AGENT.

List below the Old Notes to which this letter of transmittal relates. If the space below is inadequate, list the registered numbers and principal amounts on a separate signed schedule and affix the list to this letter of transmittal.

DESCRIPTION OF OLD NOTES TENDERED			
Name(s) and Address(es) of Registered Holder(s) Exactly as Name(s) Appear(s) on Old Note(s) (Please fill in if blank)	Registered Numbers *	Aggregate Principal Amount Represented by Notes	Principal Amount Tendered**
	Total:		

\* Need not be completed by book-entry holders.

Name of Eligible Institution that

Guaranteed Delivery:

- \*\* Unless otherwise indicated, any tendering holder of Old Notes will be deemed to have tendered the entire aggregate principal amount represented by such Old Notes. All tenders must be in integral multiples of \$1,000.
- // CHECK HERE IF TENDERED OLD NOTES ARE ENCLOSED HEREWITH.
- // CHECK HERE AND COMPLETE THE FOLLOWING IF TENDERED OLD NOTES ARE BEING DELIVERED BY BOOK-ENTRY TRANSFER MADE TO THE ACCOUNT MAINTAINED BY THE EXCHANGE AGENT WITH THE DTC (FOR USE BY ELIGIBLE INSTITUTIONS ONLY):

Name of Tendering Institution:
DTC Account Number(s):
Transaction Code Number(s):
/ / CHECK HERE AND COMPLETE THE FOLLOWING IF TENDERED OLD NOTES ARE BEING DELIVERED PURSUANT TO A NOTICE OF GUARANTEED DELIVERY EITHER ENCLOSED HEREWITH OR PREVIOUSLY DELIVERED TO THE EXCHANGE AGENT (COPY ATTACHED) (FOR USE BY ELIGIBLE INSTITUTIONS ONLY):
Name(s) of Registered holder(s) of Old Notes:
Date of Execution of Notice of Guaranteed Delivery:
Window Ticket Number (if available):

DTC Account Number(s) (if delivered by book-entry transfer):	-		
Transaction Code Number(s) (if delivered by book-entry transfer):			
Name of Tendering Institution (if delivered by book-entry transfer):	-		
// CHECK HERE AND COMPLETE THE FOLLOWING IF YOU ARE A BROKER- DEALER AND WISH TO RECEIVE 10 ADDITIONAL COPIES OF THE PROSPECTUS AND 10 COPIES OF ANY AMENDMENTS OR SUPPLEMENTS THERETO:			
Name:			

If the undersigned is not a broker-dealer, the undersigned represents that it is not engaged in, and does not intend to engage in, a distribution of Exchange Notes. If the undersigned is a broker-dealer that will receive Exchange Notes for its own account in exchange for Old Notes that were acquired as a result of market-making activities or other trading activities, it acknowledges that it will deliver a prospectus in connection with any resale of such Exchange Notes; however, by so acknowledging and by delivering a prospectus, the undersigned will not be deemed to admit that it is an "underwriter" within the meaning of the Securities Act.

# SIGNATURES MUST BE PROVIDED BELOW PLEASE READ THE ACCOMPANYING INSTRUCTIONS CAREFULLY

#### Ladies and Gentlemen:

Address:

Subject to the terms and conditions of the Exchange Offer, the undersigned hereby tenders to the Company for exchange the principal amount of Old Notes indicated above. Subject to and effective upon the acceptance for exchange of the principal amount of Old Notes tendered in accordance with this letter of transmittal, the undersigned hereby exchanges, assigns and transfers to, or upon the order of, the Company all right, title and interest in and to such Old Notes tendered for exchange hereby. The undersigned hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints the Exchange Agent the true and lawful agent and attorney-in-fact for the undersigned (with full knowledge that said Exchange Agent also acts as the agent for the Company in connection with the Exchange Offer) with respect to the tendered Old Notes with full power of substitution to (i) deliver such Old Notes, or transfer ownership of such Old Notes on the account books maintained by the DTC, to the Company and deliver all accompanying evidences of transfer and authenticity, and (ii) present such Old Notes for transfer on the books of the Company and receive all benefits and otherwise exercise all rights of beneficial ownership of such Old Notes, all in accordance with the terms of the Exchange Offer. The power of attorney granted in this paragraph shall be deemed to be irrevocable and coupled with an interest.

The undersigned hereby represents and warrants that the undersigned has full power and authority to tender, exchange, assign and transfer the Old Notes tendered hereby and to acquire the Exchange Notes issuable upon the exchange of such tendered Old Notes, and that the Company will acquire good and unencumbered title thereto, free and clear of all liens, restrictions, charges and encumbrances and not subject to any adverse claim, when the same are accepted for exchange by the Company.

The undersigned acknowledges that the Exchange Offer is being made in reliance upon interpretations set forth in no-action letters issued to third parties by the staff of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC"), including Exxon Capital Holdings Corporation (available May 13, 1988), Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated (available June 5, 1991), Mary Kay Cosmetics, Inc. (available June 5, 1991), Shearman & Sterling (available July 2, 1993) and similar no-action letters (the "Prior No-Action Letters"), that the Exchange Notes issued in exchange for the Old Notes pursuant to the Exchange Offer may be offered for resale, resold and otherwise transferred by holders thereof (other than any such holder that is an "affiliate" of the Company within the meaning of Rule 405 under the Securities Act), without compliance with the registration and prospectus delivery provisions of the Securities Act, PROVIDED that such Exchange Notes are acquired in the ordinary course of such holders' business and such holders are not engaging in, do not intend to engage in and have no arrangement or understanding with any person to participate in a distribution of such Exchange Notes. The SEC has not, however, considered the Exchange Offer in the context of a no-action letter, and there can be no assurance that the staff of the SEC would make a similar determination with respect to the Exchange Offer as in other circumstances.

The undersigned hereby further represents to the Company that (i) any Exchange Notes received are being acquired in the ordinary course of business of the person receiving such Exchange Notes, whether or not the undersigned, (ii) neither the undersigned nor any such other person has an arrangement or understanding with any person to participate in the distribution of the Old Notes or the Exchange Notes within the meaning of the Securities Act and (iii) neither the holder nor any such other person is an "affiliate," as defined in Rule 405 under the Securities Act, of the Company or, if it is such an affiliate, it will comply with the registration and prospectus delivery requirements of the Securities Act to the extent applicable.

If the undersigned is not a broker-dealer, the undersigned represents that it is not engaged in, and does not intend to engage in, a distribution of Exchange Notes. If the undersigned is a broker-dealer that will receive Exchange Notes for its own account in exchange for Old Notes that were acquired as a result of market-making activities or other trading activities, it acknowledges that it will deliver a prospectus in connection with any resale of such Exchange Notes; however, by so acknowledging and by delivering a prospectus, the undersigned will not be deemed to admit that it is an "underwriter" within the meaning of the Securities Act. The undersigned acknowledges that if the undersigned is tendering Old Notes in the Exchange Offer with the intention of participating in any manner in a distribution of the Exchange Notes (i) the undersigned cannot rely on the position of the staff of the SEC set forth in the Prior No-Action Letters and, in the absence of an exemption therefrom, must comply with the registration and prospectus delivery requirements of the Securities Act in connection with a secondary resale transaction of the Exchange Notes, in which case the registration statement must contain the selling security holder information required by Item 507 or Item 508, as applicable, of Regulation S-K of the SEC, and (ii) failure to comply with such requirements in such instance could result in the undersigned incurring liability under the Securities Act for which the undersigned is not indemnified by the Company.

The undersigned will, upon request, execute and deliver any additional documents deemed by the Exchange Agent or the Company to be necessary or desirable to complete the exchange, assignment and transfer of the Old Notes tendered hereby, including the transfer of such Old Notes on the account books maintained by the DTC.

For purposes of the Exchange Offer, the Company shall be deemed to have accepted for exchange validly tendered Old Notes when, as and if the Company gives oral or written notice thereof to the Exchange Agent. Any tendered Old Notes that are not accepted for exchange pursuant to such Exchange Offer for any reason will be returned, without expense, to the undersigned as promptly as practicable after the Expiration Date for such Exchange Offer.

All authority conferred or agreed to be conferred by this letter of transmittal shall survive the death, incapacity or dissolution of the undersigned, and every obligation of the undersigned under this letter of transmittal shall be binding upon the undersigned's successors, assigns, heirs,

executors, administrators, trustees in bankruptcy and legal representatives.

The undersigned acknowledges that the Company's acceptance of properly tendered Old Notes pursuant to the procedures described under the caption "The Exchange Offer--Procedures for Tendering" in the prospectus and in the instructions hereto will constitute a binding agreement between the undersigned and the Company upon the terms and subject to the conditions of the Exchange Offer.

The Exchange Offer is subject to certain conditions set forth in the prospectus under the caption "The Exchange Offer--Conditions to the Exchange Offer." The undersigned recognizes that as a result of these conditions (which may be waived, in whole or in part, by the Company), the Company may not be required to exchange any of the Old Notes tendered hereby.

Unless otherwise indicated under "Special Issuance Instructions," please issue the Exchange Notes issued in exchange for the Old Notes accepted for exchange, and return any Old Notes not tendered or not exchanged, in the name(s) of the undersigned (or, in the case of a book-entry delivery of Old Notes, please credit the account indicated above maintained at the DTC). Similarly, unless otherwise indicated under "Special Delivery Instructions," please mail or deliver the Exchange Notes issued in exchange for the Old Notes accepted for exchange and any Old Notes not tendered or not exchanged (and accompanying documents, as appropriate) to the undersigned at the address shown below the undersigned's signature(s). In the event that both "Special Issuance Instructions" and "Special Delivery Instructions" are completed, please issue the Exchange Notes issued in exchange for the Old Notes accepted for exchange in the name(s) of, and return any Old Notes not tendered or not exchanged to, the person(s) (or account(s)) so indicated. The undersigned recognizes that the Company has no obligation pursuant to the "Special Issuance Instructions" and "Special Delivery Instructions" to transfer any Old Notes from the name of the registered holder(s) thereof if the Company does not accept for exchange any of the Old Notes so tendered for exchange.

# SPECIAL ISSUANCE INSTRUCTIONS (SEE INSTRUCTIONS 5 AND 6)

To be completed ONLY (i) if Old Notes in a principal amount not tendered, or Exchange Notes issued in exchange for Old Notes accepted for exchange, are to be issued in the name of someone other than the undersigned, or (ii) if Old Notes tendered by book-entry transfer which are not exchanged are to be returned by credit to an account maintained at the DTC other than the DTC Account Number set forth above. Issue Exchange Notes and/or Old Notes to:

Name:		
Address:		
	(INCLUDE ZIP CODE)	
	(Tax Identification or Social Security Number)	
	(PLEASE TYPE OR PRINT)	

# SPECIAL DELIVERY INSTRUCTIONS (SEE INSTRUCTIONS 5 AND 6)

To be completed ONLY if Old Notes in a principal amount not tendered, or Exchange Notes issued in exchange for Old Notes accepted for exchange, are to be mailed or delivered to someone other than the undersigned, or to the undersigned at an address other than that shown below the undersigned's signature. Mail or deliver Exchange Notes and/or Old Notes to:

Name:
Address:
(INCLUDE ZIP CODE)
(Tax Identification or Social Security Number) (PLEASE TYPE OR PRINT)
/ / Credit unexchanged Old Notes delivered by book-entry transfer to the DTC Account Number set forth below:
DTC Account Number:

# PLEASE SIGN HERE WHETHER OR NOT OLD NOTES ARE BEING PHYSICALLY TENDERED HEREBY (Complete Accompanying Substitute Form W. O. Below)

(Complete Accompanying Substitute Form W-9 Below)

	*				
		(Signature(s) of Reg	istered Holder(s) of Old	Notes)	
	Dated	, 2002			
by person(s) authorized to transmitted with this lette such holders must sign th other person acting in a fi	o become register or of transmittal. I his letter of transm iduciary or repres ce satisfactory to	red holder(s) by a properly conf Old Notes to which this lettentital. If signature is by a trustrentative capacity, then such p	mpleted bond power fror er of transmittal relate ar ee, executor, administrat erson must (i) set forth h	n the registered holder(s e held of record by two c or, guardian, attorney-in is or her full title below	or more joint holders, then all -fact, officer of a corporation or
Name(s):				_	
	(Ple	ease Type or Print)			
Capacity:				_	
Address:				_	
	(I:	nclude Zip Code)		_	
Taxpayer Identification o	r Social Security	Number:		-	
		SIGNATURE GUARANTEE uired by Instruction 5)	Σ	_	
Certain signatures must b	oe guaranteed by	an Eligible Institution.			
Signature(s) Guaranteed Eligible Institution:					
0		thorized Signature)		_	
		(Title)		_	
		(Name of Firm)		_	
	(Addre	ess, Include Zip Code)		_	
Dated	(Area Cod	e and Telephone Number)		_	

#### INSTRUCTIONS

### FORMING PART OF THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE EXCHANGE OFFER

1. DELIVERY OF THIS LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL AND OLD NOTES OR AGENT'S MESSAGE AND BOOK-ENTRY CONFIRMATIONS. All physically delivered Old Notes or any confirmation of a book-entry transfer to the Exchange Agent's account at the DTC of Old Notes tendered by book-entry transfer (a "Book-Entry Confirmation"), as well as a properly completed and duly executed copy of this letter of transmittal or facsimile hereof (or an agent's message in lieu hereof), and any other documents required by this letter of transmittal, must be received by the Exchange Agent at its address set forth herein prior to 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on the Expiration Date for the Exchange Offer, or the tendering holder must comply with the guaranteed delivery procedures set forth below. THE METHOD OF DELIVERY OF THE TENDERED OLD NOTES, THIS LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL AND ALL OTHER REQUIRED DOCUMENTS TO THE EXCHANGE AGENT IS AT THE ELECTION AND RISK OF THE HOLDER AND, EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE PROVIDED BELOW, THE DELIVERY WILL BE DEEMED MADE ONLY WHEN ACTUALLY RECEIVED OR CONFIRMED BY THE EXCHANGE AGENT. INSTEAD OF DELIVERY BY MAIL, IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE HOLDER USE AN OVERNIGHT OR HAND DELIVERY SERVICE. IN ALL CASES, SUFFICIENT TIME SHOULD BE ALLOWED TO ASSURE DELIVERY TO THE EXCHANGE AGENT BEFORE THE EXPIRATION DATE. NO LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL OR OLD NOTES SHOULD BE SENT TO THE COMPANY.

2. GUARANTEED DELIVERY PROCEDURES. Holders who wish to tender their Old Notes and (a) whose Old Notes are not immediately available, (b) who cannot deliver their Old Notes, this letter of transmittal or any other documents required hereby to the Exchange Agent prior to the Expiration Date or (c) who are unable to comply with the applicable procedures under the DTC's Automated Tender Offer Program on a timely basis, may tender their Old Notes according to the guaranteed delivery procedures set forth in the prospectus. Pursuant to such procedures: (i) such tender must be made by or through a firm which is a member of a registered national securities exchange or of the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc., a commercial bank or a trust company having an office or correspondent in the United States or an "eligible guarantor institution" within the meaning of Rule 17Ad-15 under the Exchange Act (an "Eligible Institution"); (ii) prior to the Expiration Date, the Exchange Agent must have received from the Eligible Institution a properly completed and duly executed notice of guaranteed delivery (by facsimile transmission, mail or hand delivery) or a properly transmitted agent's message and notice of guaranteed delivery setting forth the name and address of the holder of the Old Notes, the registration number(s) of such Old Notes and the total principal amount of Old Notes tendered, stating that the tender is being made thereby and guaranteeing that, within three New York Stock Exchange trading days after such Expiration Date, this letter of transmittal (or facsimile hereof or an agent's message in lieu hereof) together with the Old Notes in proper form for transfer (or a Book-Entry Confirmation) and any other documents required hereby, will be deposited by the Eligible Institution with the Exchange Agent; and (iii) this letter of transmittal (or facsimile hereof or an agent's message in lieu hereof) together with the certificates for all physically tendered Old Notes in proper form for transfer (or Book-Entr

Any holder of Old Notes who wishes to tender Old Notes pursuant to the guaranteed delivery procedures described above must ensure that the Exchange Agent receives the notice of guaranteed delivery prior to 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on the applicable Expiration Date. Upon request of the Exchange Agent, a notice of guaranteed delivery will be sent to holders who wish to tender their Old Notes according to the guaranteed delivery procedures set forth above.

See "The Exchange Offer--Guaranteed Delivery Procedures" section of the prospectus.

- 3. TENDER BY HOLDER. Only a holder of Old Notes may tender such Old Notes in the Exchange Offer. Any beneficial holder of Old Notes who is not the registered holder and who wishes to tender should arrange with the registered holder to execute and deliver this letter of transmittal on his behalf or must, prior to completing and executing this letter of transmittal and delivering his Old Notes, either make appropriate arrangements to register ownership of the Old Notes in such holder's name or obtain a properly completed bond power from the registered holder.
- 4. PARTIAL TENDERS. Tenders of Old Notes will be accepted only in integral multiples of \$1,000. If less than the entire principal amount of any Old Notes is tendered, the tendering holder should fill in the principal amount tendered in the fourth column of the box entitled "Description of Old Notes Tendered" above. The entire principal amount of Old Notes delivered to the Exchange Agent will be deemed to have been tendered unless otherwise indicated. If the entire principal amount of all Old Notes is not tendered, then Old Notes for the principal amount of Old Notes not tendered and Exchange Notes issued in exchange for any Old Notes accepted will be returned to the holder as promptly as practicable after the Old Notes are accepted for exchange.
- 5. SIGNATURES ON THIS LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL; BOND POWERS AND ENDORSEMENTS; MEDALLION GUARANTEE OF SIGNATURES. If this letter of transmittal (or facsimile hereof) is signed by the record holder(s) of the Old Notes tendered hereby, the signature(s) must correspond exactly with the name(s) as written on the face of the Old Notes without alteration, enlargement or any change whatsoever. If this letter of transmittal (or facsimile hereof) is signed by a participant in the DTC, the signature must correspond with the name as it appears on the security position listing as the holder of the Old Notes.

If this letter of transmittal (or facsimile hereof) is signed by the registered holder(s) of Old Notes listed and tendered hereby and the Exchange Notes issued in exchange therefor are to be issued (or any untendered principal amount of Old Notes is to be reissued) to the registered holder(s), the said holder(s) need not and should not endorse any tendered Old Notes, nor provide a separate bond power. In any other case, such holder(s) must either properly endorse the Old Notes tendered or transmit a properly completed separate bond power with this letter of transmittal, with the signatures on the endorsement or bond power guaranteed by an Eligible Institution.

If this letter of transmittal (or facsimile hereof) or any Old Notes or bond powers are signed by trustees, executors, administrators, guardians, attorneys-in-fact, officers of corporations or others acting in a fiduciary or representative capacity, such persons should so indicate when signing, and, unless waived by the Company, evidence satisfactory to the Company of their authority to act must be submitted with this letter of transmittal.

NO SIGNATURE GUARANTEE IS REQUIRED IF (i) THIS LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL (OR FACSIMILE HEREOF) IS SIGNED BY THE REGISTERED HOLDER(S) OF THE OLD NOTES TENDERED HEREIN (OR BY A PARTICIPANT IN THE DTC WHOSE NAME APPEARS ON A SECURITY POSITION LISTING AS THE OWNER OF THE TENDERED OLD NOTES) AND THE EXCHANGE NOTES ARE TO BE ISSUED DIRECTLY TO SUCH REGISTERED HOLDER(S) (OR, IF SIGNED BY A PARTICIPANT IN THE DTC, DEPOSITED TO SUCH PARTICIPANT'S ACCOUNT AT THE DTC) AND NEITHER THE BOX ENTITLED "SPECIAL DELIVERY INSTRUCTIONS" NOR THE BOX ENTITLED "SPECIAL REGISTRATION INSTRUCTIONS" HAS BEEN COMPLETED, OR (ii) SUCH OLD NOTES ARE TENDERED FOR THE ACCOUNT OF AN ELIGIBLE INSTITUTION. IN ALL OTHER CASES, ALL SIGNATURES ON THIS LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL (OR FACSIMILE HEREOF) MUST BE GUARANTEED BY AN ELIGIBLE INSTITUTION.

- 6. SPECIAL ISSUANCE AND DELIVERY INSTRUCTIONS. Tendering holders should indicate, in the applicable box or boxes, the name and address to which Exchange Notes or substitute Old Notes for principal amounts not tendered or not accepted for exchange are to be issued or sent, if different from the name and address of the person signing this letter of transmittal. In the case of issuance in a different name, the taxpayer identification or social security number of the person named must also be indicated. Holders tendering Old Notes by book-entry transfer may request that Old Notes not exchanged be credited to such account maintained at the DTC as such noteholder may designate hereon. If no such instructions are given, such Old Notes not exchanged will be returned to the name and address (or account number) of the person signing this letter of transmittal.
- 7. TRANSFER TAXES. The Company will pay all transfer taxes, if any, applicable to the exchange of Old Notes pursuant to the Exchange Offer. If, however, Exchange Notes or Old Notes for principal amounts not tendered or accepted for exchange are to be delivered to, or are to be registered or issued in the name of, any person other than the registered holder of the Old Notes tendered hereby, or if tendered Old Notes are registered in the name of any person other than the person signing this letter of transmittal, or if a transfer tax is imposed for any reason other than the exchange of Old Notes pursuant to the Exchange Offer, then the amount of any such transfer taxes (whether imposed on the registered holder or any other persons) will be payable by the tendering holder. If satisfactory evidence of payment of such taxes or exemption therefrom is not submitted with this letter of transmittal, the amount of such transfer taxes will be billed directly to such tendering holder and the Exchange Agent will retain possession of an amount of Exchange Notes with a face amount at least equal to the amount of such transfer taxes due by such tendering holder pending receipt by the Exchange Agent of the amount of such taxes.
- 8. TAX IDENTIFICATION NUMBER. Federal income tax law requires that a holder of any Old Notes or Exchange Notes must provide the Company (as payor) with its correct taxpayer identification number ("TIN"), which, in the case of a holder who is an individual is his or her social security number.

If the Company is not provided with the correct TIN, the holder may be subject to a \$50 penalty imposed by the Internal Revenue Service and backup withholding of 31% on interest payments on the Exchange Notes.

To prevent backup withholding, each tendering holder must provide such holder's correct TIN by completing the Substitute Form W-9 set forth herein, certifying that the TIN provided is correct (or that such holder is awaiting a TIN), and that (i) the holder has not been notified by the Internal Revenue Service that such holder is subject to backup withholding as a result of failure to report all interest or dividends or (ii) the Internal Revenue Service has notified the holder that such holder is no longer subject to backup withholding. If the Exchange Notes will be registered in more than one name or will not be in the name of the actual owner, consult the instructions on Internal Revenue Service Form W-9, which may be obtained from the Exchange Agent, for information on which TIN to report.

Certain foreign individuals and entities will not be subject to backup withholding or information reporting if they submit a Form W-8, signed under penalties of perjury, attesting to their foreign status. A Form W-8 can be obtained from the Exchange Agent.

If such holder does not have a TIN, such holder should consult the instructions on Form W-9 concerning applying for a TIN, check the box in Part 3 of the Substitute Form W-9, write "applied for" in lieu of its TIN and sign and date the form and the Certificate of Awaiting Taxpayer Identification Number. Checking this box, writing "applied for" on the form and signing such certificate means that such holder has already applied for a TIN or that such holder intends to apply for one in the near future. If such holder does not provide its TIN to the Company within 60 days, backup withholding will begin and continue until such holder furnishes its TIN to the Company.

The Company reserves the right in its sole discretion to take whatever steps are necessary to comply with the Company's obligations regarding backup withholding.

9. VALIDITY OF TENDERS. All questions as to the validity, form, eligibility, time of receipt, acceptance and withdrawal of tendered Old Notes will be determined by the Company in its sole discretion, which determination will be final and binding. The Company reserves the absolute right to reject any and all Old Notes not properly tendered or any Old Notes the Company's acceptance of which might, in the opinion of the Company's counsel, be unlawful. The Company also reserves the absolute right to waive any conditions of the Exchange Offer or defects or irregularities of tenders as to particular Old Notes. The Company's interpretation of the terms and conditions of the Exchange Offer (including this letter of transmittal and the instructions hereto) shall be final and binding on all parties. Unless waived, any defects or

irregularities in connection with tenders of Old Notes must be cured within such time as the Company shall determine. Neither the Company, the Exchange Agent nor any other person shall be under any duty to give notification of defects or irregularities with respect to tenders of Old Notes nor shall any of them incur any liability for failure to give such notification.

- 10. WAIVER OF CONDITIONS. The Company reserves the absolute right to waive, in whole or part, any of the conditions to the Exchange Offer set forth in the prospectus.
  - 11. NO CONDITIONAL TENDER. No alternative, conditional, irregular or contingent tender of Old Notes will be accepted.
- 12. MUTILATED, LOST, STOLEN OR DESTROYED OLD NOTES. Any holder whose Old Notes have been mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed should contact the Exchange Agent at the address indicated above for further instructions. This letter of transmittal and related documents cannot be processed until the procedures for replacing lost, stolen or destroyed Old Notes have been followed.
- 13. REQUESTS FOR ASSISTANCE OR ADDITIONAL COPIES. Requests for assistance or for additional copies of the prospectus or this letter of transmittal may be directed to the Exchange Agent at the address or telephone number set forth on the cover page of this letter of transmittal. Holders may also contact their broker, dealer, commercial bank, trust company or other nominee for assistance concerning the Exchange Offer.
- 14. WITHDRAWAL. Tenders may be withdrawn only pursuant to the limited withdrawal rights set forth in the prospectus under the caption "The Exchange Offer Withdrawal of Tenders."

IMPORTANT: THIS LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL OR A MANUALLY SIGNED FACSIMILE HEREOF OR AN AGENT'S MESSAGE IN LIEU HEREOF (TOGETHER WITH THE OLD NOTES DELIVERED BY BOOK-ENTRY TRANSFER OR IN ORIGINAL HARD COPY FORM) MUST BE RECEIVED BY THE EXCHANGE AGENT, OR THE NOTICE OF GUARANTEED DELIVERY MUST BE RECEIVED BY THE EXCHANGE AGENT, PRIOR TO THE EXPIRATION DATE.

SUBSTITUTE FORM W-9	PART 1 PLEASE PROVIDE YOUR TIN IN THE BOX AT RIGHT AND CERTIFY BY SIGNING AND DATING BELOW	SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER OR
NAME	PART 2 CERTIFICATION UNDER PENALTIES OF PERJURY, I CERTIFY THAT:  (1) THE NUMBER SHOWN ON THIS FORM IS MY CORRECT TAXPAYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER (OR I HAVE CHECKED THE BOX IN PART 3 AND EXECUTED THE CERTIFICATE OF AWAITING TAXPAYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER BELOW) AND  (2) I AM NOT SUBJECT TO BACKUP WITHHOLDING EITHER BECAUSE I HAVE NOT BEEN NOTIFIED BY THE INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE ("IRS") THAT I AM SUBJECT TO BACKUP WITHHOLDING AS A RESULT OF FAILURE TO REPORT ALL INTEREST OR DIVIDENDS, OR BECAUSE THE IRS HAS NOTIFIED ME THAT I AM NO LONGER SUBJECT TO BACKUP WITHHOLDING	
ADDRESS (NUMBER AND STREET)  CITY, STATE AND ZIP CODE		
DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE PAYOR'S REQUEST FOR TAXPAYER		
IDENTIFICATION NUMBER	CERTIFICATE INSTRUCTIONS YOU MUST CROSS OUT ITE NOTIFIED BY THE IRS THAT YOU ARE SUBJECT TO BACKU. UNDERREPORTING INTEREST OR DIVIDENDS ON YOUR TA NOTIFIED BY THE IRS THAT YOU ARE SUBJECT TO BACKU. NOTIFICATION FROM THE IRS STATING THAT YOU ARE NO	P WITHHOLDING BECAUSE OF X RETURN. HOWEVER, IF AFTER BEING P WITHHOLDING YOU RECEIVED ANOTHER

WITHHOLDING, DO NOT CROSS OUT ITEM (2).

DATE \_\_\_



#### KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY

NOTICE OF GUARANTEED DELIVERY FOR TENDER OF ALL OUTSTANDING

6.00% SENIOR NOTES DUE 2007, SERIES A IN EXCHANGE FOR REGISTERED 6.00% SENIOR NOTES DUE 2007, SERIES B

This form, or one substantially equivalent hereto, must be used by a holder to accept the Exchange Offer of Kansas City Power & Light Company (the "Company") and to tender 6.00% Senior Notes due 2007, Series A (the "Old Notes") to the Exchange Agent pursuant to the guaranteed delivery procedures described in "The Exchange Offer -- Guaranteed Delivery Procedures" of the Company's prospectus dated \_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_, 2002 and in Instruction 2 to the related letter of transmittal. Any holder who wishes to tender Old Notes pursuant to such guaranteed delivery procedures must ensure that The Bank of New York, as exchange agent

(the "Exchange Agent"), receives this notice of guaranteed delivery, properly completed and duly executed, prior to the Expiration Date (as defined

The Exchange Agent for the Exchange Offer is: THE BANK OF NEW YORK

BY HAND OR COURIER:

The Bank of New York Corporate Trust Department Reorganization Unit 15 Broad Street, 16<sup>th</sup> Floor New York, NY 10007

BY MAIL (REGISTERED OR CERTIFIED MAIL RECOMMENDED):

The Bank of New York Corporate Trust Department Reorganization Unit 15 Broad Street New York, NY 10007

BY FACSIMILE TRANSMISSION (ELIGIBLE INSTITUTIONS ONLY):

(212) Attention:
CONFIRM BY TELEPHONE: (212)()

DELIVERY OF THIS INSTRUMENT TO AN ADDRESS OTHER THAN AS SET FORTH ABOVE OR TRANSMISSION OF INSTRUCTIONS VIA A FACSIMILE NUMBER OTHER THAN THE ONE LISTED ABOVE WILL NOT CONSTITUTE A VALID DELIVERY. THE INSTRUCTIONS ACCOMPANYING THIS NOTICE OF GUARANTEED DELIVERY SHOULD BE READ CAREFULLY BEFORE THE NOTICE OF GUARANTEED DELIVERY IS COMPLETED.

This notice of guaranteed delivery is not to be used to guarantee signatures. If a signature on a letter of transmittal is required to be guaranteed by an "Eligible Institution" under the instructions thereto, such signature guarantee must appear in the applicable space in the box provided on the letter of transmittal for guarantee of signatures.

#### Ladies and Gentlemen:

The undersigned hereby tenders to the Company, in accordance with the Company's offer, upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the prospectus and the related letter of transmittal, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the principal amount of Old Notes set forth below pursuant to the guaranteed delivery procedures set forth in the prospectus under the caption "The Exchange Offer -- Guaranteed Delivery Procedures" and in Instruction 2 of

the letter of transmittal. The undersigned hereby tenders the Old Notes listed below: Certificate Number(s) (if Aggregate Principal Amount Aggregate Principal Amount known) of Old Notes or Tendered\* Represented Account Number at DTC PLEASE SIGN AND COMPLETE Name(s) of Record Holder(s)\_ Signatures:\_ Address: Area Codes and Telephone Number(s)\_\_ Dated: \* Unless otherwise indicated, any tendering holder of Old Notes will be deemed to have tendered the entire aggregate principal amount represented by such Old Notes. All tenders must be in integral multiples of \$1,000. THIS NOTICE OF GUARANTEED DELIVERY MUST BE SIGNED BY THE REGISTERED HOLDER(S) OF OLD NOTES EXACTLY AS THE NAME(S) OF SUCH PERSON(S) APPEAR(S) ON CERTIFICATES FOR OLD NOTES OR ON A SECURITY POSITION LISTING AS THE OWNER OF OLD NOTES, OR BY PERSON(S) AUTHORIZED TO BECOME HOLDER(S) BY ENDORSEMENTS AND DOCUMENTS TRANSMITTED WITH THIS NOTICE OF GUARANTEED DELIVERY. IF SIGNATURE IS BY A TRUSTEE, EXECUTOR, ADMINISTRATOR, GUARDIAN, ATTORNEY-IN-FACT, OFFICER OR OTHER PERSON ACTING IN A FIDUCIARY OR REPRESENTATIVE CAPACITY, SUCH PERSON MUST PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION: PLEASE PRINT NAME(S) AND ADDRESS(ES) NT ()

ivallie(s):		
Capacity:		
Address(es):		

#### **GUARANTEE**

(Not to be used for signature guarantee)

The undersigned, a firm which is a member of a registered national securities exchange or of the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc., a commercial bank or a trust company having an office or correspondent in the United States, or an "eligible guarantor institution" within the meaning of Rule 17Ad-15 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, hereby guarantees deposit with the Exchange Agent of the letter of transmittal (or facsimile thereof or agent's message in lieu thereof), together with the Old Notes of the series tendered hereby in proper form for transfer (or confirmation of the book-entry transfer of such Old Notes into the Exchange Agent's account at the DTC described in the prospectus under the caption "The Exchange Offer -- Book-Entry Transfer" and in the letter of transmittal) and any other required documents, all by 5:00 p.m., New York City time, within three New York Stock Exchange

trading days following the Expiration Date for such series.

Name of Firm:		
	(AUTHORIZED SIGNAT	URE)
Address:	<u> </u>	
(INCLUDE ZIP CODE)	Name:	
	Title:	
Area Code and Telephone Number:	(PLEASE TYPE OR P	RINT)
	<u> </u>	
	Date:	, 2002

DO NOT SEND OLD NOTES WITH THIS FORM. ACTUAL SURRENDER OF OLD NOTES MUST BE MADE PURSUANT TO, AND BE ACCOMPANIED BY, A PROPERLY COMPLETED AND DULY EXECUTED LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL AND ANY OTHER REQUIRED DOCUMENTS.

#### INSTRUCTIONS FOR NOTICE OF GUARANTEED DELIVERY

- 1. DELIVERY OF THIS NOTICE OF GUARANTEED DELIVERY. A properly completed and duly executed copy of this notice of guaranteed delivery (or facsimile hereof or an agent's message and notice of guaranteed delivery in lieu hereof) and any other documents required by this notice of guaranteed delivery with respect to the Old Notes must be received by the Exchange Agent at its address set forth herein prior to the Expiration Date of the Exchange Offer. Delivery of such notice of guaranteed delivery may be made by facsimile transmission, mail or hand delivery. THE METHOD OF DELIVERY OF THIS NOTICE OF GUARANTEED DELIVERY AND ANY OTHER REQUIRED DOCUMENTS TO THE EXCHANGE AGENT IS AT THE ELECTION AND SOLE RISK OF THE HOLDER, AND THE DELIVERY WILL BE DEEMED MADE ONLY WHEN ACTUALLY RECEIVED BY THE EXCHANGE AGENT. If delivery is by mail, registered mail with return receipt requested, properly insured, is recommended. As an alternative to delivery by mail, the holders may wish to consider using an overnight or hand delivery service. In all cases, sufficient time should be allowed to assure timely delivery. For a description of the guaranteed delivery procedures, see Instruction 2 of the letter of transmittal.
- 2. SIGNATURES ON THIS NOTICE OF GUARANTEED DELIVERY. If this notice of guaranteed delivery (or facsimile hereof) is signed by the registered holder(s) of the Old Notes referred to herein, the signature(s) must correspond exactly with the name(s) as written on the face of the Old Notes without alteration, enlargement or any change whatsoever. If this notice of guaranteed delivery (or facsimile hereof) is signed by a participant in the DTC whose name appears on a security position listing as the owner of the Old Notes, the signature must

correspond with the name as it appears on the security position listing as the owner of the Old Notes.

If this notice of guaranteed delivery (or facsimile hereof) is signed by a person other than the registered holder(s) of any Old Notes listed or a participant of the DTC, this notice of guaranteed delivery must be accompanied by appropriate bond powers, signed as the name(s) of the registered holder(s) appear(s) on the Old Notes or signed as the name(s) of the participant appears on the DTC's security position listing.

If this notice of guaranteed delivery (or facsimile hereof) is signed by a trustee, executor, administrator, guardian, attorney-in-fact, officer of a corporation or other person acting in a fiduciary or representative capacity, such person should so indicate when signing and submit herewith evidence satisfactory to the Exchange Agent of such person's authority to so act.

3. REQUESTS FOR ASSISTANCE OR ADDITIONAL COPIES. Questions and requests for assistance and requests for additional copies of the prospectus and this notice of guaranteed delivery may be directed to the Exchange Agent at the address set forth on the cover page hereof. Holders may also contact their broker, dealer, commercial bank, trust company or other nominee for assistance concerning the Exchange Offer.

#### KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY

## 

6.00% SENIOR NOTES DUE 2007, SERIES A IN EXCHANGE FOR REGISTERED 6.00% SENIOR NOTES DUE 2007, SERIES B

#### To Depository Trust Company Participants:

We are enclosing a prospectus dated \_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_, 2002 of Kansas City Power & Light Company (the "Company") and the related letter of transmittal. These two documents constitute the Company's offer to exchange its 6.00% Senior Notes due 2007, Series B (the "Exchange Notes"), the issuance of which has been registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), for a like principal amount of its issued and outstanding 6.00% Senior Notes due 2007, Series A (the "Old Notes") (the "Exchange Offer"). Additionally, we have included a notice of guaranteed delivery and a letter that may be sent to your clients for whose account you hold Old Notes in your name or in the name of your nominee, with space provided for obtaining such client's instruction with regard to the Exchange Offer.

We urge you to contact your clients promptly. Please note that the Exchange Offer will expire on the Expiration Date unless extended.

The Exchange Offer for Old Notes is not conditioned upon any minimum aggregate principal amount of Old Notes being tendered for exchange.

Pursuant to the letter of transmittal, each holder of Old Notes will represent to the Company that (i) any Exchange Notes received are being acquired in the ordinary course of business of the person receiving such Exchange Notes, (ii) such person does not have an arrangement or understanding with any person to participate in the distribution of the Old Notes or the Exchange Notes within the meaning of the Securities Act and (iii) such person is not an "affiliate," as defined in Rule 405 under the Securities Act, of the Company or, if it is such an affiliate, it will comply with the registration and prospectus delivery requirements of the Securities Act to the extent applicable. In addition, each holder of Old Notes will represent to the Company that (i) if such person is not a broker-dealer, it is not engaged in, and does not intend to engage in, a distribution of Exchange Notes and (ii) if such person is a broker-dealer that will receive Exchange Notes for its own account in exchange for Old Notes that were acquired as a result of market-making activities or other trading activities, it will deliver a prospectus in connection with any resale of such Exchange Notes; however, by so acknowledging and by delivering a prospectus, it will not be deemed to admit that it is an "underwriter" within the meaning of the Securities Act.

The enclosed Letter to Clients contains an authorization by the beneficial owners of the Old Notes for you to make the foregoing representations.

The Company will not pay any fee or commission to any broker or dealer or to any other persons (other than the Exchange Agent) in connection with the solicitation of tenders of Old Notes pursuant to the Exchange Offer. The Company will pay or cause to be paid any transfer taxes payable on the transfer of Old Notes to it, except as otherwise provided in Instruction 7 of the enclosed letter of transmittal.

Additional copies of the enclosed material may be obtained from the undersigned.

Very truly yours,

THE BANK OF NEW YORK

6.00% Senior Notes due 2007, Series A

## KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY

## 

6.00% SENIOR NOTES DUE 2007, SERIES A IN EXCHANGE FOR REGISTERED 6.00% SENIOR NOTES DUE 2007, SERIES B

6.00% SENIOR NOTES DUE 2007, SERIES B		
THE EXCHANGE OFFER WILL EXPIRE AT 'EXPIRATION DATE''). NOTES TENDERED YORK CITY TIME, ON THE EXPIRATION D	5:00 P.M., NEW YORK CITY TIME, ON	
To Our Clients:		
of transmittal. These two documents together co Notes"), the issuance of which has been register	dated, 2002 of Kansas City Power & Light Company (the "Company") and the related letter nstitute the Company's offer to exchange its 6.00% Senior Notes due 2007, Series B (the "Exchange ed under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), for a like principal amount of its 2007, Series A (the "Old Notes") (the "Exchange Offer").	
The Exchange Offer for Old Notes is not con	ditioned upon any minimum aggregate principal amount of Old Notes being tendered for exchange.	
	d by us for your own account. A tender of such Old Notes can be made only by us as the record holder and g letter of transmittal is furnished to you for your information only and cannot be used by you to tender	
	sh to tender any or all of the Old Notes held by us for your account pursuant to the terms and conditions of nfirm that we may on your behalf make the representations contained in the letter of transmittal.	
the ordinary course of business of the person rec person to participate in the distribution of the Ol "affiliate," as defined in Rule 405 under the Secu- delivery requirements of the Securities Act to the person is not a broker-dealer, it is not engaged in dealer that will receive Exchange Notes for its of trading activities, it will deliver a prospectus in o	der of Old Notes will represent to the Company that (i) any Exchange Notes received are being acquired in reiving such Exchange Notes, (ii) such person does not have an arrangement or understanding with any d Notes or the Exchange Notes within the meaning of the Securities Act and (iii) such person is not an arrities Act, of the Company or, if it is such an affiliate, it will comply with the registration and prospectus e extent applicable. In addition, each holder of Old Notes will represent to the Company that (i) if such and does not intend to engage in, a distribution of Exchange Notes and (ii) if such person is a brokerwn account in exchange for Old Notes that were acquired as a result of market-making activities or other connection with any resale of such Exchange Notes; however, by so acknowledging and by delivering a is an "underwriter" within the meaning of the Securities Act.	
	Very truly yours,	
PLEASE RETURN YOUR INSTRUCTIONS T TENDER ON YOUR BEHALF PRIOR TO TH	INSTRUCTION TO	
To Double out of the DTC	BOOK-ENTRY TRANSFER PARTICIPANT	
To Participant of the DTC:		
"Company") and the related letter of transmittal	ot and review of the prospectus dated	
principal amount of its issued and outstanding 6	.00% Senior Notes due 2007, Series A ( the "Old Notes") (the "Exchange Offer").	
This will instruct you, the registered holder a held by you for the account of the undersigned.	nd DTC participant, as to the action to be taken by you relating to the Exchange Offer for the Old Notes	
The aggregate principal amount of the Old N	otes held by you for the account of the undersigned is (FILL IN AMOUNT):	
Title of Series	Principal Amount	

/ /		ENDER THE FOLLOWING AMOUNT OF OLD NOTES HELD BY YOU THE ACCOUNT OF THE UNDERSIGNED:		
	Title of Series	Principal Amount		
6	.00% Senior Notes due 2007, Series A			
/ /	NOT TO TENDER ANY OLD NOTE THE UNDERSIGNED.	HELD BY YOU FOR THE ACCOUNT OF		
		RETURNED INSTRUCTION TO BOOK-ENTRY TRANSFER PARTICIPANT WILL BE DEEM TOTES HELD BY YOU FOR THE ACCOUNT OF THE UNDERSIGNED.	ED	
make, transm Excha unders unders registr engage Notes prospe	on behalf of the undersigned (and the undittal that are to be made with respect to thinge Notes received are being acquired in standing with any person to participate in signed is not an "affiliate," as defined in Ration and prospectus delivery requiremented in, and does not intend to engage in, a of for its own account in exchange for Old N	Old Notes held by you for the account of the undersigned, it is understood that you are authorized to risigned, by its signature below, hereby makes to you), the representations contained in the letter of undersigned as a beneficial owner, including, but not limited to, the representations that (i) any e ordinary course of business of the undersigned; (ii) the undersigned does not have an arrangement e distribution of the Old Notes or the Exchange Notes within the meaning of the Securities Act; (iii) le 405 under the Securities Act, of the Company or, if it is such an affiliate, it will comply with the of the Securities Act to the extent applicable; (iv) if the undersigned is not a broker-dealer, it is not stribution of Exchange Notes and (v) if the undersigned is a broker-dealer that will receive Exchange test that were acquired as a result of market-making activities or other trading activities, it will delive Exchange Notes; however, by so acknowledging and by delivering a prospectus, the undersigned will hin the meaning of the Securities Act.	the e er a	
	SIGI	HERE		
Name	of beneficial owner(s):			
Signat	ure(s):			
Name	(s) (please print):			
Addre	ss:			
Telepl	none Number:			
Taxpa	yer Identification or Social Security Numl	er:		
Date:				

WITH RESPECT TO THE EXCHANGE OFFER, THE UNDERSIGNED HEREBY INSTRUCTS YOU (CHECK APPROPRIATE BOX):

TO TENDER ALL OLD NOTES HELD BY YOU FOR THE ACCOUNT OF THE

/ /

UNDERSIGNED.